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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
A 25 41 2

Year ended Year ended
28 February 28 February
2022 2021
Bz BHE
—E-_C B —F
—A=+N\B Z—A=t+NH
LEE HFE
RMB million RMB million Change
ARBEET ARREET 2
Profit and Loss Hightlights FMERBE
Revenue I &= 569.0 594.2 (4.2%)
Consolidated Profit Attributable to ARAERFTEARNE
Owners of the Company REE A 3.0 106.2 (97.2%)
Basic Earnings per Share (RMB Cents) & EZEA&E (A RE5) 0.42 15.04 (97.2%)
Balance Sheet Highlights EEEERRBE
Total Equity Bl 705.3 1,007.9 (30.0%)
Net Cash Balances ReEn 38 442.6 754.9 (41.4%)
Net Assets Value per Share (RMB) BREEFEANRET) 1.00 1.43 (30.1%)
Net Cash per Share (RMB) BRREFEARET) 0.60 1.07 (43.9%)
Other Key Ratios Hit X B =
Stock Turnover (Days) FEREXH(B) 293 317
Quick Ratio (Times) RELLE(1F) 3.8 7.2
Gearing Ratio (%) BEEBELLE%) N/A N/A
AiE A 5 A
Revenue Consolidated Profit/(Loss) Attributable to
Wi . PO;mfrs of tAhe (iom‘;‘)any )
A2y w)HE 25 R N A S5 A A Ol dR)
RMB milion AR &EET B Retails TEEK RMB milion AR E &t
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
2w BB

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS BITES
Chui Kwan Ho, Jacky REFIT
Li Wing Yeung, Peter Foxi5
Liu Tsz Yan BIER
(appointed with effect from 25 April 2022) (BEZF-——FmHH -+ HHAEEZF)
Liao Jian Yu 2 {2 %)
(resigned with effect from 1 May 2022) (B=F=-—FhH—HEFT)
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR FHITES
James Ngai (Chairman) RS (EmE)
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS BIUFHTES
Lam Siu Lun, Simon MK B
Leung Wai Ki, George RER
Hui Chi Kwan PR
AUDIT COMMITTEE BEREES®
Lam Siu Lun, Simon (Chairman) IR B (F /)
Leung Wai Ki, George REE
Hui Chi Kwan TR 83
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE FMZEzEs
Lam Siu Lun, Simon (Chairman) MK (F /)
Leung Wai Ki, George RER
Hui Chi Kwan PR
James Ngai 7% 7=
NOMINATION COMMITTEE REZES
Hui Chi Kwan (Chairman) TR (EE)
Lam Siu Lun, Simon MK B
Leung Wai Ki, George RiER
James Ngai 152 76 &
COMPANY SECRETARY RAME
Chan Tsz Lok PR 1 %2
(appointed with effect from 1 September 2021) (B=—FE-——FNHA—HEEZF)
Yuen Chee Wing RE&
(resigned with effect from 1 September 2021) (BE=—F=——FNH—HEFHT)
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PRINCIPAL BANKERS

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited

AUDITOR
PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants and Registered PIE Auditor

22nd Floor, Prince’s Building
Central, Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISER
Wilkinson & Grist

6th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Suites 1104-1106, 11th Floor
1063 King’s Road
Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR

Conyers Corporate Services (Bermuda) Limited
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

CORPORATE INFORMATION
AR
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A ERE
Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda
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RHELERE

Conyers Corporate Services (Bermuda) Limited
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
Agibgs

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Units 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wan Chai, Hong Kong

LISTING INFORMATION

Listing: The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Stock Code: 00738
Board Size: 2,000 Shares

INVESTOR RELATIONS
Email address: ir@lesaunda.com.hk

WEBSITE ADDRESS
http://www.lesaunda.com.hk
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

FINANCIAL CALENDAR B1 B 1TE B

2021/22 Interim Results Announcement

—E—/ Z—FhHEE NG

JBe SR ER

25 October 2021
—E-—F+A=-+FHH

2021/22 Annual Results Announcement

B/ EFEEE NN

30 May 2022
—E-_FRHA=1+H

Closure of Register of Members for Annual General Meeting
(both days inclusive)

EEnEROBFELTFEULERRAFAS) BEEEMA)

13-18 July 2022

—E-—F+A+=HZ=1+\H

Annual General Meeting

BREFAE

18 July 2022
—E-—F+A+N\H

SHAREHOLDER SERVICES

For enquires about share transfer and registration, please
contact the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong
Kong:

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Units 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wan Chai, Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 2862 8555
Facsimile: (852) 2865 0990

Holders of the Company’s ordinary shares should notify
the above registrar promptly of any change of their
address.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

For enquiries relating to investor relations, please email to
ir@lesaunda.com.hk or write to the Company at:

Le Saunda Holdings Limited
Suites 1104-1106, 11th Floor
1063 King’s Road

Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 3678 3200
Facsimile: (852) 2554 9304

fR 3R AR 75
THERRNEFRELZENR
MARNRZBEBRNDELDR

== Hak
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EEPREFELERAA

BB BT
25 KRB E1835
& Fe Ly

171E1712-1716 E

== =

% % 1 (852) 2862 8555
{E & : (852) 2865 0990

REARRREBERZ AL BEIUL
AERRBHN LSRR

REZEBRZ
TRNEBEREEEFER2EH  BEHZE
ir@lesaunda.com.hk - 3% B K B2 K N 7] B
Mo bR

HKBHT R B R A A
BB AR

2 E10635%
111110421106 E

T % ¢ (852) 3678 3200
{8 & : (852) 2554 9304
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KEY MILESTONES
HEREL

NMAR. F“ I
MAR3H 2

!!

The Group was honoured to be awarded the
“15 Years Plus Caring Company Logo”. Through
years I

participating in charity and environmental protection
activities, charity donations and community E#J: =
LS

visits, the Group partnered with different social o S
service organizations to practice corporate social Carlngcompany
responsibilities and to build a sustainable society. Awarded by The Hong Kong Council of Social Service

RS RIBHERE

SEAREEBFINLIAARBEIGRS - £E
BERE2NABERELRERTH BEOBRE HER
BE ETRATEREEEAIE KEEELXH
SEM BV EAAREERNOLS -

A PR oo

In the “ERB Manpower Developer Award Scheme”,
launched by the Employees Retraining Board of Hong
Kong, le saunda was continuously renewed as a
“Manpower Developer” in recognition of le saunda’s
outstanding accomplishments in talent training and
development.

EEEEEBBIRBHELNIERBAA X FZFTTE]
Forle saunda B EBIAT D EINER UKEle
saundaP AA B RERITIEFRZ AR ©
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KEY MILESTONES
HERFAL

o vl UL

le saunda is committed to creating a pleasant
working environment, fostering employees’
sense of belonging and team spirit and
inheriting the corporate culture of working
with heart. This year, le saunda participated
in the “Happiness-at-Work Promotional
Scheme 2022” and the Group was awarded
as a “Happy Company” for more than 5 years
consecutively. We hope our staff love their

jobs, able to develop themselves and gain
I 10
gg(g)?nYDEﬁﬂb r'u]: % happiness and job satisfaction at le saunda.

S5years”

le saunda®X N AB T ME MR TIERE -
HEBIMEREBEXMEREE AR
MBI E L o KF Ele saunda2 H [ A
O TEM ] EGT 812022 - EESF I &
EaAIALEE] BRIt S5 - BE
le saundaB I ETHEHREHITE - &
ERR  RIERE R R E R
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”), | am
pleased to present the annual report on the results of Le
Saunda Holdings Limited (“Le Saunda” or the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the
financial year ended 28 February 2022 (the “year under
review”).

Looking back at the past year, the COVID-19 pandemic
has not stopped. The more infectious Omicron variant
emerging at the end of 2021 in Western countries has
caused a sharp increase in infections and has spread
to countries in Asia and Southeast Asia, severely
dampening economic activities and weakening people’s
consumption desire. The retail industry has once again
been hit and entered a cold winter. In Mainland China,
the central government has taken immediate actions and
implemented strict preventive and control measures,
including citywide lockdowns and restrictions on entry
and exit to prevent the spread of the virus. Temporarily
closed stores in affected areas aside, even those that
continued to operate have been adversely impacted to
varying degrees.

However, the Group has been adopting a flexible
marketing strategy to cope with the uncertainties and
challenges in the retail environment. During the year
under review, the Group strategically expanded its store
network in promising areas, while closing inefficient ones
to enhance efficiency, and strictly controlling the quality
of new orders to ensure product quality and reduce
customer returns due to dissatisfaction, with a view to
focusing our efforts on and invest resources in brand
management as well as product development and design,
SO as to bring business back to the pre-pandemic level.

B ik

HERR:

ANERERESE(ESEINAREER
AR IRA R A R ([ HT A s [
AADEENBARI(AEBNEHEE
T THF-ZAZHNB LR BT E(E EE
FEZEBERE -

EEBRE—F FHEMALEBIDRAKL -
RIE I —FEASZERRENETER
JIEEAOmicronfm s * UBREAHE
AEBRA BREEELER T MEERE
BIR: BREMITELESZSHMESHR
WBEEEM <ETEFXEHA-XAXINEEM
HEAZEX - EHRBE R FE - PREM
KMREERE BEREEHEEE 2
FEBERERRSI @B AE - ABLE
FIBEM - RTEEENERALEEE -
N EELKENEROIITREEN
BEXE -

ARMAKE —EFFRINEE S 5RO -
NEHTAANZTEERERIE - N E
BEE AEERBEBEREINE
BRIEHEE S EBERERER
RAME BETBHELE  UBRE
mEE BRIBEFETREMEE  HK
SPEBRABRR o &L K Em-H %
&Rat o BIRER S E KO E 2R 155 A K
F oo
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EE

In addition to expanding sources of income, cost
reduction is also a target of the Group. On the one hand,
we ensure the best inventory level to reduce the inventory
backlog and retain working capital for the sustainable
development of the Group. On the other hand, the Board
resolved to continue reducing the remunerations of all
directors by 25% in the second half of the year and all
back-office departments actively cooperated to reduce
daily expenses to tide over the difficulties. During the year
under review, the Group continued its external sourcing
strategy, which also helped reduce the Group’s operating
expenses. It is believed that as long as the pandemic in
China is under control again, retail activities in Mainland
China will continue to pick up and, together with the
Group’s effective marketing strategies, we will be able to
capitalise on the market rebound, further consolidate our
market share, enhance our brand awareness and maintain
our leading position in mid-to-high-end women’s footwear.

As the pandemic continues for more than two years,
shopping online at home has become an important part
of people’s life. The entire retail industry is constantly
changing to survive. In the past, the market was
dominated by a few traditional large-scale e-commerce
platforms, but at present, e-commerce and social
platforms of different sizes are all competing for market
share. The Group will continue to explore new online
channels and strengthen the integration of online and
offline operations to fit the development of the stay-
at-home economy. The Group has been seizing the
opportunities of e-commerce, and adopted the popular
live-streaming sales model as its marketing strategy, which
can aggregate the existing customer base and explore
the online customer base, creating more opportunities
for interaction with customers and enhancing the brand’s
influence in online retailing, as well as encouraging offline
consumption. During the year under review, we actively
developed an omnichannel sales strategy to meet the new
generation’s shopping habits, and continued to promote
the le saunda Y collection on online platforms. Under the
creative concept of “Be yourself”, we sticked to a trendy
and casual style, so as to meet the clothing demand of
young customers on casual occasions, and to continue
expanding the market of young audiences.

le saunda holdings Itd. Z&E &7 FHERE A R A A

@TﬁﬁZ%-%ﬁm%$ilmHFI
WO—EE%%WEWT“EK$

IR T & CREBEEES Eﬂ$
SEFE %E F—hH EFGRED
REZFUERNSFTFFRF25%LE
‘EHFIEEES  BRERERX HE
B -NEBEFE- ﬁl%%%ﬁﬂ%
KRB EERRE ’ﬁﬁ%ﬂ = E
X -HEREHEZIES *Wﬁﬁ
TELRDERAEDE %A$%ITW
BUHTISEE T UIEETSETEE -
#— *%lm%ﬁﬁf’lﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂ
AEMGEREETSIELENRLMA -

HREBRHREMFZ AHELEXREYD
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TEEETEHEEXTFT  BATHEEE
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EREERMG EHRE  WREMNR
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AOERTEHEEEXN ZHERR - 1t
HEEXBUBREGREBEREPHRERESE L
KR HEFLHEXPOHMMKE  Fa]
%H%WE?L” W8N JRAE

BT HE REBEFE BRITEE2R
BRIHERR - MDA —KOBYERN

EEER ¥ & Ele saunda YREF - A
[E XM B 2 Be yourselfl B8 EZIE 2 @ B
BEMARKRBREEAET HEFEEHHIN
FARBFENTR ARKSFERBFE
XBH TG °



In addition to the active use of online channels, the Group
attaches great importance to its physical stores and
their high-quality services. In response to past market
conditions, the Group has improved its overall operational
efficiency by continuously integrating its experience in
offline marketing network and operational structure. Under
timely consideration, the Group has added new stores in
suitable department stores, shopping centers and outlets
in order to increase the opportunities for contact with
customers and enable them to experience high-quality
sales services.

The Board deeply believes that a company must meet
the needs and shopping experience of its consumers and
continuously optimise its operational efficiency. As a brand
with 45 years of history, Le Saunda has successfully
established itself in the retail and footwear market in Hong
Kong and Mainland China. By adopting a progressive yet
stable approach, it is able to cope with the uncertainty
of external environments. Although the Group has
temporarily closed all footwear stores in Hong Kong and
Macau, it will continue to identify suitable locations for re-
launching its footwear stores in Hong Kong and Macau
at the right time. Meanwhile, the Group developed a
new consumer goods business, the cosmetics business,
opened its first store in a traditional shopping area in
Hong Kong in April this year. The Group will continue
to seize any opportunity to create brand value for our
customers and to enhance the return on investment for
our shareholders with effective marketing strategies.

Last but not least, on behalf of the Board, | would like
to express my deepest gratitude to all our Shareholders,
business partners and customers for their continued
support, and to all our employees for their contributions,
as well as to the members of the Board for leading the
Group through this difficult year and into the challenging
new year!

James Ngai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 May 2022
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Operating Results

The Group is engaged in the design, development and
retailing of ladies’ and men’s footwear, handbags and
fashionable accessories in Mainland China, Hong Kong
and Macau. The major proprietary brands of the Group
include le saunda, le saunda MEN, LINEA ROSA, PITTI
DONNA and CNE, which aim to appeal to diversified
target customer groups with their distinctive product lines.

For the financial year 2021/22, the total revenue
of the Group decreased by 4.2% year-on-year to
RMB569,000,000 (2020/21: RMB594,200,000). The
consolidated gross profits increased by 0.7% year-on-year
to RMB357,900,000 (2020/21: RMB355,300,000), and the
overall gross profit margin increased by 3.1 percentage
points to 62.9% compared to that of the previous financial
year. For the year, the consolidated profit attributable to
owners of the Company amounted to RMB3,000,000
(2020/21: consolidated profit of RMB106,200,000).

B B o ww M A3 A

Bt %5 [0 B
RExRE
$%€EEPK|3"‘E FBMORPIEERET -
F'fﬂ?‘&% RERE  FREEHF

FETEKE 2 e 8 ¥ le saunda -
Ie saunda MEN - LINEA ROSA - PITTI
DONNA KR CNE ' AR EMNMER - B
EERNERERERE -

2O oo BB E B SE
BUEERLET K4LI2%E A Eﬁ%
569,000,0007c<: T/ —F: A
R #594,200,0007T) ° 2 & E F A t 18
h0.7% = A K ¥357,900,0007T (= 93 o
ﬁ/* — % A R #355,300,0007T) *
BETANEXEEFRPEASIER ‘Eﬁi
62 9% o AF - AR AE| = FA AR
& Fl A A R¥3,000,000t(ZE=F
——F : fxE M A K#%106,200,0007T) ©

& K

@II
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B B v i e g3 M

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED) Bt 7% [ 8 (1)
Operating Results (Continued) REXEE(E)
2021/22 2020/21 Change
RMB (million) AR% (BB ) —Eg--/-=- —E-%/-—— 2
Revenue g 569.0 594.2 (4.2%)
Gross profit EF 357.9 355.3 0.7%
Gross profit margin EVES 62.9% 590.8% 3.1 percentage
points
SIEEDE
Consolidated profit attributable BaBEAEGEKE 3.0 106.2
to owners il
Final dividend (HK cents) REARR S GEAL) - 15.0
Final special dividend (HK cents) REVR RIRR 8 CGEAL) - 35.0
Annual dividend pay-out ratio FFEREE N/A 323.3%
rER
Profitability Analysis B AR R 2 M
During the year under review, the global economy REEBEFEE G 2HRE&ELEESTIFET
continued to be impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic k% & COVID-19%& & (U* BHEE - M
(the “Pandemic”), while the economies of Mainland China, l AERBREELCRHERE TEM
Hong Kong and Macau continued to slow down and BE®EFEKBIFTE - KAEFAEIWZF

the pace of retail market recovery was also affected.
The Group’s total revenue decreased by 4.2% vyear-
on-year to RMB569,000,000. Nevertheless, the Group
recorded a gross profit of RMB357,900,000 (2020/21:
RMB355,300,000), representing a year-on-year increase
of 0.7%, and the gross profit margin increased to 62.9%,
representing an increase of 3.1 percentage points as
compared to last year.

The Group’s selling and distribution expenses for the
year increased by 8.1% year-on-year to RMB259,200,000
(2020/21: RMB239,800,000). The ratio of selling and
distribution expenses to total revenue increased by
5.2 percentage points to 45.6% (2020/21: 40.4%). The
increase in selling expenses was mainly due to the
increase in the Group’s sales staff costs following the
expiry of the local government’s concessionary policy in
the PRC in response to the Pandemic and the provisions
for certain retail stores’ leasehold improvements and the
right-of-use assets made during the year.

le saunda holdings Itd. %% & &7 FHEAR AR A 7

A bt~ #4.2% = A R #569,000,0007T °
MM AEEHRSE2FEMNERE LA
0.7% & A R#357,900,000C(ZE - &
——%%: A R #355,300,0007T) © & Fl =&
BREFEASIEBE D BEG2.9% °

REBFRNEER D AR L ENS1%
= AR #259,200,000(— 8 -F '~ —
& A R #239,800,0007T) 5 & K& 5
BT R W s (bt EF5 2B AN B E
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ERLATEAEEBEEETIRABE
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Profitability Analysis (Continued)

Under the Pandemic, the Group actively controlled its
general and administrative expenses in order to reduce its
daily operating cost. The Group closed its Shunde factory
last year, resulting in a one-off employee compensation
expense of approximately RMB37,400,000. Nonetheless,
the closure of the Shunde factory also helped reducing the
Group’s recurrent operating cost, resulting in a decrease
of 36.6% to RMB93,300,000 (2020/21: RMB147,300,000)
in general and administrative expenses for the year, which
outstripped the decrease in sales, and thus the general
and administrative expenses as a percentage of total
revenue decreased by 8.4 percentage points to 16.4%
(2020/21: 24.8%).

Other income decreased by 47.6% year-on-year to
RMB4,600,000 (2020/21: RMB8,800,000), which was
mainly due to the one-off incentives granted by local
governments in last year.

Other gains recorded a net gain of RMB8,500,000
(2020/21: RMB184,800,000). The decrease was mainly
attributable to the gain of RMB162,700,000, net of
direct expenses, recorded in last financial year that was
brought by the relocation compensation received as the
Group surrendered the land and building of its Shunde
factory to the local government in December 2020. Other
major item included in other gains represented foreign
exchange gain of approximately RMB9,200,000 (2020/21:
RMB9,400,000).

B v i e 43 T

HzriAZIElEE(nﬂ
2 F ik % 2 4 (&)
EEREBET AEEBEZEH —REITR

X WRABEEEER AEERE
FEBATIBEIE malB—REEE
B8 & 4 A R#37,400,0007T ° #A T 8
FIBEEIHRENRIEELCELEERR -
BYAFE-—RETBHRAIREFRHA
B 36.6%E A R¥93,300,000T(=ZF =
T~ — 4 A R#¥147,300,0007T) © H ¥
IEERHEKER Btk —MEITHRAX
HRIWENELE T E84MEE H 2 £16.4%
TE T —F:248%)°

HEMKRAREFRLBD476%E ARE

4,600,000 (Z 2 =T/ ——F: AR

8,800,0007T) * F E R K F W b 7 BUT &
— IR L o

H b i a8 8% 15 0% B8 Wz A R 8,500,000
T(ZZE=F,/=——F : AR¥184,800,000
e TREER_ZE_FTF+= Hx@
IBfE T T REF 45 T -
R—ENREEERENFBMHE Lléz
A R #162,700,0007T I A + &8 8f B & &
AR -EMBpst At kamEEEEAR
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B B v i e g3 M

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED) B 7% B B ()

Profitability Analysis (Continued) B R AR R 2 (48)

Consolidated profit attributable to owners of the Company AR AGI#EZFHH A FE (EEe5MAEAR

was RMB3,000,000 (2020/21: RMB106,200,000). The 3,000,000 (ZE_F /= —F: AR

basic earnings per share was RMBO0.42 cents (2020/21:  #106,200, OOOTE) lﬁxﬁ$/ﬁnﬂt”?’y}\ﬁ

RMB15.04 cents). 0429 (22T /——F: AR¥15.04
o) e

Income Tax Expense FriEBimx

During the year under review, income tax expense

REBFEFE FERAXHR/RARE

amounted to approximately RMB20,900,000 (2020/21: 20,900,000t (ZE -/ ——F: AR
RMB61,900,000), representing a decrease of 66.2%  61,900,0007%) * [ b 4°66.2% + = E A
year-on-year. The decrease was mainly attributable to AEXZFEB AR EBEHEESKNFBEES

the provisions made by the Group for corporate income
tax and related dividend withholding income tax arising
from the relocation compensation received last year.
Since 2012, all business entities of the Group in China
are subject to an income tax rate of 25%, while the profit
tax rate for operations in Hong Kong remains at 16.5%.
Pursuant to the Enterprise Income Tax Law of China,
a withholding income tax of 5% to 10% shall be levied
on the dividends remitted by a Chinese subsidiary to its
foreign parent company starting from 1 January 2008.

MEEMSHEEBNREEMMAEH
EHBIR - R-E——F AKEHME
EAEPI%«EEU%%&E”%%EWR S
FIeH BAXEBONGHMEHIFT
16.5%9’77}<:F BIBERBMEMEHE -
M-_ZZT/\F—A—HE #EHEEAQ
AIMBENTRAINREF A% E
10% B FEF AT 15 1% o

Inventory Management FEE®E
As at 28 February 2022, the Group’s inventory balance R-ZE-_—F_-A_-_+/\H xXEEHNF
=%

was RMB186,300,000, representing an increase of 22.1%
as compared to the last year.

& 8 5 A R 186,300,000t © B £ F
#HN221% o

A breakdown of inventory balance was as follows: FEAESGRHEMAND T :
As at As at
28 February 28 February Changes Changes
2022 2021 in value in %
—E-C —E-—fF
RMB (million) AR®(EER) “A=tNB ZA-TNH g8 R¥EhHk
Finished goods B m 186.3 152.6 337 22.1%

le saunda holdings Itd. %% & &7 FHEAR AR A 7



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Inventory Management (Continued)

Since the outbreak of the Pandemic in early 2020, the
Group has adopted a prudent inventory management
strategy. In the second half of previous financial year,
the Group had actively cleared off-season items that
resulted in a significant reduction in the proportion of
off-season items in the ending inventory of last financial
year. During the year under review, taking into account
of the anticipated increase in market demand after the
Pandemic, the Group had timely increased its order
for the next season items that led to a higher ending
inventory as at 28 February 2022. Nevertheless, the
Group will continue to maintain strict control over the
ageing of its inventory. The inventories of ageing one
year or less accounted for 71.4% of the ending balance
as at 28 February 2022 (28 February 2021: 47.2%). The
inventory turnover of finished goods also decreased by 24
days to 293 days for the year (2021: 317 days).

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group’s financial position remained very strong
and healthy. As at 28 February 2022, the Group’s cash
and bank balances amounted to RMB442,600,000
(28 February 2021: RMB754,900,000), representing a
decrease of 41.4% year-on-year. While the retail market
has not returned to the pre-pandemic level, the Group still
maintains sufficient cash flow. If necessary, the Group can
provide sufficient working capital for the Group through
banking facilities provided by its major banks in Hong
Kong, including but not limited to revolving loans and trade
finance, mainly at floating interest rates. At the end of the
financial year, the quick ratio was 3.8 times (28 February
2021: 7.2 times). During the year, the Group borrowed a
bank loan of RMB40,400,000. The balance of bank loan
as at the end of the financial year was RMB20,200,000
(28 February 2021: Nil). Forward contracts will be used, if
necessary, to hedge related debts and bank borrowings
arising from overseas purchases. In addition, the Group
did not enter into any forward contracts to hedge its
foreign exchange risks during the year.
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—+)\H: AR¥754,900,0007T) * [A L
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B B v i e 43 M

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Liquidity and Financial Resources (Continued)

During the year ended 28 February 2022, the Group’s
cash and bank balances were held in Hong Kong dollars,
US dollars and RMB, respectively and all deposits
maturing within one year were placed in leading banks.
With the Group’s steady cash inflow from its operations,
coupled with its existing cash and banking facilities, it has
adequate financial resources to fund its future needs in
development.

le saunda holdings Itd. Z&E &7 FHER A R A &
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW
Overview

The Pandemic has been raging around the world for
over two years and the global economy continued to
slow down. The Chinese government took swift action to
contain the Pandemic while implementing effective fiscal
and monetary policies to stimulate economic and social
development, resulting in a year-on-year growth of 8.1%
in gross domestic product (“GDP”) in 2021 and a two-
year average growth of 5.2%. However, in the second
half of the year, a new round of infections caused by new
variants in Nanjing, Beijing, Zhengzhou and other regions
was followed by stricter precautionary measures such as
citywide lockdowns, traffic restrictions and large-scale
screening tests, while the outbreak in Henan Province
was preceded by a severe flooding. The floods and
repeated outbreaks affected a number of key cities and
popular tourist cities, causing a slowdown in the growth of
industrial added value, investment and social consumption
after July, thus decelerating the pace of economic
recovery. As a result, GDP growth in the third and fourth
quarters of 2021 was only 4.9% and 4.0% year-on-year,
respectively, bringing down GDP growth for the whole of
2021.

B v i e 43 T
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B B v i e g3 M

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Overview (Continued)

During the year under review, offline activities were
subject to more restrictions due to precautionary
measures, while the Group made the most appropriate
arrangements in response to relevant measures to
optimise the online experience of customers, so as to
compensate for the impact of the Pandemic on offline
shopping. Such arrangements included tapping into
different social e-commerce platforms and expanding
online sales channels through the “livestream shopping”
model with internet celebrities; continuing to promote
the le saunda Y collection via online sales channels,
catering to the new shopping habits and preferences of
online customers developed as a result of the Pandemic;
upgrading the membership system to WeChat Mini
Program, enhancing member loyalty and experience,
while allowing more room for branding and marketing.
In an extremely challenging business environment, the
Group has always been innovative and proactive in
keeping pace with the market, injecting new elements into
the brand and offering outstanding products with a strong
personality to maintain the competitive edge and leading
position of the brand in the female footwear market. While
the Group achieved a double-digit sales growth in the first
quarter in line with the changing economic environment in
the PRC, annual retail revenue decreased by 4.2% year-
on-year to RMB569,000,000 (2020/21: RMB594,200,000)
as compared to last year, with annual same store sales
declining by 0.2% (2020/21: -10.5%) due to the impact of
the new round of infections and flooding in mid-July.

Retail Network

Mainland China is the key market of the Group’s retail
business. At the end of the year under review, the Group
had a retail network comprised of 389 stores in Mainland
China, the same number of stores as the last year. During
the year, the number of self-owned stores increased by 6
stores, while the number of franchised stores decreased
by 6 stores.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Retail Network (Continued)

As at 28 February 2022, there were 297 core brand le
saunda stores, the same number of stores as compared
to the end of last year. There were 34 LINEA ROSA stores,
the Group’s high-end fashionable brand, representing a
net decrease of 6 stores as compared to the end of last

financial year.

B v i e 43 T

XK OEE(E)

ZEPKD M (E)
RZE-__F-_A=-_+N\B  Z=ZbmEle
saundaE B297TR 54 - BREFE R
EETE: =5 S M LINEA ROSAJE
BHEREFRFHLIVOREIMR o

As at 28 February 2022, the breakdown of the Group’s R-ZE-_—_F-_A_-_+N \H £FEHNET
retail network was as follows: TERBOMBMT:
Self-owned Franchise Total
(Year-on-year (Year-on-year (Year-on-year
change) change) change)

Number of Outlets RHEE N E R kE @t
by Region EHER (REED) (REZED) (RE2E)
Mainland China B A B 353 (+11) 36 (-6) 389 (+5)
o Northern, Northeastern & o It B KA

Northwestern Regions 91 (+10) 33 (-4) 124 (+6)
¢ Eastern Region o RE 116 (0) 1 (1) 17 (1)
o Central and Southwestern o HE LA F

Regions 65 () 2 (1) 67 (-1)
¢ Southern Region o B 81 (+1) 0 0) 81 (+1)
Hong Kong and Macau ENC AN 0 (-5) - - 0 (-5)
Total By 353 (+6) 36 (-6) 389 (0)
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Mainland China
Retail Business

China’s total retail sales of consumer goods grew by
12.5% year-on-year in 2021, with a two-year average
growth rate of 3.9%. In the first half of the year, people
have basically returned to a normal pace of life. The
recovery in consumption was supported by a double-
digit growth in per capita income, resulting in a growth
rate of 12.7% in the retail sales of consumer goods in the
garments, footwear, hats and knitwear category, which
was slightly higher than the growth rate of the overall retail
sales of consumer goods. However, due to the impact of
a new round of infections since mid-July, China has once
again imposed citywide lockdowns, travel restrictions
and large-scale screening tests, which greatly reduced
citizens’ spending desire. The physical stores of the Group
in affected areas were forced to close temporarily, which
directly affected their performance. Under this situation,
the Group’s retail performance in Mainland China was
fluctuating throughout the year. During the year under
review, the retail sales in Mainland China decreased by
3.9% to RMB560,700,000 (2020/21: RMB583,600,000).

The evolution of the Pandemic and the associated
domestic control and prevention measures facilitated
the development of online shopping, self-service
consumption and the concept of community retail circle.
As customers can place orders from different sales
channels, the interaction between physical stores and
customers has become more remote, thus increasing the
costs of acquiring new customers and also increasing
the difficulty of building brand loyalty. In response to
such a rapidly changing retail market with more channels
available to consumers, the Group has complemented the
development of online and offline channels to provide both
a quality in-store experience and comprehensive online
customer services to the customers in a balanced way. On
the one hand, we are actively promoting online sales and
enhancing online interaction and contact with customers;
on the other hand, we are continuously reviewing the
network of our physical stores, closing inefficient ones
and opening new ones in suitable department stores,
shopping centres and outlets, and through strengthening
our partnership with operators to enhance our store
efficiency and same-store sales growth.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Mainland China (Continued)
E-Commerce Business

In a pandemic-blighted environment, it is the general
trend that consumers continue to spend online. In 2021,
online retail sales of physical goods (wearing goods)
increased by 8.3%. According to the data released by
the National Bureau of Statistics, the ratio of online retail
sales of physical goods to total retail sales of consumer
goods has increased from 10.8% in 2015 to 24.5% in
2021. In fact, the online market has become increasingly
competitive and the market demand has been refined,
with e-commerce platforms and e-commerce operators
launching different promotional strategies to attract
consumers. Consumers’ demands have become more
personalised as consumers can choose from a wide
range of brands online at any time, which makes them
less loyal to brands. As a result, the costs of acquiring
new customers and operating costs of merchants in the
e-commerce market continue to increase. However, the
Group has adopted a diversified online channel to reduce
its cost of running e-commerce business.

Amid the Pandemic in recent years, social e-commerce
has become a fast-growing market segment. During
the year, the Group ventured into social e-commerce
and interacted with customers through various social
media platforms, including but not limited to Douyin
and Taobao Live, and promoted the Group’s products
through “live streaming” by collaborating with Li Jiaqi,
a top-tier e-commerce online anchor, to effectively
promote the merits and features of the Group’s products
and thereby increasing the exposure of the le saunda
brand. During the year, in order to expand the le saunda
brand’s customer base, the Group continued to promote
the le saunda Y collection, which targets the clothing
preferences of young fashion consumers. However, due
to the impact of the new round of infections and natural
disasters, during the year under review, revenue from the
e-commerce business decreased by 4.8% year-on-year.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Mainland China (Continued)
E-Commerce Business (Continued)

In a business environment where the Pandemic keep
occurring, consumers are becoming more dependent on
shopping online. The Group has promoted the integration
of online and offline channels, optimised the supply chain
to ensure stable online supply, accelerated the launching
of new products and provided customers with quality
and reliable online products and pre-sales and after-sales
services.

Hong Kong and Macau

Hong Kong’s real GDP grew by 6.4% year-on-year
in 2021 and its economic activity began to pick up.
However, after two years of its border being closed, the
number of visitors to Hong Kong, both from Mainland
China and overseas, has dropped significantly. Despite
the series of relief measures provided by the Hong Kong
and Macau governments to merchants, the retail, tourism
and shipping industries are still in a difficult stage due to
the ongoing Pandemic and the Group’s retail operations
in Hong Kong and Macau are still below expectation.
The Group has temporarily closed all footwear stores in
Hong Kong and Macau during the year. During the year
under review, the Group’s sales in Hong Kong and Macau
decreased by 21.8% year-on-year to RMB8&,300,000
(2020/21: RMB10,600,000).
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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OUTLOOK AND LONG-TERM STRATEGIES OF THE
GROUP

As the world continues to be affected by the variants
and the intensifying international political conflicts,
business models and corporate business strategies are
being tested and re-evaluated. The Chinese government
will continue to expand domestic demand, increase
national income and boost national consumption. The
launch of the 102 key projects identified in the “14th
Five-Year Plan” and the increase in fiscal and monetary
investment support will facilitate a steady recovery in
fixed asset investment, which will keep the real economy
on an upward trajectory. In the face of the ever-changing
business environment, the Group decided to reposition
its role in the supply chain last year to focus on product
design and development as a pure brand owner, so as
to meet customers’ demand for quality products and to
provide quality services both online and offline.

At the end of the year, the central government introduced
stricter pandemic prevention policies because the
more infectious Omicron variant severely weakened
the vaccine’s protection against the novel coronavirus,
causing a new wave of outbreaks. As a result, one of
the Group’s key areas of development is inevitably the
e-commerce market, especially as the Pandemic in recent
years has created a new norm of online shopping and
spending. E-commerce users are on the rise, and per
capita spending continues to grow, especially among
young customers who have strong spending power. They
value information and opinions on social media, and will
refer to other users’ personal reviews or recommendations
before making purchases, which means the social
e-commerce market has great potential for development.
Apart from focusing on several mainstream e-commerce
platforms, including Douyin, Taobao Live, Xiaohongshu
and Weibo to promote and sell its products, the Group
will continue to proactively look for social media platforms
and internet celebrities that match the brand image to
promote new products and speed up the sale of last
season’s products, and to softly promote the le saunda
brand through live sharing by internet celebrities to
achieve greater brand awareness and accelerate market
penetration. In addition, through the VIP Mini Program, we
can enhance our membership service, increase customer
loyalty and also improve interaction with customers in
order to deepen their awareness and impression of the
brand.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OUTLOOK AND LONG-TERM STRATEGIES OF THE
GROUP (CONTINUED)

The Group expects the Pandemic to be quite volatile in
the near future. Although the Chinese government has
accumulated experience in fighting the Pandemic and
its population has been vaccinated on a large scale, it is
believed that the recovery of domestic consumption in
China is still facing a lot of uncertainties. The Group will
continue to use its online and offline channels to enhance
their synergies and further improve its competitiveness to
achieve higher than expected performance. Through the
increasingly popular livestreaming force to support online
sales and to maximise the potential of the online business,
the Group will expand its loyalty customer base and drive
repeat purchases from these loyal members. The offline
physical stores will focus on providing professional retail
services, and with our brand image established by sales
teams and physical stores over the years, customers
will be advised on clothing styles and knowledge of
product care, so that they can have a satisfying shopping
experience. In the meantime, we will integrate offline
customers into online buying power, with the goal of
accelerating growth and increasing sales revenue in the
coming year.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B B v i e g3 M

OUTLOOK AND LONG-TERM STRATEGIES OF THE
GROUP (CONTINUED)

Since the last financial year, the Group has changed
from self-owned factory production to full external
procurement, operating through an “asset-light” model,
and more efficiently concentrating and using its resources
in product design and brand management. Looking
forward to the next year, with the gradual improvement of
the marketing environment and the accelerated turnover
of goods, the Group’s profitability is expected to improve.
With the existing extensive experience in procurement
and supply chain management, the Group strives to
optimise the entire product design and development cycle
and expedites the arrival of new products for customers
to choose from. The Group will also strive to improve
warehouse management efficiency, including optimising
the receipt and despatch processes and improving the
use of inventory space to reduce the occupation of third-
party warehouses, thus reducing the related logistics
costs. We will continue to review our sales network and
operational structure, such as opening stores in high-
traffic commercial areas, closing inefficient ones, and
actively using information technology tools in our workflow
to minimise operating costs and expenses. In addition,
the Group places great emphasis on human resources
management and will continue to attract more talents to
enrich its corporate knowledge pool and pave the way for
future diversification.

In anticipation of the rising demand for consumer social
goods in Hong Kong and Macau, the Group opened its
first store in a traditional shopping area in Hong Kong in
April this year to run a new consumer goods business, the
cosmetics business, and will proactively in developing its
online retailing business as well. Through marketing other
consumer social goods related products, it is expected
that our brand awareness will be enhanced and the
synergy amongst the Group’s brands will be created. The
Group is continuously exploring new opportunities in the
coming year and will continue to grasp the development
potentials to boost the competitiveness of the brand.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OUTLOOK AND LONG-TERM STRATEGIES OF THE
GROUP (CONTINUED)

Le Saunda is a renowned footwear retailer in the market.
The management will continue to adopt a flexible
marketing strategy to consolidate its leading position in
the female footwear market, expand its coverage in China,
enhance its brand influence and achieve better results
in a challenging and opportunistic retail environment.
The Group will continue to employ a progressive yet
stable approach to create the highest returns for each
shareholder.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 28 February 2022, bank deposit of RMB600,000 (28
February 2021: RMB700,000) has been pledged as rental
deposit for a subsidiary of the Company.

CORPORATE GUARANTEES

The Company has given corporate guarantees in favour of
banks for banking facilities granted to certain subsidiaries
on letters of credit and bank loans to the extent of
RMB64,600,000 (28 February 2021: RMB96,000,000), of
which RMB20,800,000 (28 February 2021: RMB700,000)
was utilised as at 28 February 2022.

DIVIDEND

The Board has not recommended to declare a final
dividend and a final special dividend for the year ended
28 February 2022 (28 February 2021: a final dividend
of HK15.0 cents per ordinary share and a final special
dividend of HK35.0 cents per ordinary share).

No interim dividend and interim special dividend were paid
for the six months ended 31 August 2021. (six months
ended 31 August 2020: an interim special dividend of
HK5.0 cents per ordinary share).
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B B v i e g3 M

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 28 February 2022, the Group had a full-time
staff force of 1,342 people (28 February 2021: 1,403
people). Of this number, 19 were based in Hong Kong
and 1,323 in Mainland China. The remuneration level of
the Group’s employees was in line with market trends
and commensurate to the levels of pay in the industry.
Remuneration of the Group’s employees comprised
basic salaries, bonuses and long-term incentives. Total
employee benefit expenses for the twelve months ended
28 February 2022, including Directors’ emoluments,
net pension contributions and the value of employee
services, amounted to RMB147,900,000 (2020/21:
RMB196,700,000). The Group has all along organised
structured and diversified training programmes for staff
at different levels. Outside consultants will be invited to
broaden the contents of the training programmes.

BEERFMEEK
RZEZZF-_A=Z+N\B KAEEHF
mw%iﬁﬁaLﬁ——i A=+N

:1,403%EE) - HP - 1IOAFREE -
m%A% FEXE - NEE 2B %
B EamisEE - MR HESKFERE -
AEEZREREFHNEEEAT S £2
NEHRBRE BE_T-__F=-H
“+tNBE+tZ@AZERERF AL B
(BREEMWE  RARSERFERESR
iR B E) & AR ¥147,900,000t (ZE =
=T/~ —4: A R#196,700,0007T) ° AN 5%
EATRABREEREREZ2EIE -
AN 5 E JR R EE O SRR TS PR T B A Hn og 1S
B2 AR -

le saunda holdings Itd. Z&E &7 FHER AR A A



BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Chui Kwan Ho, Jacky, aged 58, first joined the Group
in 1981 and was appointed as an Executive Director of
the Company in September 1992 and left the Group
in September 2010. She re-joined the Group in April
2016. She is an Executive Director of the Company
and acts as a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. Ms. Chui is responsible for the Group’s supply
chain management, product design and development,
retail, e-commerce and franchise operation, business
development and brand management. She has over 36
years of experience on retail and product management.
Prior to re-joining the Group, she was the chief executive
officer in a renowned handbag company in Mainland
China and was responsible for footwear products
development, manufacturing management and retail
operations.

Li Wing Yeung, Peter, aged 63, joined the Group in
January 2000 and was appointed as an Executive Director
of the Company in January 2020. He is responsible for the
development and quality control of the Group’s products.
He also acts as a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr. Li has over 16 years of experience in
product management. He is the son of Mr. Lee Tze Bun,
Marces, a controlling shareholder of the Company and the
brother-in-law of Ms. Liu Tsz Yan, an executive director of
the Company.

Liu Tsz Yan, aged 36, joined the Group in April 2022
and is responsible for the Group’s human resources
and administration functions. Ms. Liu graduated from
University of Adelaide with a Bachelor's degree in
Economics and a Master’s degree in Wine Business. She
is @ member of Rotary Club Central. Ms. Liu has over 8
years of experience in marketing and human resources
areas. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Liu was the
marketing manager of a catering company in Hong Kong.
She is the daughter-in-law of Mr. Lee Tze Bun, Marces, a
controlling shareholder of the Company and the sister-in-
law of Mr. Li Wing Yeung, Peter, an executive director of
the Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EHRGLREEEHEAR

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

James Ngai, aged 59, joined the Group in March
2011. He is a Non-Executive Director of the Company,
the Chairman of the board of the Company (the
“Board”) and a member of the remuneration committee
(the “Remuneration Committee”) and the nomination
committee (the “Nomination Committee”) of the Board.
He is responsible for the Group’s leadership and
management of the Board and the Group’s strategy.
Mr. Ngai graduated from University of Toronto with a
Bachelor’s degree in Economics. He is a Certified Public
Accountant (Practising) in Hong Kong and a member of
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is
also a fellow member of The Taxation Institute of Hong
Kong. He has over 30 years of experience in accounting,
auditing and taxation matters. Mr. Ngai is a director of
Stable Gain Holdings Limited (“Stable Gain”) which has
an interest in the shares of the Company which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO”). He is also an independent non-
executive director of Max Sight Group Holdings Limited,
the shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

le saunda holdings Itd. Z&E &7 FHERE A R A A

FHITES

REE A+ RZZE——F=AM
AREE - FRAARAB ZERTES - K
AREEE(EFEgDER UKEES
2EFEHNEZEe((FMEZEES)NRREREESR
g((RBZEEI)CKE - HBEEER
SELREEEEE  WHIFIANEEARE
REEZERZBERE - UMELE
BLEN -FAEENESA UK
BEEGHMAGREESHAMAGLEE -
RNAEENBEGERGE - B EY
BB EEERA T FLR -
it % & % Stable Gain Holdings Limited
([Stable Gain) (AR A QA Z R HHEE
BEEHRAEGKRIN(ESRBERKRH])
FEXVERFE2R FE3D B0 2 & X AR AR T
BERIER)ZCEE BENTRABHLRIES
EIEBRBERAR(ZARZESFNE BB
ERGABR AT LW 2B
TIHITES o



BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Lam Siu Lun, Simon, aged 73, joined the Group in
January 2006. He is an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company, the chairman of the audit
committee (the “Audit Committee”) of the Board and
the Remuneration Committee and a member of the
Nomination Committee. Mr. Lam graduated from The
University of Hong Kong in 1973. After graduation, he
worked at KPMG London and Hong Kong and obtained
his qualification as a chartered accountant and certified
public accountant from The Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales and Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants respectively. Mr.
Lam has been a practising accountant for over 30 years
and is the proprietor of Messrs. S. L. Lam & Company.
He has served as a member of Insider Dealing Tribunal on
a number of occasions. Mr. Lam is also an independent
non-executive director of Lifestyle International Holdings
Limited, the shares of which are listed on the Stock
Exchange. He was previously an independent non-
executive director of Sansheng Holdings (Group) Co. Ltd.
(formerly known as Lifestyle Properties Development
Limited), the shares of which are listed on the Stock
Exchange.

Leung Wai Ki, George, aged 64, joined the Group in
September 2004. He is an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company and a member of the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee. Mr. Leung has over 34 years of
experience in accounting, financial management, auditing
and receivership. He is a director and financial controller
of a real estate development company in Hong Kong.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EHRGLREEEHEAR

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

Hui Chi Kwan, aged 73, joined the Group in November
2007. He is an Independent Non-Executive Director of the
Company, the chairman of the Nomination Committee and
a member of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration
Committee. Mr. Hui graduated from The University of
Hong Kong with a Bachelor’s degree in Laws in 1980 and
has been a solicitor practicing in Hong Kong since 1983.
Before joining the Group, Mr. Hui was a partner of a law
firm in Hong Kong. He retired from the partnership in
2007 and remained as a consultant of the said law firm.
Mr. Hui is also an independent non-executive director of
Max Sight Group Holdings Limited, the shares of which
are listed on the Stock Exchange.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Chan Tsz Lok, aged 46, joined the Group in August
2009. He is the Chief Financial Officer and Company
Secretary of the Company and is responsible for the
Group’s financial control and accounting, treasury, tax,
legal and company secretarial matters. Mr. Chan holds
a Master degree of Science in Financial Management
from Heriot Watt University, UK and is a fellow member
of Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in the
UK. He has over 24 years of experience in internal control,
financial management and accounting. Prior to joining
the Group, he has held senior positions in a multinational
corporation and manufacturing groups listed on the Stock
Exchange.

Li Ying Ying, aged 53, joined the Group in September
1997. She is the General Manager (Southern China) of the
Group and is responsible for the Group’s retail business
operations in the southern region of Mainland China.
Ms. Li has over 25 years of retail experience in Mainland
China.

Xiao Kun Min, aged 47, joined the Group in March 2004.
She is the General Manager (Southwestern China) of the
Group and is responsible for the Group’s retail business
operations in southwestern region of Mainland China. Ms.
Xiao has over 26 years of retail experience in Mainland
China.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Le Saunda Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) is committed
to achieving and maintaining the highest standard of
corporate governance. The Board and its management
understand that it is their responsibility to establish a
good corporate management system and practice and
strictly comply with the principles of independence,
accountability, responsibility and impartiality so as to
improve the operation transparency of the Company,
protect the interests of shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) and create value for the Shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

During the year, the Company has complied with the
code provisions of, and applied the principles in, the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set
out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), except for
deviation from code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code which
stipulates that the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive
should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual. Since October 2019, the position of
Chief Executive Officer has been vacant. The Company
is in the process of identifying a suitable candidate to fill
the position of Chief Executive Officer and the role and
responsibility of the Chief Executive Officer are being
performed by other Executive Directors of the Company
for the time being.

The Board will continue to enhance the Group’s corporate
governance practices appropriate to the conduct and
growth of the Group’s business and to review such
practices from time to time to ensure that they comply
with statutory and professional standards and align with
the latest developments.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is committed to providing effective and
responsible leadership for the Company. The Directors,
individually and collectively, must act in good faith in the
best interests of the Company and its shareholders.

Board Composition

During the year ended 28 February 2022, the Board
comprised three Executive Directors, one Non-Executive
Director and three Independent Non-Executive Directors.
The Board has established three board committees,
namely the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”),
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”)
and nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”),
to oversee different areas of the Company’s affairs. The
composition of the Board and the board committees are
given below and their respective responsibilities and work
performed during the year are discussed elsewhere in this
report.

During the year ended 28 February 2022 and up to the
date of this report, the Board comprises the following
members:

Executive Directors
Ms. Chui Kwan Ho, Jacky
Mr. Li Wing Yeung, Peter
Ms. Liu Tsz Yan
(appointed with effect from 25 April 2022)
Ms. Liao Jian Yu
(resigned with effect from 1 May 2022)

Non-Executive Director

Mr. James Ngai (Chairman)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon
Mr. Leung Wai Ki, George
Mr. Hui Chi Kwan
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
Board Composition (Continued)

There is no relationship (including financial, business,
family or other material relationships) among members of
the Board, except that:

(@ Mr. James Ngai is a director of an accounting firm
which provides advisory and audit services to private
companies owned by Mr. Lee Tze Bun, Marces, a
controlling shareholder of the Company;

(b) Both Mr. Lee Tze Bun, Marces and Mr. James Ngai
are the directors of Stable Gain Holdings Limited
(“Stable Gain”), a controlling shareholder of the
Company. The entire issued share capital of Stable
Gain was registered in the name of Stable Profit
Holdings Limited (“Stable Profit”), a company wholly-
owned by HSBC International Trustee Limited (“HSBC
Trustee”) which acted as trustee of Lee Tze Bun
Family Trust (the “LTB Family Trust”), a discretionary
trust, of which Mr. Lee Tze Bun, Marces was the
founder and an eligible beneficiary thereunder. Mr.
Lee Tze Bun, Marces was also the sole director of
Stable Profit;

() Mr. Li Wing Yeung, Peter, the son of Mr. Lee Tze
Bun, Marces and brother-in-law of Ms. Liu Tsz Yan,
is a trustee of The Lee Keung Charitable Foundation
(“Charitable Foundation”), of which Mr. Lee Tze Bun,
Marces is the founder;

(d) Ms. Liu Tsz Yan is the daugher-in-law of Mr. Lee Tze
Bun, Marces and the sister-in-law of Mr. Li Wing
Yeung, Peter; and

() Both Mr. James Ngai and Mr. Hui Chi Kwan are
independent non-executive directors of Max Sight
Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 08483).

The biographical details of each Director are set out
in the section headed “Board of Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 33 to 36 of this report.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
Board Composition (Continued)

Each Director possesses the necessary expertise
and experience and provides checks and balances
for safeguarding the interests of the Group and
the Shareholders as a whole. During the year, the
Independent Non-Executive Directors have brought
independent judgment on issues relating to the Group’s
strategy, performance and management process,
taking into account the interests of all Shareholders.
Notwithstanding the fact that each of the Independent
Non-Executive Directors has served as an independent
non-executive director of the Company for more than 9
years, the Board is satisfied that they are still independent
in discharging their duties as required. Their active
participation in the Board and committee meetings in
the past have demonstrated their abilities to exercise
independent judgement and to provide an objective and
balanced view in relation to the affairs of the Company.
Their individual expertise and extensive experience in their
respective fields have continued to provide diverse and
valuable advice to the Board from different perspectives.
In addition, all of them possess the required character,
integrity and familiarity with the Group’s business and
culture to safeguard the interests of the Company and the
Shareholders as a whole.

During the year and up to the date of this report, the
Company has three Independent Non-Executive Directors
representing not less than one-third of the Board. Mr. Lam
Siu Lun, Simon, one of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors, has the appropriate professional qualifications,
or accounting or related financial management expertise
as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules. The
Company has received from each of the Independent
Non-Executive Directors a written confirmation of
his independence and has satisfied itself of such
independence in accordance with the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Whilst
Mr. James Ngai and Mr. Hui Chi Kwan are directors of
both the Company and Max Sight Group Holdings Limited
(stock code: 08483) and thus hold cross-directorships, the
Board determines that Mr. Hui Chi Kwan is nevertheless
independent with respect to his directorship at the
Company since Mr. James Ngai and Mr. Hui Chi Kwan
hold only non-executive roles at both companies and have
no interest in both companies as disclosed under Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
Board Meetings

The Board conducts meetings on a regular basis and on
an ad hoc basis of at least four times a year to discuss
the overall strategy as well as the operational and financial
performance of the Group, and to review and approve
the Group’s annual and interim results. The Board
members are served with notices of at least 14 days and
provided with all agendas and adequate information for
their review at least 3 days before the meetings. After
the meetings, draft minutes are circulated to all Directors
for comments before confirmation and sign-off. Minutes
of board meetings and meetings of board committees
are kept by the company secretary of the Company (the
“Company Secretary”) and are available for inspection by
any Director at any reasonable time on reasonable notice.
Each Director is entitled to seek independent professional
advice under appropriate circumstances at the expense of
the Company. During the year, the Board held 6 physical
meetings and 4 written resolutions were signed and
passed by all Directors. The attendance records of each
Director at the Board meetings are set out on page 55 of
this report.

Responsibilities and Delegation

The Board is accountable to the Shareholders for the
development of the Group with the goal of maximising
Shareholders’ value in the long run. The Board also takes
the responsibility for the overall strategies and policies
of the Group, approves and monitors the strategic
plans, investment and funding decisions, and reviews
the Group’s financial and operational performance and
internal controls. The Group’s day-to-day operations and
administration are overseen by the Executive Directors
and the management.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
Responsibilities and Delegation (Continued)

The Board is responsible for setting the strategic
direction and policies of the Group and supervising the
management of the Company. Some functions including
the monitoring and approval of material transactions,
matters involving a conflict of interest for a substantial
Shareholder or Director of the Company, the approval
of interim and annual results, declaration of interim
dividends and proposal of final dividends and other
disclosures to the public or regulators are reserved by
the Board for consideration and approval. Matters not
specifically reserved to the Board and necessary for the
daily management and operation of the Company are
delegated to the Executive Directors and the management
of the Company.

Directors’ Training

The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. The Company would provide a
comprehensive induction package covering the summary
of the operations and business, constitutional documents,
the latest published financial reports of the Company,
“A Guide on Directors’ Duties” issued by the Companies
Registry of Hong Kong and the Guidelines for Directors
and the Guide for Independent Non-Executive Directors
published by the Hong Kong Institute of Directors to
each newly appointed Director to ensure that he/she is
sufficiently aware of his/her responsibilities and obligations
under the Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.

The Company Secretary reports from time to time the
latest changes and development of the Listing Rules,
corporate governance practices, environmental, social
and governance (“ESG”) issues and other regulatory
regime to the Directors with written materials, as well as
organising seminars on the professional knowledge and
latest development of regulatory requirements related to
Directors’ duties and responsibilities.
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Directors’ Training (Continued)
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During the year and up to the date of this report, all RAFEARBEEARERE  FIEES
Directors pursued continuous professional development HAEZRXHFEFZELRE LS HEBEE R

and relevant details are set out below: Bl gn s -
Types of training
Name of Directors EENR 3= 3 58 A
Executive Directors: HITES:
Ms. Chui Kwan Ho, Jacky wEHZ L B
Ms. Liao Jian Yu B2+
(resigned with effect from 1 May 2022) (BE=—FE-——FAHA—HE
FFIT) A
Mr. Li Wing Yeung, Peter FxBEE A, B
Ms. Liu Tsz Yan BIFEAZ LT
(appointed with effect from 25 April 2022) (BE=FE=-—FWWA=—+H
H it & Z (T) A B
Non-Executive Director: EHITES:
Mr. James Ngai ¥ S E A, B
Independent Non-Executive Directors: BYFHTES:
Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon MRIK B o £ A B
Mr. Leung Wai Ki, George REELSE A, B
Mr. Hui Chi Kwan PR A A, B
Remarks: AR

A — Attending seminars/conferences/forums
B — Reading journals/updates/articles/materials

Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance

A—HERNE E%WiE
B— MEMT &MEN XE/EH

EERERABEEERE

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and ARBELZHAB I EELa P AES
officers’ liability insurance coverage for indemnifying the (R AARIZEELSBRAERKSE
Directors and officers of the Company against costs, QARIZEKEAILEL ZKRA  H - B% -
charges, losses, expenses and liabilities incurred arising XN BEHERBERE -

out of the corporate activities.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The Board is responsible for selecting and appointing
individuals with integrity, experience and caliber to act as
Directors. The Board reviews the profiles of the candidates
and seeks recommendations from the Nomination
Committee on the appointment and re-election of the
Directors.

According to bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-Laws”),
each Director so appointed by the Board to fill a casual
vacancy on or as an addition to the Board shall hold office
only until the first annual general meeting (the “AGM”)
of the Company after his appointment and shall then be
eligible for re-election at such meeting. Moreover, one-
third of the Directors for the time being, (or, if their number
is not a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but
not less than one-third), shall retire from office by rotation,
provided that every Director (including those appointed for
a specific term) shall retire from office by rotation no later
than the third AGM after he was last elected or re-elected.
The rotating Directors who are subject to retirement and
re-election at the forthcoming AGM are set out on page
111 of this report.

All Non-Executive Directors (including the Independent
Non-Executive Directors) of the Company were appointed
for a specific term of 2 years but subject to the relevant
provisions of the Bye-Laws or any other applicable laws
whereby the Directors shall vacate or retire from their
office but be eligible for re-election.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

In order to maintain a balance of power and authority, the
roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company are segregated and assumed by separate
individuals who have no relationship with each other.
During the year, Mr. James Ngai, being the Chairman
of the Board, is responsible for overseeing the function
of the Board and formulating overall strategies and
policies of the Company and ensuring that all Directors
are properly briefed on issues arising at the Board
meetings and receive adequate information, which must
be complete and reliable, in a timely manner. On the
other hand the Chief Executive Officer is responsible for
the implementation of the Company’s overall strategies
and coordination of overall business operation. However,
the position of Chief Executive Officer has been vacant
since October 2019. The Company is still in the process
of identifying a suitable candidate to fill the position of
Chief Executive Officer and the role and responsibility of
the Chief Executive Officer are being performed by other
Executive Directors of the Company in the meantime. The
day-to-day operations and administration of the Group are
delegated to the Executive Directors and the management
responsible for different aspects of the business.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company has established three board committees,
namely the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee, to oversee
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs and to
assist in the execution of the Board’s responsibilities. All
board committees have clear and specific written terms
of reference, report their work to the Board after each
meeting and are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their respective duties. Copies of minutes of all
meetings and written resolutions passed at the board
committees are kept by the Company Secretary.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established with written
terms of reference (as amended) since 1999. As at 28
February 2022 and up to the date of this report, the Audit
Committee comprises three Independent Non-Executive
Directors, namely Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon (chairman of
the Audit Committee), Mr. Leung Wai Ki, George and
Mr. Hui Chi Kwan. Mr. Lam has appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise as required under Rule 3.21 of the
Listing Rules.

The primary functions and duties of the Audit Committee
are to recommend the appointment, re-appointment and
removal of the external auditor, oversee the integrity of
financial information of the Company and its disclosure,
provide independent review of the effectiveness of the
financial controls, risk management and internal control
systems of the Group, and review the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group. The full
terms of reference of the Audit Committee are posted on
the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

During the year, the Audit Committee held 5 physical
meetings with the external auditor, internal auditor and
independent consultants. The Chairman of the Board
and the Chief Financial Officer were invited to attend the
meetings. In addition, 2 written resolutions were signed
and passed by all members of the Audit Committee.
The attendance records of each member of the Audit
Committee are set out on page 55 of this report. A
summary of work performed by the Audit Committee
during the year was as follows:

(i) review of the audit plan, terms of engagement,
independence and qualification of the external auditor
and the remuneration paid to the external auditor;

(i) review of the financial information of the Group
including the annual and interim financial statements
and related documents before submission to the
Board for approval;

(iii) review of the management letters and reports issued
by the external auditor;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
Audit Committee (Continued)

(iv) review of accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group and the potential impacts of
the change in accounting standards to the Group’s
financial statements;

(v) review of the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group; and

(vi) review of the internal audit reports prepared by
an independent consulting firm in respect of the
effectiveness of the financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management of the
Group twice a year.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established with
written terms of reference (as amended) since 2005. As
at 28 February 2022 and up to the date of this report, the
Remuneration Committee comprises three Independent
Non-Executive Directors, namely Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon
(chairman of the Remuneration Committee), Mr. Leung Wai
Ki, George and Mr. Hui Chi Kwan, and one Non-Executive
Director, namely Mr. James Ngai.

The primary functions and duties of the Remuneration
Committee are to make recommendations to the Board
on the Company’s policy and structure for remuneration
of all Directors and senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing remuneration policy, determine the terms
of specific remuneration package of the Executive
Directors and senior management, and review and
approve the performance-based remuneration proposals
with reference to the corporate goals and objectives
resolved by the Board from time to time. The full terms of
reference of the Remuneration Committee are posted on
the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
Remuneration Committee (Continued)

During the year, the Remuneration Committee held
1 physical meeting. The attendance records of each
member of the Remuneration Committee are set out on
page 55 of this report. In the meeting, the Remuneration
Committee (i) reviewed the remuneration of the Executive
Directors and senior management of the Company; (i)
approved performance-based remuneration with reference
to the corporate goals and objectives resolved by the
Board and/or the senior management from time to time;
and (i) ensured that no Director or senior management
or any of his/her associates was involved in deciding his/
her own remuneration. Details of the emoluments for
Directors, chief executive and five highest paid individuals,
and senior management remuneration by band during the
year are set out in notes 10 and 11 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established with written
terms of reference (as amended) since 19 March 2012.
As at 28 February 2022 and up to the date of this report,
the Nomination Committee comprises three Independent
Non-Executive Directors, namely Mr. Hui Chi Kwan
(chairman of the Nomination Committee), Mr. Lam Siu
Lun, Simon and Mr. Leung Wai Ki, George, and one Non-
Executive Director, namely Mr. James Ngai.

The primary functions and duties of the Nomination
Committee are to review the structure, size and
composition (including the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board at least annually and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board
to complement the Company’s corporate strategies, and
identify individuals suitably qualified to become Directors
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorships. The
full terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are
posted on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
Nomination Committee (Continued)

During the year, the Nomination Committee held 1
physical meeting. The attendance records of each
member of the Nomination Committee are set out on
page 55 of this report. In the meeting, the Nomination
Committee (i) reviewed the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the
Board; (i) assessed the independence of the Independent
Non-Executive Directors; (iii) made recommendations
to the Board on the proposed re-election of the retiring
Directors at the forthcoming annual general meeting; and
(iv) reviewed the diversity of the Board’s composition.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board adopted a board diversity policy with the aim
of achieving diversity on the Company’s board of directors
in August 2013. The Company recognises the benefits of
having a diverse Board, and sees diversity of perspectives
at the Board level as essential in achieving a sustainable
and balanced development. In designing the Board’s
composition, Board diversity has been considered from
a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender,
age, educational background, professional experience,
skills, knowledge, industry experience and expertise.
All Board appointments are based on meritocracy,
and candidates will be considered against a variety of
criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on
the Board. The Nomination Committee will review this
policy, on an annual basis, to ensure the effectiveness of
this policy. The Nomination Committee will discuss any
revisions that may be required, and recommend any such
revisions to the Board for examination and approval.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
Nomination Committee (Continued)
Board Diversity Policy (Continued)

The Board contains individuals who have diverse
educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge, industry experience and expertise. Coming
from diverse business and professional backgrounds,
the Non-Executive Directors actively bring their valuable
experience to the Board for promoting the best interests
of the Company and the Shareholders. On the other
hand, the Independent Non-Executive Directors contribute
to ensuring that the interests of all Shareholders of the
Company are taken into account by the Board and that
relevant issues are subject to objective and dispassionate
consideration by the Board. The biographical details of
the Directors are set out on pages 33 to 36 of this report.
In implementing the board diversity policy, the Board aims
to have a balanced composition in each of the relevant
areas, but recognising at the same time that all Board
appointments must be based on meritocracy having
regard to the best interests of the Company and the
Shareholders.

Nomination Policy

In December 2018, the Board adopted a nomination
policy (the “Nomination Policy”) with the aim to set out
the criteria and procedures for the Nomination Committee
considering candidates to be appointed or re-appointed
as the Directors.

(1) The factors listed below will be considered in
assessing the suitability of a candidate:

(@) age, skills, knowledge, experience, expertise,
professional and educational qualifications,
background and other personal qualities of the

candidate;

(b) effect on the Board’s composition and diversity;
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

Nomination Policy (Continued)

(1) The factors listed below will be considered in
assessing the suitability of a candidate: (Continued)

©)

commitment of the candidate to devote
sufficient time to effectively discharge his/her
duties as a member of the Board and/or board
committee(s) of the Company. In this regard,
the number and nature of offices held by the
candidate in public companies or organisations,
and other executive appointments or significant
commitments will be considered;

scrutinising the Company’s performance
in achieving agreed corporate goals and
objectives, and monitoring the reporting of
performance;

independence of the candidate in accordance
with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules subject to its
amendments from time to time;

potential/actual conflicts of interest that may
arise if the candidate is selected;

in the case of a proposed re-appointment of
an Independent Non-Executive Director, the
number of years he/she has already served;

conforming to any requirement, direction
and regulation that may from time to time be
prescribed by the Board or contained in the
constitutional documents of the Company or
imposed by legislation or the Listing Rules,
where appropriate; and

other factors considered to be relevant by the
Nomination Committee on a case by case basis.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)
Nomination Committee (Continued)
Nomination Policy (Continued)

(2) Process of appointment of a new Director:

(@) the Nomination Committee and/or the Board
may select candidates for directorship from
various channels, including but not limited
to internal promotion, re-designation, referral
by other members of the management and
external recruitment agents, and should, upon
receipt of the proposal on appointment of a
new Director and the biographical information
(or relevant details) of the candidate, evaluate
such candidate based on the criteria as set out
above to determine whether such candidate
is qualified for directorship. If an Independent
Non-Executive Director is to be appointed, the
Nomination Committee and/or the Board will
also assess and consider whether the candidate
can satisfy the independence requirements as
set out in the Listing Rules;

(b) If the process yields one or more desirable
candidates, the Nomination Committee and/
or the Board should rank them by order of
preference based on the needs of the Company
and reference check of each candidate (where
applicable);

(¢ The Nomination Committee should then
recommend to the Board to appoint the
appropriate candidate for directorship, as
applicable; and

(d) For any person that is nominated by a
shareholder for election as a Director at
the general meeting of the Company, the
Nomination Committee and/or the Board should
evaluate such candidate based on the criteria
as set out above to determine whether such
candidate is qualified for directorship.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

Nomination Policy (Continued)

(3)

Re-election of Director at General Meeting:

(@)

The Nomination Committee and/or the
Board should review the overall contribution
and service to the Company of the retiring
Director and his/her level of participation and
performance on the Board,

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board
should also review and determine whether
the retiring Director continues to meet the
criteria as set out above. If an Independent
Non-Executive Director is subject to the re-
election, the Nomination Committee and/or the
Board will also assess and consider whether
the Independent Non-Executive Director
will continue to satisfy the independence
requirements as set out in the Listing Rules; and

The Nomination Committee and/or the
Board should then make recommendation to
shareholders of the Company in respect of the
proposed re-election of Director at the general
meeting.

Where the Board proposes a resolution to elect or re-
elect a candidate as Director at the general meeting, the
relevant information of the candidate will be disclosed
in the circular to shareholders of the Company and/or
explanatory statement accompanying the notice of the
relevant general meeting in accordance with the Listing
Rules and/or applicable laws and regulations.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED) EEZEE(H)

Nomination Committee (Continued) BEZEE=(EF)

Nomination Policy (Continued) EEHE (E)

The following graph provides an analysis on the WAREHE BEEEe2HAKEBENT
composition of the Board as at the date of this report: KoM

Number of Directors

EEHA
8
7
6
5
4
3
2
EDs
y WE Female 56-60 5
gl =
0
Designation Gender Age Group Directorship with the
Bz MR EES4A R Company (Number of years)
EEARRESHS(FH)
Remarks: FEAE -
EDs — Executive Directors HE - BITES
NEDs — Non-Executive Directors FHE — FPITES
INEDs — Independent Non-Executive Directors BUENE — BUERITES
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED) EEZES(H)

Attendance Records i FE 50 8%

The individual attendance records of each Director at HREEz—=ZE—-——F#—-HA—-+N\BIFFE
the physical meetings of the Board, Audit Committee, Ki% L2HEFECE BERLESE
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee and =% - T ZEE©c 3% - BELETES @5
the 2021 annual general meeting of the Company (“2021 &$ Az -ZE-—FRRAFR2 (=
AGM”) during the year ended 28 February 2022 are set Zx-_—FRFFFAS]) 2 HF L5 E
out below: N

A
& e
B =2
& i

Number of physical meetings attended/held during his/her tenure

g/ REARNET2 8 HE

Audit Remuneration  Nomination
Note Board Committee Committee Committee 2021 AGM
—E--%

ik 5 E0ZEE FMZEE REZEE REAEAE

Executive Directors: UrES:
Ms. Chui Kwan Ho, Jacky REFLL 6/6 N/A N/A N/A 1/1
TER rER TER
Ms. Liao Jian Yu BRRRT 6/6 N/A N/A N/A 11
(resigned with effect from 1 May 2009)  (6=F== TER TER TiER
BF-HEE)
Mr. Li Wing Yeung, Peter Bk 6/6 N/A N/A N/A 11
TER rER TER
Non-Executive Director: FUNES:
Mr. James Ngai REEEE 1 6/6 5/5 11 1 il
Independent Non-Executive BUIFHES:
Directors:
Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon mEkBELE 6/6 5/5 1 11 i
Mr. Leung Wai Ki, George PEELYE 6/6 5/5 11 11 11
Mr. Hui Chi Kwan FRBEE 6/6 5/5 11 1 1
Note: B it

1. Mr. James Ngai attended the Audit Committee meetings as an invitee. 1. RESEEAZBESNLEERZESEH -
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Company is committed to enhancing its corporate
governance practices relevant to the model and growth of
its business. In order to achieve a right balance between
governance and performance, the Board is responsible for
ensuring the application of the principles in the CG Code
and introducing and proposing other relevant principles
concerning corporate governance so as to enhance the
standard of corporate governance of the Company. The
Board is primarily responsible for performing the following
corporate governance functions adopted with written
terms of reference on 19 March 2012:

() to develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance;

(i) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior
management of the Group;

(i) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(iv) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
employees of the Group and the Directors; and

(v) to review the Company’s compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in the corporate governance
report.

The details of the corporate governance functions

reviewed and performed by the Board during the year are
further disclosed and explained elsewhere in this report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 28 February 2022, in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) and the
applicable disclosure requirements of the Listing Rules.
In preparing the financial statements, the Directors have
adopted HKFRSs and suitable accounting policies and
applied them consistently, made judgments and estimates
that are prudent, fair and reasonable and prepared the
financial statements on a going concern basis. The Board
is not aware of any material uncertainties relating to any
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern
in the course of preparing and reviewing the financial
statements for the year under review.

The reporting responsibilities of the external auditor of the
Company, PricewaterhouseCoopers, on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group are set out in the
section headed “Independent Auditor's Report” on pages
129 to 139 of this report.

There was no disagreement between the Board and the
Audit Committee on the re-appointment of the external
auditor of the Company.

Auditor’s Remuneration

For the year ended 28 February 2022, the fees in respect
of audit and non-audit services (the non-audit services
comprised of professional services and tax advisory
services only) provided to the Group by the external
auditor of the Company, PricewaterhouseCoopers,
amounted to approximately HK$1,800,000 (2020/21:
HK$1,700,000) and HK$126,000 (2020/21: HK$603,000)
respectively. The Audit Committee was of the view that
the non-audit services provided by the external auditor
of the Company did not impair its independence and
objectivity.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Yuen Chee Wing resigned and Mr. Chan Tsz Lok (“Mr.
Chan”) was appointed as the Company Secretary of the
Company on 1 September 2021. Mr. Chan is a fellow
member of Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
in UK. In his capacity as the Company Secretary,
Mr. Chan reports to the Board and is responsible for
advising the Board on corporate governance matters.
In compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Mr.
Chan took not less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training during the year.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
as its own code of conduct (the “Code of Conduct”)
regarding securities transactions by the Directors since
4 October 2005. The terms of the Code of Conduct are
no less exacting than the required standard in the Model
Code, and the Code of Conduct applies to all the relevant
persons as defined in the Code of Conduct, including the
Directors, any employee of the Company, or a Director
or employee of a subsidiary or holding company of the
Company, who, by reason of such office or employment,
are likely to be in possession of unpublished price
sensitive information in relation to the Company or its
securities.

Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the Code of
Conduct and the required standard set out in the Model
Code during the year ended 28 February 2022 and up to
the date of this report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has developed the Group’s internal control,
risk assessment and management systems (including
environmental, social and governance risks) and has
overall responsibility for reviewing and maintaining
adequate and effective risk management and internal
control systems to safeguard the interests of the
Shareholders and the assets of the Group. It reviews
and evaluates the effectiveness of the said systems
at least annually (and has done so during the year) to
ensure the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the
Group’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
functions.

Risk Management and Internal Control Systems

The Company’s risk management and internal control
systems are designed to manage and mitigate risks,
rather than eliminate risks, of failure to achieve the
business objectives of the Company, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss. We have employed a bottom-up
approach for identification, assessment and mitigation of
risk at all business unit levels and across functional areas.

Main Features of Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems

The key elements of the Company’s risk management and
internal control systems include the establishment of a risk
register to keep track of and document identified risks, the
assessment and evaluation of risks, the development and
continuous updating of responsive procedures, and the
ongoing testing of internal control procedures to ensure
their effectiveness.

An ongoing risk management approach is adopted by the
Company for identifying and assessing the key inherent
risks that affect the achievements of its objectives. A risk
matrix is adopted to determine risk rating (L = low risk, M
= medium risk, H = high risk) after evaluation of the risk
by the likelihood and the impact of the risk event. The risk
ratings reflect the level of attention of the management
and the effort of risk treatment required.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(CONTINUED)

Process used to identify, evaluate and manage
significant risks

During the process of risk assessment, each of the risk
owners of departments and major subsidiaries is required
to capture and identify the key inherent risks that affect
the achievement of its objectives. Each inherent risk
is evaluated according to the risk matrix. After taking
into consideration of the risk response, such as control
measures in place to mitigate the risk, the residual risk
of each inherent risk is evaluated again. The risk register
with the risk responses and residual risks is reported to
the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee evaluates the
effectiveness of the systems and reports to the Board.
The highest category of residual risks is subject to the
Board’s oversight.

Process used to review the effectiveness of the
Risk Management and Internal Control Systems
and to resolve material internal control defects

In view of the Company’s business and scale of
operations, the Group set up an internal audit
department (the “Internal Auditor”) in August 2017 with
an aim to continuously improve the effectiveness of risk
management and internal control of the Group. The
Internal Auditor is required to prepare a risk oriented
annual audit plan, and on the basis of risk assessment
results, determine the work focus of internal audit that is in
line with the organisation objective. The annual audit plan
should be subject to approval by the Audit Committee.

Further, the Board has engaged an independent
consulting firm (the “Consultant”) to conduct a
thorough review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems for the period
from 1 March 2021 to 28 February 2022 in accordance
with the requirements under Code Provision D.2 of the
CG Code, according to the scope of review agreed and
approved by the Audit Committee.

le saunda holdings Itd. %% & &7 fFHEAR B R A 7

2| B & 3 e P ER BE 42 ()

AUHBAE FHEREBEEAABRNER
REBRFEOIERFS - &8 E RS
FINETENBARENRKHIE R BFHRF
EHEIRABENIEEAREKR SEA
R RERRELETHG KEE
2\ B2 £ FE %4 77 0K 1% (20 R B BS 458 45 B LA R
1K R ) 5 B ORRE % B A R B # R 4
% o [ B RO 8% ffft E R 2 B e S 050K K F
pERRHENEXZZEETUNER - &F
RZBETRHIENAEREERAES
SER - ZeANNRNGRRARATES

S
o

BB

i3

AU EBEERRABEERFHERAR
MRBRBENABEZRIANERF

MARAMERREEREMS  AKE
R-ZB—tFNAERLAESBIA
METE)  BETENEAKE Z AR
EENAREEN AR - A BB E A
AR S E RS EFRERS - ER
RAGERNER L BENTAHEME
BOABESTIEEH  ZFERFE
HRRERERZRBGETER °

o EFGERE B ZERAR (B
A REFEZZESHELILENES
BENROGEERTHASTAEIXED.2
FETREH T -_—F=A—HE_F
T CHE A+t N\AHEAEEZRERE
BERAREENENERIEREETEA

A >
ﬁ’i Y °



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(CONTINUED)

Process used to review the effectiveness of the
Risk Management and Internal Control Systems
and to resolve material internal control defects
(Continued)

After conducting a review of the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group
during the year, the Internal Auditor and the Consultant
reported to the Audit Committee and the Audit Committee
was satisfied that there had been no major deficiency
noted in the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems after implementation of the recommendations
of the Internal Auditor and the Consultant with regard
to internal control defects. The Audit Committee
reviews annually, and has reviewed during the year, the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s financial
reporting system, internal control system and risk
management system and associated procedures and
has access to information necessary to fulfil its duties
and responsibilities with respect to risk assessment
and risk management. Based on the foregoing review,
the Audit Committee and the Board considered the risk
management and internal control systems to be effective
and adequate during the year.

Procedures and internal controls for the handling
and dissemination of inside information

The Board has established a policy on the procedures
and internal controls for the handling and dissemination
of inside information. The policy stipulates the duty
and responsibility of inside information announcement,
restriction on sharing non-public information, handling of
rumours, unintentional selective disclosure, exemption
and waiver to the disclosure of inside information, and
also compliance and reporting procedures. Every member
of the senior management of the Company must take all
reasonable measures to ensure that proper safeguards
exist to prevent a breach of a disclosure requirement in
relation to the Company from time to time. They must
promptly bring any possible leakage or divulgence of
inside information to the attention of the Chief Financial
Officer, who will notify the Board accordingly for taking the
appropriate action promptly. For any material violation of
this policy, the Board will decide, or designate appropriate
persons to decide, on a course of actions for rectifying
the problem and avoiding recurrence.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company intends to create long term value for the
Shareholders through maintaining a balance between
dividend distribution, preserving adequate liquidity and
reserve to meet its working capital requirements and
capturing future growth opportunities. The Board has
sole discretion to declare and distribute dividends to
the Shareholders subject to any restrictions under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
Memorandum of Association and the Bye-Laws of the
Company and any other applicable laws, rules and
regulations.

The Board adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend
Policy”) to provide guidance on whether to propose a
dividend and to guide the Board to consider, inter alia, the
following factors in determining the dividend amount:

° the Group’s actual earnings performance;

° retained earnings and distributable reserves of the
Company and each of the subsidiaries of the Group;

° the Group’s expected working capital requirements,
capital expenditure requirements and future
expansion plans;

e the Group’s liquidity position;

° general economic conditions, business cycle of the
Group’s business and internal or external factors that
may have an impact on the business, financial results
and position of the Company; and

o other factors that the Board may deem appropriate
and relevant.

The Board will review the Dividend Policy from time to
time and may exercise its sole and absolute discretion to
update, amend and/or modify the Dividend Policy at any
time as it deems fit and necessary. There is no assurance
that dividends will be paid in any particular amount for
any given period. The Dividend Policy shall in no way
constitute a legally binding commitment by the Company
that any dividend will be paid in any particular amount
and/or in no way obligate the Company to declare a
dividend at any time or from time to time.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Company treats all Shareholders equally and ensures
that the Shareholders’ rights are protected and every
convenience is provided to them where practicable to
enable the exercise of their rights.

1. Procedures for convening a special general
meeting (“SGM”)

Pursuant to Bye-Law 58 of the Bye-Laws,
Shareholders (the “Requisitionists”) holding at the
date of deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of
the Company may request the Board to call a SGM
by a written requisition to the Board or the Company
Secretary. The objects of the meeting must be stated
in the written requisition. The requisition must be
signed by the Requisitionists and deposited with
the Company Secretary at the Company’s head
office and principal place of business in Hong Kong
at Suites 1104-1106, 11th Floor, 1063 King's Road,
Quarry Bay, Hong Kong. Before convening the SGM
of the Company, the requisition will be verified with
the Company’s Share Registrars in Bermuda or Hong
Kong to obtain their confirmation that the request is
proper and in order. The SGM shall be held within
2 months after the deposit of such requisition. If the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting
within 21 days of such deposit, the Requisitionists
themselves may do so in the same manner in
accordance with Section 74 of the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda (as amended).
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (CONTINUED)

2.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at
Shareholders’ meetings

Pursuant to Sections 79 and 80 of the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), (i) the
shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth
of the total voting rights; or (i) not less than 100
shareholders, are entitled to request the Company
to give shareholders notice of a resolution which
is intended to be moved at the next AGM or
SGM. A written notice to that effect signed by the
Requisitionist(s) with contact information must be
deposited at the Company’s head office and principal
place of business in Hong Kong at Suites 1104-11086,
11th Floor, 1063 King’'s Road, Quarry Bay, Hong
Kong (addressed to the Company Secretary). The
notice shall contain, inter alia, a description of the
proposed resolution desired to be put forward at
the meeting, the reasons for such a proposal and
any material interest of the proposing shareholder in
such a proposal. The request will be verified with the
Company’s Share Registrars in Bermuda or Hong
Kong and upon their confirmation that the request is
proper and in order, the Company Secretary will ask
the Board to include the resolution in the agenda for
the general meeting.

If a Shareholder wishes to propose a person other
than a retiring Director for election as a Director at a
general meeting, the Shareholder should follow the
“Procedures for Shareholders to propose a person
for election as a Director”, which is posted on the
website of the Company.

Procedures for raising enquiries to the Board

The Shareholders may at any time send their
enquiries and concerns to the Board in writing
through the Company Secretary whose contact
details are as follows:

Address: Suites 1104-1106, 11th Floor, 1063 King’s

Road, Quarry Bay, Hong Kong
Facsimile: (852) 2554 9304

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the
Board at general meetings of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

INVESTOR RELATIONS

Communication with the Shareholders and
Investors

The Board recognises that effective communication
with the Company’s investors plays a crucial role in
maintaining existing investors’ confidence and attracting
new investors and enhancing their understanding of the
Group’s performance, strategies and future direction. To
foster effective communication with the Shareholders
and potential investors of the Company, the Company
endeavors to provide accurate, clear, comprehensive and
timely information of the Group through the publication of
the interim and annual reports, announcements, circulars,
press interviews and press releases on the website of the
Company.

The AGM provides a useful platform for the Shareholders
to exchange views with the Board. The Chairman of
the Board and the Chairman of each board committees
are available at the AGM to answer questions from the
Shareholders in respect of the matters that they are
responsible and accountable for. The external auditor
of the Company is also available at the AGM to assist
the Directors in addressing any relevant queries by the
Shareholders. To ensure the Board is maintaining an on-
going dialogue with the Shareholders, the Shareholders
are encouraged to attend the AGM or other general
meetings of the Company. The notice of AGM is sent to
the Shareholders at least 20 clear business days before
the AGM and posted on the respective websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company.

In addition to the AGM, the Board designates specialised
personnel to maintain close communication with research
analysts, fund managers, the Shareholders and media
outlets via regular one-on-one meetings, luncheons, press
conferences and road shows to keep them informed of
the Group’s business performance and developments.

Constitutional Documents

There was no change in the Memorandum of Association
and the Bye-Laws of the Company during the year ended
28 February 2022.
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BREE ~ AL E ARG

ABOUT THIS REPORT

This Report discloses Le Saunda Holdings Limited
(“Le Saunda” or the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively as the “Group”) in the environmental, social
and governance (“ESG”) performance for the year ended
28 February 2022.

Scope of This Report

In accordance with the magnitude of impacts associated
with the Group’s operations to the environmental and
social aspects, the content of disclosure covers the
environmental and social responsibility performance of its
business in Hong Kong, Macau and its subsidiaries for
retailing operations in Mainland China.

Reporting Period
From 1 March 2021 to 28 February 2022.

Reporting Standard

The Report has been prepared in accordance with
the “Comply or Explain” provisions and Mandatory
Disclosure Requirements of the “Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide” as set out in Appendix
27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”).

Reporting Principles
Materiality

The Group regularly makes reference to the industry
sustainability standards at the local and international
level and strives to integrate with them. At the same
time, regular communication with various stakeholders
is used to identify the most concerned and important
sustainability topics for the Group. Those sustainability
topics will also be incorporated into the Group’s
development policies under the overall strategy of the
Group’s operations. During the reporting period, the
Group also conducted stakeholder surveys to identify their
expectations on the Group and developed appropriate
strategies to respond to their views and needs.
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ENVIRONMENTAL,

ABOUT THIS REPORT (CONTINUED)
Reporting Principles (Continued)
Quantitative

The Group is committed to quantifying and disclosing key
performance indicators and data within the environmental
and social categories, and whenever feasible, explaining
the methods of data collection and calculation to enhance
transparency of the data.

Balance

In order to maintain the balance of reporting content, fair
disclosure of sustainability performance and challenges
related to the Group and stakeholders is provided with
impartial information to the public.

Consistency

The Group adheres to the “Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide” of the Listing Rules for
disclosure, which allows the Group to make meaningful
annual comparisons of past performance under the same
framework, and to disclose updated calculation methods
of relevant data when necessary.

BACKGROUND OF THE GROUP

Le Saunda is a local brand renowned for fashionable
footwear, that is engaged in the design and development,
as well as sales of footwear of ladies and men, handbags
and other accessories in Mainland China, Hong Kong and
Macau. The key brands of the Group include:

A{M daﬂv

le saunda

~ MEN

le saunda

SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
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BACKGROUND OF THE GROUP (CONTINUED) EEES(E)

1977

1991

1992

90’s

2001

2011

2017

2020

2021

Since its establishment, Le Saunda has developed rapidly and become one of the leading
footwear brands in PRC.

HEBHABRILIAR BRAR WRATHABEHMUNEEREZ— -

The Group set up production lines at Shunde district in Foshan, PRC. Since then, the factory
in Shunde has gone through a series of expansion to increase its production capacity.

SEETFEBLUMIERRERIAER YEZREBEEZMEAIETTERE -

Le Saunda was listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
EEBBARHPIEMR LT -

The Group expanded its retail network by setting up self-owned stores and franchise stores.
Le Saunda entered into retail market in PRC as early as 1990s when it opened its first retail
store in Shanghai to develop the huge market in PRC and unveil a brand new chapter for its
business.

AEEZEBARBEEMFAREETHERTEMNR - FROFREFEFHZTETS R
FERZE—RTEE MEBEANGETS  AEKBFEEZH—H -

Besides “le saunda” brand, the Group has launched a footwear brand “CNE” that targeted at
the young and fashionable market.
Brlle saunda KRB AT FH m kg sh - SEEH B UFEF R AT SN EEMEICNEREEE ]

It launched a high-end brand “LINEA ROSA” featuring trendsetting designs and premium
quality. It has attracted overwhelming attention and has been well received by the market. In
addition, le saunda MEN has been repositioned as the light luxury brand for fashionable men.
HHAZERESRENRIHMELINEA ROSA] MBS E@ER R FOE o i) -
le saunda MENEFEM AR M B THEEZ RE -

The Group has launched an online brand “PITTI DONNA”.
HEH AR £ SRR TPITTI DONNAJ ©

The Group has ceased its production line at Shunde district in Foshan, PRC, and has switched
to a brand operating model with products entirely procured from external subcontractors.

SEZERPEBLUTIERROEESR  NAZTHMIMRBERN BEEERN -

“le saunda Y Collection” with a designed concept of “Be yourself” was launched through online
channels, targeting the young customer group.

HEREE  AERMEC ]| ARETE 28 (le saunda Y Collection] A4 FF &L -
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SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY POLICY

The Group recognizes the importance of good
environmental management and sustainable development,
so the Group has all along been in strict compliance of
the relevant environmental protection laws and standards
enacted in the places of its operations, including the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) and Hong Kong.

The Group has implemented multiple environmental
protection measures in various business processes and
work premises, including retail stores, warehouses, and
offices. The measures included:

Green supply chain management

During the stages of product design and operation
planning, the Group will prioritize the adoption of products
made of environmentally-friendly materials, and will
focus on partnership with those suppliers possessing
environmental technology. Moreover, the Group is
committed to managing the environmental performance of
its supply chain.

Facilities
In the configuration of the facilities at the retail stores, the

Group has implemented LED lighting fixtures as one of
the energy saving measures.

Daily operations

For minimization of paper use, the Group advocates the
“paperless” office, actively promotes electronic information
management system and set up communication devices
to facilitate phone and video conference for reduction in
emission of exhaust gases and greenhouse gases arisen
from transportation.

BOARD’S GOVERNANCE ON ENVIRONMENTAL,
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE MATTERS

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company
oversees the ESG matters in the context of current
business strategy. This ensures that operations are
consistently in compliance with local laws and regulations
in the regions where the business is operating, thereby
safeguarding the interests of the Group and stakeholders
as well as enhancing the corporate brand image.
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BOARD’S GOVERNANCE ON ENVIRONMENTAL,
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE MATTERS
(CONTINUED)

The Group regularly collects environmental, social and
governance information through different functional
departments and working groups, and then consolidates,
analyses, and discloses performance in the ESG report.
At the annual Board meeting, the Board members review
the performance disclosed in the ESG report to assure
it is aligned with our business strategy and is complying
to the laws and regulations, and to identify sustainability
topics that are important to the Group and stakeholders
for making appropriate decisions and adjusting the
relevant strategies as needed.

The Board evaluates the potential risks as reflected in
the ESG information in order to prioritize the topics that
have a more significant impact, and to develop effective
prevention and control measures for assurance of the
Group’s sustainable development, which may include, but
not limited to:

° Adopt product design using environmentally-friendly
materials at higher priority

° Partner with suppliers to explore green technology
° Set goals for sustainable development

The Board deems the current uncertainties in the global
economy remain high, and the threat of mutating viruses
is also slowing down the pace of Mainland China’s
economic recovery, with external political conflicts being
intensified as well. In response to the ever-changing
and complicated business environment, the Group has
adopted various strategies to strengthen its role and
positioning in the supply chain, with focus on product
design and brand management, for delivering quality
products and services to customers and aligning with
the series of national policies on expansion of domestic
demand and stimulating consumption.
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BOARD’S GOVERNANCE ON ENVIRONMENTAL,
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE MATTERS
(CONTINUED)

For outlook of ESG performance in the coming year, the
Board expects the supply chain strains associated with
the novel coronavirus pandemic remain the main factor
affecting the Group’s ESG performance. Taking into
account of the change in consumers’ demand caused
by the pandemic influence, the Group will adjust the
policies and strategies regarding product marketing and
supply chain management, including expansion of market
segment in social media e-commerce and sales channel
in “live-stream shopping”, for assurance of delivering
appropriate products to the market.

Furthermore, in response to the environmental and
other compliance risks posed by global trend against
the climate change, particularly on the product design
and brand management perspectives, the Board will
develop corresponding policies or objectives and regularly
review their progress and performance in order to align
them with the Group’s strategic direction for sustainable
development.

RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group believes that effective communication as
well as accurate and timely information disclosure will
strengthen the confidence of various stakeholders.
The management establishes regular communication
with the various stakeholders for timely exchange of
views and solicitation of feedbacks from each other.
Where appropriate, it will also share the latest business
information and seek to understand the demand
for corporate social responsibility from respective
stakeholders, which helps the Group in achieving different
goals for corporate sustainable development.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS
(CONTINUED)

The Group believes that employees are important assets
for our success. Therefore, the Group has maintained
good relationship with the employees and strived to
keep a low employee turnover rate for improving the
operational capability and efficiency of the employees as
well as promoting team spirit among them. Upholding
the quality of the products and services is the way to
meet the consumers’ needs and to enhance the business
performance. As a result, maintaining long-term good
partnership with suppliers is also one of the main goals of
the Group.

Key stakeholders and the associated channels for
communication with them:

B0 EzBERGE

AEBHERERERMEEZEE
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ERMBEIGER —BEKFNREEBERK
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TERFNERERNEBRE:

Stakeholders Main channels of communication
560E FEEBRE
Customers Social Media
X R
Member Newsletters
ZEBEA

Customer Surveys (Questionnaires, Phone Calls, E-mails)

EFHAE(HSG  EF EH)

Official Website
B 7 48 uh

Market Research
DR EES

(=3=] MAEBFBRBYTA

Employees Electronic Communication Platform in Office

W ERE N RS

Internal E-mails and Memos

= NEE v A Ay
BETERSH

Communication Sessions with Employees

Training
|

Suppliers Procurement Contracts

HEm RBEAR

HERETRST A

Code of Conduct for Suppliers

Supplier Evaluations

e YA

e EEEE ERGCEE

Community/Charity Groups Partnership Programmes
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

Step 1: Identify topics on environmental, social
and governance

In accordance with the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Guide as the framework for materiality assessment,
and taking into account of factors such as corporate
development strategies, industry trends, regulatory and
market requirements, the stakeholder questionnaire was
developed to proceed survey on 18 sustainability topics
in four categories: environmental protection, employment
and labour management, operating practices and
community investment.

Step 2: Identify stakeholders and set up
questionnaires

The stakeholders identified as utmost important
to the Group were our customers, suppliers and
employees. According to their respective perceptions
and expectations, specific content of the topics was
formulated in their respective questionnaires. The
questionnaires were then distributed to the sampled
stakeholders, whose feedback was collected within the
specified time frame.
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT (CONTINUED)

Step 3: Evaluate and identify material topics

Through statistical analysis of survey feedback from
external stakeholders, and review of the Group’s
strategies and the priorities of internal stakeholders, data
of both external and internal demands was consolidated
for plotting the “ESG Materiality Matrix Diagram”. From the
aforesaid 18 sustainability topics, the ESG material topics
of the Group were identified (in blue text in the table
below, as well within the blue square in the upper right
corner of the matrix diagram).

ESG MATERIALITY MATRIX DIAGRAM
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT (CONTINUED) EEMFMLE)
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

In accordance with the requirements of “Comply or
Explain” disclosures for all aspects in the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide (“the Guide”),
the Group has undertaken the disclosure obligation
of pertaining to the compliance of the relevant laws
and regulations of significant impacts, as well as the
“Mandatory Disclosure Requirements” stipulated in the
Guide.

For the year ended 28 February 2022, the Group did not
identify any significant non-compliance with the laws and
regulations pertinent to the ESG aspects covered by this
report.

REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
ASPECTS

Environmental Aspect
1) Environmental management policies

Being a responsible company, the Group advocates
5R principles for reducing environmental pollution
and raising resource utilization, namely Refuse,
Reduce, Reuse, Repair and Recycle.

Refuse

For product design, it is dedicated to the use
of non-hazardous and environmentally friendly
materials. It is also the Group’s policy to pursue
“green procurement”, which requires the suppliers
to maximize the supply of raw materials possessing
degradable characteristics (including fabrics and
packaging materials) in order to reduce environmental
hazards. Also, production subcontractors are
required to optimize the production processes and
industrial engineering and to persist in the use
of more environmentally friendly materials in the
manufacture of packaging materials for finished
goods of shoes, with the aim for minimizing
environmental pollution.
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REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Environmental Aspect (Continued)

)

Environmental management policies (Continued)
Reduce

Production subcontractors are required to upgrade
equipment and technology to reduce waste and
resources consumption. Administrative measures are
adopted within the Group for reducing environmental
impacts, such as arrangement of video conference in
replacement of remote physical meeting for reduction
of greenhouse gas emission incurred from taking
transportation like aircraft.

Reuse

For the recyclable wastes (example: packaging
cartons, plastic bags), methodologies for their
classification and reuse have been established. Also,
for internal office operation, it involves the reuse of
single-printed papers and the practice of double-
sided printing.

Repair

“Three-R” provision (i.e. Return, Replacement,
Repair) is the basis of the Group’s after-sales service.
To encourage saving of resources, repairing service
is offered to customers under specified conditions.

Recycle

To support recycling, the Group has appointed
vendors to handle recyclable resources, such as
paper waste.

7)

BB - AL E R ARl
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REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Environmental Aspect (Continued)

2)

Environmental Targets

Last year the Group has migrated to the business
model of brand operator with product manufacturing
activities being removed from the operation. As a
result, there was no significant emission of exhaust
gases or sewage, nor generation of hazardous
wastes. Under the operation of the reporting year,
the usage of water in office and retail operation was
minimal, the target on water use efficiency was not
material and hence not required to be established.
Nevertheless, the Group is striving to set the
following environmental targets for contribution
towards environmental protection:

BRRERMSERNVEE (B

BIEEE(E)

2) REHEZ
EFEEASEEMNMAREBONER
B M TEREERENEE -
B 48 & R B K E B R Sk EEK
WEEN  WETSELEBEREEY -
ERAFEMNEET  SEHORAE
TELEREKELRD  AKEE
BEVHEEREFERMAAR]
N BEBINARIMLTIIREERZ
BHOBRRNEEN:

“direct greenhouse gas”
emission.

WM EREEAIEE
RERB VMM AT

o
~

B

\|

Environmental Directional Measures taken

targets statements during the year

RIEERE F5 [t B BR NEFE R EUE i

Emission Reduce the use of 1. Minimized the number of delivery
reduction transportation means times by consolidating the orders
A PER E which could incur of procurement, that reduced the

transportation emission incurred by

fuel consumption. Procurement orders
were consolidated from different sites
nationwide every 2 months for centralized
delivery management.
EEFARBUARDHERE - ZBUR
PERBRHFEAMERNEER - 8W
ERAEAEZBENEE  ETEFTE

Reduced the number of business trip
meeting through the use of video,
teleconferencing or other electronic
online communication tool in order to
reduce GHG emission incurred from use
of transportation.

FRGCAGE EEERNEMETR
F@RAILA  BAbEEga B
EHERZBTAMERA R = REEFN
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REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL RERHSHBENRSE (HE)
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)
Environmental Aspect (Continued) RIBEE(E)
2)  Environmental Targets (Continued) 2) REBHE(E
Environmental Directional Measures taken
targets statements during the year
RBEBE F5 [a 4 /9 BR REEMERBNERE
Waste reduction Reduce paper waste 1.  Reused paper cartons received by
B REEY generated from the retailing operations
operation BREASEREMBEROESE -
WL EEBRBERELED
MEREEY 2. Strengthened electronic operations and

file management to reduce paper use and
consumption in offices.
MEBEFEHEEREREE - B
NENRERE -

Energy use Adopt alternative means 1. Changed the sourcing way with material

efficiency to reduce the number of suppliers: it was changed to direct

RE R AE A A &= times that the company’s delivery to the subcontracted warehouses
vehicles are used, in of third-party logistics company at
order to reduce fuel different regions in closer proximity,
consumption. which aim to reduce the distance of
KABRFE RBLA truck transportation and hence fuel
RIEWMEANE - & consumption as compared to previous
BB HAFENBER - transportation to our owned warehouse

at Shunde.

FEMH R EENTE SR R AEE
BRI EE LRSS T RAT
MONVBRE HEBE R ERAEY
VB4 A B WA T B K0 PR B B R R
HEE -

2. Adopted video conferencing applications
for internal meeting arrangement, thereby
reducing the number of business trips for
intra-group meetings and hence reducing
the use of vehicles.

RAAEAERER  BEERARIAR
g% EAMRLEEREHENEZLE
BRAR - ERIRADERAEWARR -
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REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Environmental Aspect (Continued)

3)

Emissions

Over the past years, the Shunde factory of the
Group was the main source of sewage and exhaust
emissions. However, it ceased operations in May
2020 and as a result the Group no longer has sewage
and exhaust emissions arisen from production
activities. Nevertheless, the Group’s retail stores and
offices, despites no significant sewage and exhaust
emissions from these premises, also contributed
certain amount of emission of greenhouse gases
(GHG) through electricity consumption and
transportation involved in their related operations.

In terms of the Group’s revenues in this reporting
year, the emission intensity was 4.63 tonnes carbon
dioxide (CO,) equivalent per million revenues in RMB.

Since the disclosure of the previous reporting period,
the Group has terminated all normal operation and
manufacturing activities at the Shunde factory. Also,
the retailing operation did not involve the generation
of hazardous wastes. Therefore, no hazardous waste
was recorded in the reporting year.

ESG Environmental Performance — Emissions

Greenhouse gas (GHG) emission of the current
reporting period was higher than that of the previous
period. Main reason was the higher consumption
of gasoline and electricity which generated direct
and energy indirect GHG emissions in the current
reporting period respectively. In the previous period,
as the government in Mainland China took lockdown
and traffic restriction measures against COVID-19
pandemic. Many retail stores were temporarily closed
and they resumed normal operation in this year.
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BB A R ER S

REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL RERCSHBENRSE (E)
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)
Environmental Aspect (Continued) RIBEE(E)
3) Emissions (Continued) 3) HHY(E)
ESG Environmental Performance — Emissions ESGIRIBE M — BEmm (48)

(Continued)

A1: Emissions Unit Year ended Year ended
Al BERH B 28 February 2022 28 February 2021
BEE-Z2_C BE-2-—-%

ZAZHNRLEEE ZAZtNBLEE
Greenhouse gas (GHG)

RERE
Direct GHG emissions (Scope 1)'  tonnes COU% equivalent 16.29 13.11
ERBHARERES(BE) M_ftikEE
Energy indirect GHG emissions tonnes CO equrvalent 2,612.46 2,257.38
(Scope 2)? —EiEEE
REEFERAE R E(HE2):?
Total greenhouse gas (GHG) tonnes CO equrvalent 2,628.75 2,270.49
emissions? —EkEEE
mERBHRESES
Total GHG emissions intensity tonnes CO, equivalent/ 4,62 3.82
REREBHENARE revenue (million in RMB)
—AREE /BEEA
E’% £ U
Type of hazardous wastes
BEVNEE
Non hazardous wastes* tonne 5.22 26.71
BEEEEY U
Non-hazardous wastes emission  kg/revenue 914 44.95
intensity (million in RMB)
BEEEEMHNER A/ BEBARE
ZERIA
1 Direct GHG emission was mainly originated from fuel combustion during gasoline consumption by vehicles, diesel consumption

by electricity generator in Guangzhou office, and natural gas consumption by dormitory in Guangzhou. Method of calculation was
based on 2006 IPCC Guidelines for National Greenhouse Gas Inventories”.

HERERBIZREE®H U BMNMAZTBEHEE - BNEERARSMREDERS OB - fTHT AR EN20064 H ARy (K
}TF'HEJ RECEMZEE (PCO) BN B = R85 EBIE/) -

2 Energy indirect GHG emission was originated from consumption of electricity purchased from external source. Regional grid
emission factors used in the calculation were referenced to the values issued by HK Electric’s Sustainability Report and National
Development and Reform Commission (NDRC) in People’s Republic of China.

REREZREERERBMBENNEEZNENR AELEMKANEREBELECYEREFA2ZERIAHERRRERITP
EEAE#\ﬂII%?‘Efﬂﬁiii,\ & (NDRC)] FTE#MAaIEAE -

3 Global Warming Potential (GWP) adopted in this GHG calculation were based on the values disclosed in the Fifth Assessment
Report (AR5) of Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change (IPCC).
RERBAERAKANSHRERERE GWP) 2ER(BNERIEEZ(EFMZEE (IPCC) FERRT MRS (ARS) AEMEIEE -

4 Since the warehousing has been subcontracted by the Group to the third-party logistics company, therefore the disposed cartons
and paper boxes generated from the courier of product returns were destroyed by the third-party logistics company, which
consolidated such wastes from other merchants and hence could not provide the figures on the weight of such wastes generated
by the Group in the reportrng year. Consequently, the aforesaid figures were simply estimated based on the prevrous experience.
IEIFEEMWMA =AWnAaE e EiﬁzﬁiI%Eﬁhéim}?iﬁre&fi&”*ﬁﬂiiﬁ%EE FE_TEPZHEBRNEZDR
THSEE AR E BT AR EE RN E S o L MR R R R BT M) B A B T B AR o
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REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Environmental Aspect (Continued)
4) Use of Resources

Each operating region of the Group has adopted the
appropriate equipment and administrative measures
to enhance the effectiveness in use of resources.
Part of the measures included:

e Through re-routing the delivery service, the
usage of vehicle is reduced and hence the
consumption of gasoline and diesel oils is also
reduced

e  Through reusing the cartons and paper boxes
from parcel deliveries amongst offices and retalil
departments, the usage of paper resources is
reduced

° In PRC regional offices, seats are better planned
so that no need to switch on the lights when
some area have no one there. LED lighting is
preferred. Employees are encouraged to switch
off the computers and equipment when they
are not in use, while lighting is switched off
during lunch break and after office hours. Since
October 2021, a framework for energy use
supervision has been reinforced on practices
regarding light-off when not in use, and setting
temperature and fan control of air-conditioners

° The Group advocates “paperless” office, and
has been promoting electronic information
management system. With the use of electronic
files, it reduces unnecessary use of papers
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REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Environmental Aspect (Continued)

4)

Use of Resources (Continued)

ESG Environmental Performance — Use of
Resources

Consumption of electricity, gasoline and water in
the previous reporting period was lower than those
of the current reporting period, because many retail
stores in the previous period were temporarily closed
as a result of the government in Mainland China
taking lockdown and traffic restriction measures
against COVID-19 pandemic, whereas in the current
reporting period the normal resource consumption
was resumed as attributed to the normal store
operation and frequency in use of vehicles.

The table below set forth the consumption and the
associated intensities for the main resources of the
Group during the reporting period. Apart from the
calculation for consumption intensities of packaging
materials (papers and plastics) was based on

BB - AL E R ARl

RRERMSHERNVERE (F)

RIE&ER (&)

4)

BREH (&)
ESGIRHEEX — BEREH

REEMEN VR RAFE R BE
WAEENRE RN EFEFER
b2, T R T 1 0 B 0 2 3
RXBEH RN SHRZTERE
REBEH S EAEENE Y
B B SRR A IR E R
A6 B8 0 AR FE A R E % -

TEBINAEEERESHENETR
BREAENATE -BRTERDH
(VMBI ERTBERNAEF
KmARBRERAERERZE 2SI H

WERZENZREEEARY

annual goods received quantities, the consumption e e =
intensities of other resources were calculated in
terms of million revenues in RMB:
A2: Use of Resources Unit Year ended Year ended
28 February 28 February
2022 2021
A2: ERfE A B BE-ZE-_—_F BE-ZE=-_—F§
—BA=+NH —BA=+NH
LtEE LtFEE
Consumption by resource type
ZEHERNEFHEEE
Electricity KWh 3,261,589 2,723,575
E 7 TR
Gasoline litre 6,800 3,900
R Yl
Diesel oil® litre 240 Not applicable
5 s il T A
Natural gas cubic metre 108 210
Water cubic metre 5,960 4,233
K S K
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REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL BENMEEHBENRSE (&)
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)
Environmental Aspect (Continued) RIBEE(8)
4) Use of Resources (Continued) 4) BIFREH(E)
ESG Environmental Performance — Use of ESGIRIREM — BERFEAE)
Resources (Continued)
A2: Use of Resources Unit Year ended Year ended
28 February 28 February
2022 2021
A2: ERERA B BE-Z-—-F BE-ZT=-—F
—A=+NH —A=+NH
LLFE ILFE
Packaging materials — Paper® tonne 715.35 441.26
BEME ()6 7
Packaging materials — tonne 3.50 2.32
Plastics® 48
BEME(B)e
Consumption intensity by resource type
BHERNEREZE
Electricity kWh/revenue (million in RMB) 5,731.80 4,583.60
EW) TRE/SEBARBER
Gasoline litre/revenue (million in RMB) 11.95 6.56
i NA/EEEARBER
Diesel ail® litre/revenue (million in RMB) 0.42 Not applicable
e s DA/ EEBEARBER A A
Natural gas cubic metre/revenue 0.19 0.35
RAR (million in RMB)
NAEK/ BEEAREER
Water cubic metre/revenue 10.47 712
K (million in RMB)
NAK/BEEAREBER
Packaging materials — Paper® kg/annual goods received 0.54 0.59
AR () e quantity (unit)
DT/ 2FHKMARHEE
(B11)
Packaging materials — kg/annual goods received <0.01 <0.01
Plastics® quantity (unit)
BEYME(BM)e DT/ 2FERMARHE
(841)
5 Diesel oil consumption was newly disclosed in the reporting year and was originated from the rental use of diesel generator set in

response to the blackout at the building where the Guangzhou office was located.

AFEEHEORBEEFRRBENBRRAZEMENAEREEMAEBRBEETHEEMEK -

6 The figure was based on the amount of packaging materials consumed by external suppliers.
REBEIINBHEREANBEDRIEGRE -
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REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Environmental Aspect (Continued)

5)

ESG Environmental Performance — Climate
Change

In response to extreme weather incurred by the
climate change in recent years, the Group has
identified the possible emergency situations such
as the flooding risk caused by rainstorm weather.
For addressing the risks associated with the
relevant natural disasters, emergency plan has been
established to prevent the occurrence of dangers
and damages and the measures include but not
limited to:

° Prevention of flooding nearby operation facilities
at the time of rainstorm weather;

e  Securing of the outdoor equipment before the
hoisting of super typhoon signal;

o Instruction to employees to ensure all windows
closed and regular window inspection prior to
typhoon;

° Regarding the material transportation risk
caused by extreme weather, evaluation of the
impacts to the procurement of raw materials
(such as price and quantity) will be conducted;

o For tackling resource strain caused by climate
change, contingency plan for changing the
product compositions will be established.

Moreover, with regards to the climate change
mainly attributed to greenhouse gases, the Group
has adopted measures mentioned in the previous
sections of this report regarding energy conservation
and emission reduction, with the aim to reduce
emission of greenhouse gases and ultimately to
mitigate the tendency of climate change.

BB - AL E R ARl

RERMEHEBHRE (&)

BRIBEE(E)
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REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Social Aspect

1)

Employment
Recruitment and Promotion Policies

The Group only considers the capabilities of job
applicants as the primary assessment criteria, and
reviews the job performance, experience, business
performance and competence of employee as
the conditions for promotion. We have developed
practices of “employment management for persons
with disabilities” to actively consider the job
applications by persons with different disabilities. In
the past, ethnic minorities have been employed to
create a diversified working environment. The Group
will not reject the job application nor review the
promotion based on the attributes of applicants such
as gender, disability, race, family status, etc.

As at 28 February 2022, the total number of full-
time employees in the Group was 1,342, of which 19
persons were employees in Hong Kong and Macau.
On the other hand, there was a total of 91 part-time
employees in Mainland China, while no part-time
employee was engaged in Hong Kong and Macau.

Remunerations and Employee Benefits

The Group not only meets the minimum wage
requirements in each operating location, but also
offers remunerations which are competitive on the
market to attain a higher staff retention rate. In this
reporting year, the overall average monthly employee
turnover rate was 5.90%. As compared with the
employee turnover rate of the previous year (2020/21:
2.18%), the significant increment was attributed to
the HR changes in Hong Kong office. On the other
hand, the overall turnover rate in Mainland China of
this reporting year was 2.11% which was significantly
reduced by around 30% as compared to the same
segment of the previous year.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Social Aspect (Continued)

1)

Employment (Continued)

Remunerations and Employee Benefits
(Continued)

In terms of employee benefits, we have always
been complying with social security and other
legal benefits in PRC, including social insurance
contributions for all employees. In addition, long
service awards will be granted to permanent
employees after they have completed every five
consecutive years of service with the Group, as kind
of encouragement and enhancement of employees’
sense of belonging. Different operating regions
will provide other forms of employees’ benefits in
accordance with different job positions.

Working Hours

To achieve work-life balance, the Group neither
advocates nor forces employees to work overtime.
However, due to the needs of different positions,
certain employees may still need to work overtime
provided that all overtime work must be done on a
voluntary basis and in compliance with the relevant
regulations of the operating region. Furthermore,
the Group is honoured to be awarded by different
organizations over the years, demonstrating
its continued commitment to maintain a good
employment relationship: (1) Awarded the “Caring
Company Logo” for 15 consecutive years or above
from The Hong Kong Council of Social Service; (2)
participated in the “Happiness-a-Work Promotional
Scheme” and was awarded as a “Happy Company”
for the 6th consecutive year; and (3) passed the
“Employees Retraining Board (ERB) Manpower
Developer Award Scheme” assessment and was
renewed as a “Manpower Developer”.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

B - AhE KA IRl

REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL

ASPECTS (CONTINUED)
Social Aspect (Continued)
1) Employment (Continued)

BRRERMSERNVEE (B

HEEE(E)
1) &R (&)

Working Hours (Continued) TIERFE 75 E ()
Two-year comparison of employment statistics MERMBEIEN L E
B1: Employment Unit Year ended Year ended
28 February 28 February
2022 2021
B1: & & By BE-Z--F BE-ZT=-—F
—A=+NH —A=+NH
LFE IEFE
a) Total Number of employees’ person 1,433 1,457
a) BT 4 A8 A
Full-time employees person 1,342 1,403
EBET A
Part-time employees person 91 54
FEET A
Full time employees by gender
2HE TR HER
Male person 84 106
B A
Female person 1,258 1,297
74 A
Full time employees by age group
2B ET 1R AR
18-30 years old person 207 266
18-305% A
31-45 years old person 990 993
31-45%% A
46-60 years old person 144 143
46-605% A
>60 years old person 1 1
>607% A
Full time employees by working location
ERBEI-RI(ERE
Hong Kong and Macau person 19 48
BB &R A
Mainland China person 1,323 1,355
H B A 3 A
7 The statistics by gender and age group was based on the total number of full-time employees only.

BRI RFRDBERAOABRUNREE THRABIERE -
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
BB A R ER S

REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Social Aspect (Continued)

RRERMSHERNVERE (F)

HEEE(E)

1) Employment (Continued) 1) E®EE)
Working Hours (Continued) TIERFR 5 B (48)
Two-year comparison of employment statistics W FIE1E B 15 B H B (48)
(Continued)
B1: Employment Unit Year ended Year ended
28 February 28 February
2022 2021
B1: B & B BE-Z2-—F BE-ZT=-—F
—A=+NH —A=+NH
LtFEE LHFE
b) Overall Average Monthly Employee % 5.90 2.18
Turnover Rate®
b) B A ¥ & B Kk X8 %
Full time employees by gender
ZEBET—1RM5
Male % 4.55 3.87
S
Female % 6.48 2.00
g
Full time employees by age group
EHET - FE4AR
18-30 years old % 10.11 3.47
18-307%%
31-45 years old % 7.73 2.21
31-455%
46-60 years old % 2.97 1.21
46-607%
>60 years old % 0 0
>605%
Full time employees by working location
EHREBI-RI{ERI
Hong Kong and Macau % 9.70 1.32
B KR
Mainland China % 211 3.03
AR A i
8 For calculation of the “employee turnover rate” within the retailing business in Mainland China, it only took account of the full-time

employees’ mobility, given that part-time employees were engaged on irregular needs of the business and hence the aforesaid
calculation did not include the number of part-time employees.

REANZTEEBNEEREEIFES ARF2BRAENRY AEARBEIRESTEHNTE - MUE FlstEHY
REBERBAR -
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
REL -l KEia

REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Social Aspect (Continued)

2)

Health and Safety

For ensuring the safety of working environment and
enhancing employees’ awareness on occupational
health and safety, the Group has formulated
procedures and operating rules related to the
occupational health management system for
reference and compliance by the employees, with the
aim to reduce the occurrence of accidents.

The Group’s office operation was also concerned on
the occupational safety. Fire drills and inspections
of all fire equipment has been conducted on a
regular basis to avoid occurrence of accidents. In
this reporting year, the administrative department of
the Guangzhou office has arranged employees to
participate in the fire drills organized by the property
management agency, for acquiring the skills on the
use of fire extinguishers.

Despite there was no hazardous job nature identified
in the operation, in the reporting year the Group
allocated a fixed cash allowance to subsidize health
examination, for maximizing the occupational health
and safety protection to employees.

During the reporting period, the Group did not
identify any significant non-compliance of the
occupational health and safety regulations and
provisions in operating regions. Also, in the past 3
consecutive years (including the reporting year), the
Group did not identify any incident of employee’s
fatality incurred from work.

On the other hand, there was a total of 79 working
days lost due to work-related injuries (2020/21: 233
days), amongst which 3 incidents were involved
with 1 case happened in Hong Kong and the other
2 cases happened in Mainland China, with one
employee injured in each incident.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Social Aspect (Continued)

2)

3)

Health and Safety (Continued)

The incident in Hong Kong was incurred by the finger
hurt when slipped from ladder, while the others in
Mainland China were the consequence of accidental
falling of employee when moving heavy objects.
After accidents, reminders were given to relevant
employees on referencing safety instruction. Also,
other employees were also trained on identifying any
safety hazards before commencing work.

Development and Training

For raising the professional knowledge and skKills
of employees, the Group has designated functional
departments for provision of respective trainings to
different ranks of employees, on regular basis or
upon the launch of new product or technology, in
order to equip employees with product knowledge
in a professional manner. Whenever appropriate,
contests or other forms of activities will be organized
to enhance learning motivation of employees.

During the reporting period, there was a total of
6,286 counts of employees participated in the
trainings provided by the Group (2020/21: 7,567
counts of participants), and the total training hours
achieved by all employees amounted to 20,003
hours (2020/21: 21,868 hours). As compared with
the previous year, the monthly average proportion of
trained employees and the monthly average number
of training hours per employee was decreased by
26% and 25% respectively.

Despites the aforesaid classroom trainings
were reduced as a consequence of pandemic
impacts, alternatively the Group adopted online
communication channel and utilized company’s
internal workgroup apps for sending articles to
employees regarding the awareness topics relevant
to environmental habits, which included low-carbon
lightings, water conservation in public areas, reduced
use of paper-based commodities, etc.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
BRYE AL RERHRE

REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL RERCEHBENRE (E)
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)
Social Aspect (Continued) HEEE(E)
3) Development and Training (Continued) 3) BRRIZI(E)
Two-year comparison of employment statistics?® Al GF 5% JE R 12 5l 2l 1% /Y HE B
B3: Development and Training Unit Year ended Year ended
28 February 28 February
2022 2021
B3: & & K& B BE-ZT-_—_F BE-ZT-—F
—A=+NH —A=+NH
LtEE L+FE
a) Total counts of training no. of attendees 6,286 7,567
a)ZIEENEAR AR
By gender
% 1% R
Male no. of attendees 91 138
B4 ANIR
Female no. of attendees 6,195 7,429
M AR
By employee category
ZIE B &5
Senior Management no. of attendees 46 127
=R E R ANIR
Middle Management no. of attendees 544 367
hRER AR
Junior Staff no. of attendees 5,696 7,073
R BT ANIR
b) Total training hours hour 20,003 21,868
b) /& 8 3E I B N
By gender
% 1% R
Male hour 276 434
S /N
Female hour 19,727 21,434
7% N
By employee category
ZEE AR
Senior Management hour 328 590
EREEE /INB
Middle Management hour 2,219 1,214
TRERE NG
Junior Staff hour 17,456 20,064
JIRET NS
9 The training data in the table did not include the participants in Mainland China’s retailing operations attending the topics related

to anti-corruption.
ERANBINBEETEERBEATEEH2 BT EHBENINAL -
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
BB A R ER S

REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Social Aspect (Continued)

RRERMSHERNVERE (F)

HEHEHEE)
3) Development and Training (Continued) 3) BRRIZI(E)
W F 3R R 15 5l B 15 1Y LE BO ()

Two-year comparison of employment statistics?®

(Continued)
B3: Development and Training Unit Year ended Year ended
28 February 28 February
2022 2021
B3: B & K3 B BE-B__F BE-F-_—F
—A=+NH —A=+NH
LEFE LLFE
c) Monthly proportion of employees % 26.97 36.34
trained
c)RilEENEBAFHLLH
By gender
o]l
Male % 6.15 14.56
]
Female % 30.48 39.73
g
By employee category
21 & R A
Senior Management % 10.26 9.83
mREIEE
Middle Management % 18.14 11.38
FREEE
Junior Staff % 34.15 53.91
MFEET
d) Monthly number of training hours hour 0.77 1.03
per employee
AEEEENE A FEZIRE N
By gender
=1 Rl
Male hour 017 0.40
S /N
Female hour 0.85 1.13
gl /N
By employee category
ZIESRA
Senior Management hour 0.69 0.50
SRERE /N
Middle Management hour 0.63 0.38
hREIERE s
Junior Staff hour 0.92 1.45
MNFEEL NS
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
REL -l KEia

REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Social Aspect (Continued)

4)

Labour Standards

The Group is dedicated to safeguarding the rights
and interests of employees by building a fair working
environment for employees. Also, the Group has
been strictly complying with regulations to ensure
that no form of forced labour is imposed and no child
labour is recruited.

During the reporting period, the Group did not have
any employment of child labour or any violation of
regulations related to forced labour.

Preventive measures against child labour

Applicant is required to fill in his/her personal
information in the employment application form, to
show his/her personal identification documentation
for the Group’s verification of his/her age and other
personal information.

Applicant below the legal minimum working age
is not allowed to attend the job interview. The
designated department of the Group would verify
the age of the applicant and the authenticity of the
personal identification documentation. The Group
would only recruit those applicants at or above the
legal minimum working age.

Retail department in-charge and HR department
would conduct shop inspection to confirm that all
employees currently working at shops have passed
through the normal recruitment channel.

In event of identification of any child labour in the
daily management, the Group would terminate
the employment relationship and proceed the
subsequent steps in accordance with the legal
requirements.

Preventive measures against forced labour

Upon onboarding, the Group would request new
employee to submit the personal identification
documentation for HR verification, but anyway will
not withhold the identification documentation nor
request for any deposit.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Social Aspect (Continued)

4)

5)

Labour Standards (Continued)

Preventive measures against forced labour
(Continued)

In accordance with the job descriptions and the
appropriate conditions for task arrangement, the
Group would not adopt threatening or violent
practices for coercing employees to take on
incapable or unreasonable jobs.

The Group would not force employees to work
overtime. In case of any overtime need, prior
consensus from employee and advance approval is
required. Overtime application would be submitted
by the employee himself/herself and not requested
by supervisor.

If there was the occurrence of any forced labour
condition, the Group would immediately commence
the investigation and eliminate the condition in
accordance with the legal requirements.

Supply Chain Management
Geographical distribution of Suppliers

As of 28 February 2022, the Group engaged a total
of 34 suppliers, all of which were located in Mainland
China, for provision of production subcontracting
services, warehousing services, non-woven bags,
paper bags and courier cartons as well as other
packaging materials to the Group.

Assessment of Suppliers

The Group has established supplier assessment
process that requires evaluation prior to formal
procurement. During the reporting period, the
Group engaged a total of 6 new suppliers, of which
one belonged to a new supplier of courier carton
boxes. The scope of evaluation included production
capacity, quality assurance system, and the aspects
related to social responsibility, etc., for assuring
the compliance with the requirements imposed by
customers, regulators and the Group’s policy.
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B - e KA G

REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

RERMEHERHRE (&)

Social Aspect (Continued)

5)

Supply Chain Management (Continued)
Assessment of Suppliers (Continued)

Existing suppliers were also evaluated as needed
for continual monitoring and a total of 19 suppliers
for shoes manufacturing has passed the evaluation
during the period. Based on the magnitude of
impacts associated with different supplies to the
Group’s finished goods, different methods of
evaluation may apply accordingly, including on-
site inspection, product testing, sample approval,
random inspection of mass production, verification
of qualification documents, self-assessment
questionnaire, etc. New supply of materials could
only be formally purchased upon passing of the
supplier evaluation.

Control of Environmental and Social Risks

For materials and supplies containing potentially
hazardous substances, including those supplies
of exterior leather, interior leather, metal buckles,
sole materials, heels, and finished shoes, the Group
requires suppliers to provide materials in compliance
with relevant regulations and standards and passing
the relevant environmental tests, for example:

e |eather — scope of testing: content of
formaldehyde, and decomposable harmful
aromatic amine dye;

e  Metallic buckles in footwear — scope of testing:
content of nickel release, and content of heavy
metals such as lead (Pb), cadmium (Cd),
mercury (Hg), hexavalent chromium (Cr (VI)), etc.

The procurement contracts between the Group and
suppliers will require the suppliers to submit the
materials for third-party testing and to refrain from
using materials which would damage the environment
or contain any hazardous substances harmful to
human. Whenever appropriate, the attachments
to the procurement contract will specify those
hazardous substances that could not be contained,
such as formaldehyde, decomposable harmful
aromatic amine dye, heavy metals, etc.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Social Aspect (Continued)

5)

Supply Chain Management (Continued)

Control of Environmental and Social Risks
(Continued)

Formal procurement could only be made after
evaluation of the environmental testing results of
those materials containing potentially hazardous
substances, for controlling their respective emission,
pollution or other adverse effects on the environment.

For those suppliers whose operation impose
significant impact to the environment, the scope
of the Group’s evaluation would even cover their
preventive measures against environmental pollution.
It requires the suppliers to provide the evidence
in meeting the targets of discharging effluent in
accordance with environmental requirement of the
local government and compliance with the relevant
environmental regulations and standards.

Therefore, in additional to material testing, production
subcontractors were also evaluated on their valid
discharge permits, including the installation of
environmental protection equipment, transfer and
handling of hazardous wastes, environmental test
reports related to exhaust gases and noise, etc. In
selection of suppliers, priority would then be given
to those not imposing significant environmental
hazards.

Moreover, the Group also evaluated the operational
compliance of other business partners in the supply
chain and assessed the involved risks related to
social responsibility, such as: compliances in labour
management, occupational safety, product safety
and risk of commercial bribery.

For enhancing the resilience against the labour
compliance risks along the supply chain, the Group
has added contractual terms regarding labour
protection in the procurement documentation. All
suppliers are required to renew the procurement
contracts on an annual basis for acknowledging the
commitment to labour protection and declaration of
the relevant compliance status.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
REL -l KEia

REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Social Aspect (Continued)

5)

6)

Supply Chain Management (Continued)
Green Procurement

Whenever complying with operating requirements,
the Group will give priority to equipment and
materials that are environmentally friendly in nature.
For shoe boxes currently purchased by the Group,
the raw materials were environmentally friendly
papers which could be recyclable. In the past six
years, recyclable paper has been adopting for
manufacturing of shoe boxes. The Group prioritized
those suppliers of shoes boxes, who have attained
certification from Forest Stewardship Council (FSC).

In addition to shoes boxes, the Group is striving to
work with suppliers on exploration and application of
environmentally friendly materials as the components
of the Group’s finished goods, such as for producing
the outer layer of shoes.

Upon selection of energy-consuming equipment,
priority is also given to products that are certified or
labelled as energy efficient.

In addition, the Group has established local
procurement policy as one of the measures for green
procurement. Under similar cost and product quality
conditions, priority is given to local (Mainland China
and Hong Kong) suppliers of products and services
for minimizing emission of greenhouse gases from
transportation during the procurement processes.

In the reporting year, all suppliers were situated at
Mainland China and there was no direct overseas
procurement.

Product Responsibility

For assuring product compliance and meeting
customers’ expectations, the Group provides
customers with accurate and true information on
the quality and safety of its products. All products
must pass through testing on quality and safety
requirements, including those tests on materials like
leather, metallic accessories, etc., for assuring quality
and safety of the products delivered.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Social Aspect (Continued)

6)

Product Responsibility (Continued)

For management of product compliance, the Group
would agree with the suppliers regarding the terms of
requirements on technological standard and quality
assurance, with the aim to safeguard the brand
reputation of the Group.

Prior to the delivery of finished goods, the Group
would assign quality control personnel to conduct
sampling and inspection at the factory site. Finished
goods are allowed to release only upon fulfillment of
the quality standards.

According to the categories of shoes and handbags,
“Three-R” provision (i.e. Return, Replacement,
Repair) applies to the sold products under specific
conditions: First, items guaranteed for return;
second, items guaranteed for repair; third, handling
of product replacement. According to “Three-R”
provision, the following table set forth the accepted
number of requests for product return and repair
during the reporting period.

BB - AL E R ARl

iﬁ»

6)

gl (HF)
EREEE)

ABTEBERAR E.ﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁ1

HEFNIEBHEER L - MYE%BC
TEEEMBERER Ri'u%
B@%.E@DDW—
ERmEER FEgIREM@EA
BEFETHRIE FTREERZ
BA BT °

EREMSRENTRERN  £F
ERENBATHATIZRIATE B
— BRER F- BEHEE S
= BERE -HRI=ZBIFEE T
KA AEBERNKEHAKZRD
RENMEFROEE -

Number of Returns Accepted Number of Repairs Accepted
EMNRERHY™ EANEERY

Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended

28 February 28 February 28 February 28 February

2022 2021 2022 2021

BE-ZE-_—F BE-ZT-—F BE-ZT-_—-F HBE-F=-—F§

Product type —A=+NH —A=+NH —A=+NH —A=+NH

EmER LtEE L§E L+FE LHE

Shoes 205 1,114 2,875 3,094

&

Handbags 4 0 34 11

F&

In the same period, apart from the aforesaid
customer requests for returns and repairs, the Group
did not identify any significant incident of product
non-compliance or any case of customer complaint,
nor identify any recall incident owing to product’s
health and safety issues.

B RTLANEFPREREREE
K-AEEHLBEEREANE M
EHERIEBEFPEF LEEAEM
MNE2HERBREAMOBAETEHEUY
B E 2R -
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
REL -l KEia

REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL BRERHSHEHBNRS (A

ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Social Aspect (Continued) HEEHE(E)

6) Product Responsibility (Continued) 6) EmEE(E)
The Group has designated the particular department SENRIIEEHN BERER
to be responsible for handling of customer FROKFEZEZ TEVERRBE
complaints and the initiation of product recall e W fF o

procedure whenever necessary.

In case of need for product recall, the Group would MEARFELOKWHMNE EFEHEE
work with the responsible supplier for quality mEENEHERETEERE - I
investigation and with the relevant departments to BB ZAEERDE &
analyse the product issues for formulation of the KElTFRERE i o

corrective actions.

Protection of Intellectual Property Rights A 3% R A E

The employees of the Group also adhere to the REBEITKRITVIRE (REHM
established rules for protection of intellectual B ERE o

property.

In the reporting year, the Group has applied EREAFERAMMEIBE R A E
patents from “China National Intellectual Property ERIRBEERNAES M INMINE RS
Administration” regarding the appearance design EH - WEBAKIDEFE2EER - BIR
of metal buckles and have successfully registered EEERMERANTSMHNEE N
2 items for assuring intellectual property rights of HERRE -

the buckle accessories being used in the Group’s

products.

Information and documentation related to the EmBEA - BIMMRREEZPNH
intellectual property of customers, such as product ERAEAORZREREXXH %A
drawings, technical specifications, would be secured HERBRIMFARERT KA&ELHT
and stored by the designated department. Without ETTEBEAEEN B X EEEA
prior approval, employees are not allowed to make Al o

photocopy or to take away from the company

premises.

The Group is bound by confidentiality agreement EEeHTPRPFIIREZHE  ER
with customers not to disclose customer information TEINEBEIMBEFER -

to external parties.

Also, the Group has signed with confidentiality R EEeEERSIENESEE
agreements with business partners, for committing 1R 25 19 =% ﬁ@{%Wﬁ%ﬁ% F {a] =
no external disclosure of any product information. mBa R e
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Social Aspect (Continued)

6)

7)

Product Responsibility (Continued)

Protection of Intellectual Property Rights
(Continued)

Regarding application of commercial software in the
office application, the Group is committed to not
procuring software in any form of pirated version and
only purchasing from the authorized dealers.

For security of customer data, based on different
infraction risk levels, the Group will use hardware
firewall to protect the stored data from attacks by
hackers, enables behaviour management equipment,
activates login account in enhanced password format
as well as mandatory changes of passwords every
three months, and requires access to internal file
servers under permission.

Anti-Corruption

The Group is convinced that fairness, honesty and
integrity are its important commercial assets, and
therefore requires all employees (including directors)
at different levels to strictly adhere to business ethics,
which ensures that the Group’s reputation will not be
compromised by misconducts such as dishonesty,
disloyalty or corruption. We have incorporated the
requirements of relevant laws and regulations in the
“Employee Code of Practice”, which provides concise
and clear guidance for all employees in the aspects
of prevention of corruption and bribery, solicitation of
benefits, acceptance of benefits, conflict of interest,
confidential information, etc. This reduces the risks of
involvement in acts of corruption and bribery.

At the same time, the Group requires all employees
at all ranks to declare and state any possible conflict
of interests with the Group that may arise during
the daily operations. In addition, we encourage
employees to report misconduct, fraudulent activities
and illegal behaviours related to the Group under
the confidential whistleblowing mechanism. Current
means of reporting is generally in the form of mails
sent to the designated mailbox of senior management
for this whistleblowing purpose.

BB - AL E R ARl
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
REL -l KEia

REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Social Aspect (Continued)

7)

Anti-Corruption (Continued)

The Group has included the integrity trading terms
in the procurement contracts. For those suppliers in
long-term partnership, both parties have signed the
designated integrity contracts. During the reporting
period, the Group did not identify any incident of
behaviour non-compliant with the code, nor violation
of regulations related to corruption. Also, no incident
of relevant whistleblowing was received in the same
period.

During the procurement process, the Group seeks
quotations from more than one supplier to ensure
fair and reasonable offers. In addition, managerial
personnel of different rankings have been designated
to review and approve orders of different monetary
thresholds to reduce the risks of corruption and
bribery. During the reporting period, there was no
declaration for conflict of interests in any relevant
procurement.

Anti-corruption trainings of the Group covered the
topics like integrity, employee’s code of conduct,
business ethics, compliance behaviour, etc. The
mode of training was not limited to classroom training
or seminar, and other mode could be sending the
anti-corruption reminder notice or email to directors
and all employees. In the reporting year, the notice
regarding “Regulations for Declaration of Accepted
Benefits” was also sent to all administrative staff for
reminder purpose.

Regarding the classroom training or seminar, it was
arranged in accordance with the types of employees
and a total of 366 employees participated in this
reporting year.

Upon new employee’s onboarding, training would be
provided to their committed requirements regarding
code of conduct, integrity agreement, etc., as well
as preventive measures against corruption which
included elaboration on declaration and form filling
for conflict of interest.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
BB A R ER S

REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL RERCSHBENRSE (E)

ASPECTS (CONTINUED)

Social Aspect (Continued) HEEE(E)

7) Anti-Corruption (Continued) 7) RES(E)
For job positions which have liaisons with external HREMEINSIBRBEBRETER
parties and higher demand of integrity requirements, EESHEEXNIEEAN 20
such as financial department, supply chain Brfs = - HEES  migE . &£
department, marketing department, the Group BHoELTHEFEEINGE T 5
would arrange appropriate training topics for their BN EAEEETEREHEZ
participation, some of the topics like integrity T LMEAREBHNIEZEEESE -

agreement signed with suppliers, and precautions
during contract review and approval, etc.

Moreover, the Group arranged employees in Hong o EETHEEAE T2 HEER
Kong to participate “Corruption Prevention Seminar” NEIFRIMH EEEY  INER
organized by Independent Commission Against THEELR2H[FERAZ]IME L
Corruption (ICAC), also particularly arranged directors BB EBEME) RBRE
to participate another ICAC on-line training named FTTRARIEERSREEABHNN
“Business Integrity Story”, which elaborated the roles ZERAR -

of directors and senior management staff in the listed
companies for integrity governance.

8) Community Investment 8) HERKRHE
Over years, the Group has been supporting the ZERANEER N BB E KRS -
community and the industry in various aspects like T#EE RBRR RBESZHIEE
charity, environmental protection, health, with the aim BEEMALT - TRINBAREEEER
to assist the people in need. The following table set YEMNTFELREERABREE

main community activities and related contributions
made by the Group in the reporting year:

Type of Event Organizer/Name of Event Sponsorship Employee
EBER BRBETEME 25 Participation
ETI2H
Contribution Through participation in HSBC Green Deposit
towards low- Programme'?, integrate the sustainability agenda
carbon economy into the treasury activities, for contributing to a
S EREE greener and more resilient future
FERSEELRTINGEFEXGE  BAHE
ERFERABENBEDP  RedgeE
FPEREERFENNARAREB—HNE -

10 Green Deposit Programme is an offer by HSBC which use the deposit of participating companies to fund eligible environmentally
beneficial projects and businesses. The usage of the deposits would be governed by HSBC internal governance structure. The
Group, as one of the deposit owners, would receive quarterly report containing portfolio-level information regarding the use of
deposited funds.

HEFRFTERANELYRITIRE FL2ECERUVBERELGTEAERRYANBERER - HAFKZINDELRITIN
NMERREMEBHERMRR - AEH  FRFENEF—UEFRE  HREERELEZFALEGHNREMEESE -
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
BRYE AL RERHRE

REPORTING ON ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL RERCSHBENRSE (E)
ASPECTS (CONTINUED)
Social Aspect (Continued) HEHEHEE)
8) Community Investment (Continued) 8) #HERE(E)
Type of Event Organizer/Name of Event Sponsorship Employee
& B R BRWE TEMEE =40 Participation
BEI2H
Anti-pandemic Provision of idle Shunde factory site for Foshan
Support Shunde Xincun village committee to proceed novel
& coronavirus pandemic (COVID-19) testing services
for nearby villagers and employees of the nearby
enterprises

MNAEEEEmEESR S TEHLIEEERNF
Z € 1E R B (COVID-19) 1 Bl 8935 3t - A KT
MR KM 288 TR H#COVID-19# Bl R 7% °

Charitable Fund- 1) “Skip Lunch Day” fund-raising activities by The

raising Event Community Chest of Hong Kong
REEX BERER@ETRAIETED

- support for street sleepers, residents in cage
homes and cubicles (subdivided flats)

-XEBEE HEMEEER

2) Valentine’s Rose Charity Sale by St. James’

Settlement

[ERESEHSIBADNHREER

— Donation to support deprived families and
elderly

-EFXERERRERFEAL

Environmental 1) “Green Day” by The Community Chest of Hong
Protection Kong
RBR YN AR SR 4=l

- Encouragement to ride on environment-friendly
means of transportation and green form of
travel

-RBARFLRRRBIE  EHT

2) Upcycling Ocean Plastic Coaster Workshop by

St. James’ settlement

[ERERHESIEFINBARBETES

- Upcycle the plastic and arouse sense of
environmental protection

-BRARBE BRERRER

Health Support “Love Teeth Day” by The Community Chest of Hong
2 Bz Kong

NN AN =l
- fundraising for oral health services
- e R RS K
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The board of directors (the “Board”) of Le Saunda
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) has pleasure in
presenting to the shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) its report together with the audited
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) for the year ended 28 February
2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The activities of its principal subsidiaries are set
out in note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.
The Group is principally engaged in trading and sale of
footwear.

Details of the analysis of the Group’s performance for
the year ended 28 February 2022 by business and
geographical segments are set out in note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Group as required
pursuant to Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), comprising
analysis of the Group’s performance during the vyear,
description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing
the Group, particulars of important events affecting the
Group that have occurred since the end of the financial
year as well as indication of likely future development in
the business of the Group are set out in the Chairman’s
Statement on pages 10 to 13 of this report and
Management’s Discussion and Analysis on pages 14 to 32
of this report.

An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year
using financial key performance indicators is set out in the
Financial Highlights on pages 2 to 3 of this report.

e e T
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
HREHRE

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

)

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group understands that its business has an
impact on the environment and recognised the
importance of sound environmental management
and sustainable development. It is committed to
complying with the relevant environmental legislations
and standards related to its business operations as
set by the authorities in the People’s Republic of
China (“PRC”) and Hong Kong where it operates.

“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of
the Group (the “ESG Report”) is set out on pages
66 to 104 of this report. The ESG Report has been
prepared in accordance with the “comply or explain”
provisions and mandatory disclosure requirements
of the “Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide” as set out in Appendix 27 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). The report details the
environmental policy of the Group and their actual
effectiveness, and further discuss the relationships
between the Group and its key stakeholders as
well as the compliance with significant laws and
regulations.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

(1) Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group recognises the importance of compliance
with regulatory requirements and the risks of non-
compliance with such requirements. The Group has
conducted on-going review of the newly enacted
laws and regulations affecting the operations of the
Group and provides relevant trainings and guidance
to the staff. The Group has complied with the
relevant laws and regulations of PRC and Hong Kong
that have significant impact on the operations of the
Group for the year ended 28 February 2022.

(Ill) Key Relationships

@)

(b)

Employees

The Group believes that employees are a key
element to the success of its business, so it
strives to maintain a high staff retention rate by
providing competitive remuneration packages
and developing a harmonious workplace.
To enhance the capabilities and productivity
of its employees, the Group provides a
comprehensive training program to instill them
with quality service skills, product knowledge
and language and interpersonal skills. In
addition, the Group organises regular staff
gatherings to promote team spirit and enhance
the recognition of the Group’s corporate culture
and values amongst the staff.

Consumers

The Group provides direct service to consumers
in its retail shops. To ensure continuous
improvement of the quality of products and
services, the Group regularly conducts internal
and external market surveys to interact with
consumers and to gain more market insights
and feedback.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
HREHRE

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)
(Il1) Key Relationships (Continued)
(c) Suppliers

The Group has established long business
relationship with certain suppliers. It selects
its suppliers prudently. The relevant suppliers
need to fulfil certain assessment criteria of the
Group, including, among others, track record,
experience, financial capability, reputation
and history of meeting our standards for raw
materials or finished products. As the Group
is committed to managing the environmental
performance of its supply chain, the Group
will prioritize the adoption of products made of
environmentally-friendly materials and focus on
partnership with those suppliers possessing
environmental technology. The Group has
established anti-bribery policies which are
required to be observed by all parties with
business dealings with the Group.

(d) Shareholders and Investors

The Board believes effective communication
and the disclosure of accurate and timely
information build the confidence of Shareholders
and investors, and also facilitate the flow of
constructive feedback and ideas that are
beneficial for investor relations and future
corporate development. For details, please
refer to the Shareholders’ Rights and Investor
Relations of the Corporate Governance Report
on pages 63 to 65 of this report.
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RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 28 February
2022 are set out in the consolidated income statement on
page 140 of this report.

No interim dividend was paid for the year ended 28
February 2022 (2020/21: an interim special dividend of
HK$5.0 cents per ordinary share).

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final
dividend (2020/21: a final dividend of HK15.0 cents per
ordinary share and a final special dividend of HK35.0
cents per ordinary share) in respect of the year ended 28
February 2022.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The five-year financial summary of the Group is set out on
pages 250 to 251 of this report. The summary does not
form part of the audited financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the movements in the issued share capital of

the Company during the year are set out in note 26 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES
Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group

and the Company during the year are set out in notes 29
and 34(b) to the accompanying financial statements.

As at 28 February 2022, the Company’s retained
earnings and contributed surplus of approximately
RMB146,026,000 (2020/21: RMB438,555,000) were
available for distribution to the Company’s shareholders.

DONATIONS

The Group did not make any charitable donation during
the year (2020/21: NIL).
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
HREHRE

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-Laws”) or the laws of
Bermuda which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the principal investment properties held by the
Group are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details of principal subsidiaries of the Group are set out in
note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) during the
year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors
Ms. Chui Kwan Ho, Jacky
Mr. Li Wing Yeung, Peter
Ms. Liu Tsz Yan
(appointed with effect from 25 April 2022)
Ms. Liao Jian Yu
(resigned with effect from 1 May 2022)

Non-Executive Director
Mr. James Ngai (Chairman)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon
Mr. Leung Wai Ki, George
Mr. Hui Chi Kwan
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of the Directors and senior
management of the Group as at the date of this report are
set out on pages 33 to 36 of this report.

RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

In accordance with Bye-Law 87 of the Bye-Laws, Mr.
Lam Siu Lun, Simon and Mr. Li Wing Yeung, Peter shall
retire from office by rotation at the annual general meeting
("AGM”) and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming AGM.

Pursuant to Bye-Law 86(2) of the Bye-Laws, Ms. Liu Tsz
Yan, who has been appointed as an Executive Director,
will hold office only until the forthcoming AGM and, being
eligible, will offer herself for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM.

INDEPENDENCE CONFIRMATION

The Company has received from each of the Independent
Non-Executive Directors an annual confirmation of
their respective independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that
all Independent Non-Executive Directors meet the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and are independent in accordance with
the guidelines. Whilst Mr. James Ngai and Mr. Hui Chi
Kwan are both directors of the Company and Max Sight
Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 08483) and thus
hold cross-directorships, the Board determines that Mr.
Hui Chi Kwan is nevertheless independent with respect
to his directorship at the Company since Mr. James Ngai
and Mr. Hui Chi Kwan hold only non-executive roles at
both companies and have no interest in both companies
as disclosed under Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming AGM has a service contract with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation). During the year, the service contracts of
Mr. Leung Wai Ki, George, Mr. Hui Chi Kwan and Mr. Lam
Siu Lun, Simon, all acted as Independent Non-Executive
Directors, were renewed for a fixed term of 2 years with
the Company with effect from 1 November 2021, 26
November 2021 and 16 January 2022. In addition, Ms.
Liu Tsz Yan, who was appointed as Executive Director
on 25 April 2022, entered into a service contract with the
Company with effect from 25 April 2022.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

Except for the connected transactions as detailed below,
no transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance
to the Company in which a Director or an entity connected
with a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
entered into any contract of significance with the
Company’s controlling shareholders or their subsidiaries,
or any contract of significance for the provision of
services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries by the
Company’s controlling shareholders or their subsidiaries,
during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors had engaged in or were interested
in any business which competed or was likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group
during the year.

11 2 le saunda holdings Itd. %% & &7 fFHEAR B R A 7

EEZRBEL

BREERRBAFAELBEEECES
B B KR R s B AR R B B A /) BT SLAE A
REBTABR—FRTAIEFATEHEERS
MR IRIEEL - HEIETEEERI -
RERN - BWIUFRPTESRERELE 5T
RS E MK oA - BB QR ERT W
FRTFHZRBEH 2T =—
F+—A—B ZZE-_—F+—-—A=+~
ARk—_ZT-_—_F—A+BRBEK- I
Sy  BERZTEBEZERMITE S KM
RAAREIURBEY BZE-_F1A
“t+HRBRER -

EE2XREG ZTHREWER

BN X Frerl < BB ZIN  RERLF
AERER YTEEEFHEEREHE
ZEBRARBZRS - REREHTE
EEERSMECERER -

ZRBRR2ENER

RER > ARBHEEFAMEARRAR
AIERRBCR S AL M B 2 R 2 A 3 8 7] 37
EMEZEHN  HBEARAZEBRBERX
H P B X B 7 A8 & 7] 3k E AT AT B B X B 4
HRBONEZAL -

EENBRFRBES

RER BEEF2HEECABAEEE
BREAKAEBRBEFZIER  INZ
EBhHEAE R EEER -



CHANGES IN DIRECTORSHIP AND OTHER
CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

The changes in directorship and other changes in the

information of the Directors of the Company, which are
required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the
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Listing Rules, subsequent to the publication of the annual &N ESFEER 2 EMmEFHEF I WO T :
report of the Company for the year ended 28 February
2021 are set out below:

Name of Directors Details of change

EEnA BEFE

Independent Non-Executive Director:

BYFHITES:

Mr. Leung Wai Ki, George ° Renewed service contract with the Company with a fixed term of 2

RERELSE years commencing on 1 November 2021 and ending on 31 October
2023
EEARREIREEY BT —F+—HA-HARBRE-T=_=
FrA=1T—HBIi AMFEEFH

Mr. Hui Chi Kwan ° Renewed service contract with the Company with a fixed term of

BT IR 8958 A& 2 years commencing on 26 November 2021 and ending on 25
November 2023
BEEARABBIRBEEHN BT _—F+—-—AZ+RAREZ
—=%+—A=+AHIL" %ﬁﬁlmi%

Mr. Lam Siu Lun, Simon ° Renewed service contract with the Company with a fixed term of 2

MK B S A years commencing on 16 January 2022 and ending on 15 January
2024
EREARRBIRE AL AT -_—F— A+ XHEZE-_Z_

F-A+THBLI AMEREFH

Executive Directors:
HITES:
Ms. Liao Jian Yu ° Resigned as an Executive Director with effect from 1 May 2022

BiEmit BT _FhA-HEHRCETHTESF

Ms. Liu Tsz Yan °
BIEHRZ+t

Appointed as an Executive Director with effect from 25 April 2022

B —FNATHAAREZERNTES

° Entered into a service contract with the Company without a fixed
term commencing on 25 April 2022
HARRFIVEEEFH 2 REEH BZE-__FMA-THA
B A R

BREXPFIIREEN  BEAMEN AR

Saved as disclosed above, there is no other information

required to be disclosed herein pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1)
of the Listing Rules.

B FWAR B EA351BOVIE Z 3R E M P LAE
g o
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 28 February 2022, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and chief executive of the Company
in the ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the capital
of the Company (the “Shares”), underlying Shares
and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the
Laws of Hong Kong, the “SFQO”)) which were notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they are taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO), as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under section 352
of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules were as follows:

() Long positions in Shares (including
underlying Shares)

EERBRETHRAERARARHEME
BEZEzRD  HBEROREZPAH
BEZEBRAR

RZEZ__F-_A=+/\B ' XRRE=SE
E&amiTBABRARAR R EEEEZE (F
ERBBEMBSNMEBLFLEEEN ([ F
HFRHEHEERGDEXVE) 2 AP EFRE
B0 T2 EBR(IRM]) - HEKRH
NESHFTFHE  BREZFHFLBEKRD
EXVERETR FE870 S A Mg AN QA KB
RFIZEGEEAXBE(BIEBREBEEALRBE
GOl ZEBRNEEESIR BHRE 2
HHRAR) WERAREZESFRBER
BIEIRIGERMERAFE2ELSMecEZ R
KB RWIBE EMARRWEETATE 2 £
MBITAEFHETEFRHHZESTR ([1Z
EFADBHNEARA BRI 2R X
KB

() Bz (BIEERERKRST)

Number of Shares
R&%A
Approximate
percentage
of the issued
Personal Spouse Corporate Other share capital of
Name of Directors interests interests interests interests Total  the Company
HEALFER
EStE fAAER REgEz AR s By REEAM
Mr. Li Wing Yeung, Peter (*Mr, L") 6,239,200 11,000 - 55,000,000 61,250,200 8.67%
TkBEE (Note 1) Note )
(W) (hit2)
Ms. Chui Kwan Ho, Jacky (“Ms. Chul") 5,779,000 - - - 5,779,000 0.81%
B (Brt))
Ms. Liao Jian Yu (‘Ms. Liao’) 299,200 - - - 299,200 0.04%
(resjgned with effect from 1 May 2022) (Note 3)
BEAZL(BERL)) (H#3)
(B-E--£7f-HEgH)
Mr. Leung Wai Ki, George (‘Mr. Leung’) - - - 1,700,000 1,700,000 0.24%
RRERE(REE) (Note 4)
(i)
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN

THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS (CONTINUED)

() Long positions in Shares (including
underlying Shares) (Continued)

Notes:

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EE A -E e

EERESTHRAEREARATREMN
BEZEzZRG SHBEAROREZFH
BEZEZRAR (&)

) ROz (EBEEBRG) (&)

1.

Mr. Li personally held 5,909,200 Shares and was entitled to
330,000 share options granted by the Company, the underlying
Shares of which he was taken to have an interest.

Mr. Li, Ms. Lee Wing Kam Rowena Jackie and Ms. Cheung Man
Ching, Teresa jointly held 55,000,000 Shares as trustees of The
Lee Keung Charitable Foundation, (the “Charitable Foundation”)
representing approximately 7.79% of the issued share capital
of the Company. Therefore, all of them are deemed to be
interested in these Shares which are duplicated amongst their
respective interests.

Ms. Liao personally held 114,400 Shares and was entitled to
184,800 share options granted by the Company, the underlying
Shares of which she was taken to have an interest.

Mr. Leung was a governor of Xin Chuan Middle School
Foundation Limited, which held 1,700,000 Shares. Therefore,
Mr. Leung was deemed to be interested in these Shares.

1.

Z k15 5% 4 @ A £ 5,909,200 B% 5 &
& 7N A R F330,0001 B B AE 0 R
HERMDPHEREE -

FRBEE FREREIREXELLE
RERRBES(BEERNDZRTAHR
7 % 55,000,000 i {7 - 16 A~ &) 2 %
TTEIRAKT79% - HIt REH WA RBEER
ZEROZER  MREEEZRO#ER
EHER -

Bz £ @ A E114,4000% Bk (0 & AR
Al ¥ F184,80017 f8 A% 4 - 1% 1 5% AR B %
DHREBER -

ENFEESERAATENNDREE
RENZER A)FH1,700,0000% K15 o
At - REEHEEBREZERMHER -
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN

THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS (CONTINUED)

(Il) Long positions in underlying shares and
debentures of the Company

EERBRETHRAERARARHEME
BEZEzRD  HBEROREZPAH
BERBERRXRE(E)

) FAFAZHEHBEBRORESZHFAR

Interests in share options BIREER
Adjusted number of shares options Note 3
SRE BREHA )
Total
Date of Balance outstanding Adjusted
share as at Granted  Exercised  Cancelled Lapsed as at exercise
Name of options 1 March during during during during 28 February price per  Exercise
Directors granted 2021 the year the year the year the year 2022 Share  period
(Notes 14 2) Note 3)
R-F=-F gt Jumpat 3 e
RUBRE =h-B RER RER RER REAR ZAZTNR 28R
3.2 ZRH 28 R e B X% HRAE i ARAH
W1k (W3
HKS
BT
Mr. Li 10 July 2012 110,000 - - - - 110,000 2185 10 July 2014-9 July 2022
FxBRE 20125 7A10R 20145 7R10AZ 20205 7AIE
10 July 2012 110,000 - - - - 110,000 2185 10 July 2015-9 July 2022
0125 7A108 2015E7R108 220225 7A9H
10 July 2012 110,000 - - - - 110,000 2185 10 July 2016-9 July 2022
012877108 2016% 7108 22022 7A9H
Ms. Liao 10 July 2012 184,800 - - - - 184,800 2185 10 July 2016-9 July 2022
(resigned with 201274108 201657108 22022 7A9H
effect from 1 May
2022)
Bat
(E-F--£TF
—HEE )
Total 514,800 - - - - 514,800
@it
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN

THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS (CONTINUED)

(I1) Long positions in underlying shares and

EERBRETHRAERARARHEME
BEZEzRD  HBEROREZPAH
BERBERRXRE(E)

debentures of the Company (Continued)

Interests in share options (Continued)

Notes:

1. The vesting period of the above share options is from their date
of grant until the commencement of their exercise period.

2. The closing price of the Shares immediately before 10 July
2012 on which the share options were granted was HK$2.41
per Share.

3. On 13 July 2015, an ordinary resolution was duly passed

by the Shareholders at the annual general meeting of the
Company to approve the issue of bonus Shares on the basis
of one bonus Share for every ten existing Shares held by the
qualifying Shareholders on the record date (the “Bonus Issue”).
As a result of the Bonus Issue, adjustments were made to the
exercise price and the number of Shares to be allotted and
issued upon full exercise of subscription rights attached to the
outstanding share options with effect from 30 July 2015. The
exercise price per Share indicated in the above table is the
exercise price per Share after the said adjustments were made
on 30 July 2015. Prior to the adjustments, the exercise price
per Share in relation to share options granted on 10 July 2012
was HK$2.404. For details, please refer to the announcement
of the Company dated 29 July 2015.

Save as disclosed above, as at 28 February 2022,
none of the Directors or chief executive (including
their spouse and children under 18 years of age) of
the Company had any interests and/or short positions
in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the
Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and/or short positions which are taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO),
as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

) F2FAzHBEROREZRZEFE(H)

BREREZ (&
Bret

1. LABREZENREHHAIRHARE
=T HERABRL -

2. ERE_Z-—HFLATHRUBEREAN-
B mERER241ETT -

3. RZZE—AF+LA+=A ARAIZHERE
RARRZBRREAFAS LI BRALA
REBE - UHEETARET  EEAR
REAHAERRREBATRBEERD
B — AT R (TAT AR 3 1T]) - R ETTAL
RET MRITEBERBZITFEERZ
CHEBREMNREREZATERET
BEERBETZROHEEHAR A%
—RAFELtA=Z+THRBER - RATERATI 2
BRTEEAR-_ZE—HELA=1+HH
BEZBRITEE - RAE - FER=
T——FLtA+HEBLZEREZTRT
FEAR2404FB T - BAFE FE2HEX
RAM—ZFE—RFELA=-tHhAZAE -

Br EXFTHEEIN R —F
AZ+N\B BMEARAESTIES
TBRABEBEFERSEZEB R TR
TN ZF L) AAAR SR AE (F
EABHFRBEKGEXVE) 2K
M - HERNDKEFEETHRE
BHEMHEEOEXVEETR 8D
HEMEARREBMRAIzEER,/
IAE (BRREBREZEHFRBEGMZ
ZEBRXWEESIREBERBE 2R
Y /8%kR) Wit AREEF M
BEiKPIFEI2E B[ EMFTE 2 &L
ZHEER AR AR IB IR EST
AlBMEARRI BRIz ER R,

EP R
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ARRANGEMENTS FOR DIRECTORS TO
PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Directors’
and chief executive’s interests and short positions in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations” above and
the paragraph headed “Share Option Scheme” below,
during the year ended 28 February 2022, (a) at no time
was the Company or a specified undertaking (as defined
in the Companies (Directors’ Report) Regulation (Chapter
622D of the Laws of Hong Kong)) of the Company a party
to any arrangements to enable the Directors or the chief
executive of the Company to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate; and (b) none of
the Directors, their respective spouses nor their respective
children under the age of 18 had any right to subscribe
for securities of the Company or had exercised any such
rights.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER FTERRAEEMATABRORAEBR
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN BoEZRAAE
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 28 February 2022, according to the register of RZZEZ—_F-_A =+ \H BEZFE5NK
interests in Shares and short positions of the Company HiE &M E336IEHEMFEE 2 IR
required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO, the Kk XE ZEMPTaEs: N4 AT 5E
following persons or corporations (other than the Directors (AR ATIEEZE X HFETEHAEBIN RIEH
or chief executive of the Company) had interests or short sk D PHEAEZ KA E MBIRIE
positions in the Shares and underlying Shares which FEA5&K B ESEUIEXVIEFE2R E30 2 1E
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the  H# 55 :

provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

() Interests and short positions of substantial ) EERFEAROCKEEROZER
shareholders in the Shares and underlying E#RE
Shares
Long positions in Shares Bz E

Number of Shares and nature of interests

RSB R %8R
Approximate
percentage
of the issued
Interests of Share
Name of Beneficial controlled Other capital of the
Shareholders owner corporation interests Total Company
HEXDT
ERTRE
RRER BEHEA ERVAER Hit & &t BAL
Mr. Lee Tze Bun, Marces (“Mr. Lee”) 54,561,000 36,600,000 280,500,000 371,661,000 52.65%
FriwkE(ZEx4)) (Notes 1&2)  (Notes 3 & 4)
(Witikz)  (Wi3k4)
Stable Gain Holdings Limited 225,500,000 - — 225,500,000 31.94%
(“Stable Gain”) (Note 5)
(h1325)
Stable Profit Holdings Limited — 225,500,000 — 225,500,000 31.94%
(“Stable Profit”) (Note 5)
(W 7t5)
HSBC International Trustee Limited - — 225,500,000 225,500,000 31.94%
("HSBC Trustee”) (Note 5)

(H1##5)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
(CONTINUED)

() Interests and short positions of substantial
shareholders in the Shares and underlying
Shares (Continued)

Long positions in Shares (Continueqd)

Notes:

1. Succex Limited, a corporation which was controlled and wholly
owned by Mr. Lee, held 33,000,000 Shares. Therefore, Mr. Lee
was deemed to be interested in these Shares.

2. Mr. Lee was a founder and governor of Qing Yun Middle
School Education Development Foundation Limited, which
held 3,600,000 Shares. Therefore, Mr. Lee was deemed to be
interested in these Shares.

3. Stable Gain held 225,500,000 Shares, representing
approximately 31.94% of the issued share capital of the
Company. The entire issued share capital of Stable Gain was
registered in the name of Stable Profit, a company wholly-
owned by HSBC Trustee which acted as trustee of Lee Tze Bun
Family Trust (the “LTB Family Trust”), a discretionary trust, of
which Mr. Lee was the founder (as defined in section 308 of
the SFO) and an eligible beneficiary thereunder. Mr. Lee was
also the sole director of Stable Profit. Therefore, Mr. Lee was
deemed to be interested in these Shares.

4, The Charitable Foundation, of which Mr. Lee was the founder
(as defined in section 308 of the SFO), held 55,000,000 Shares,
representing approximately 7.79% of the issued share capital of
the Company. Therefore, Mr. Lee was deemed to be interested
in these Shares.

5. Stable Gain held 225,500,000 Shares, representing
approximately 31.94% of the issued share capital of the
Company. The entire issued share capital of Stable Gain was
registered in the name of Stable Profit, a company wholly-
owned by HSBC Trustee which acted as trustee of the LTB
Family Trust, a discretionary trust, of which Mr. Lee was a
founder (as defined in section 308 of the SFC) and an eligible
beneficiary thereunder. Mr. Lee was also the sole director of
Stable Profit. Therefore, HSBC Trustee was deemed to be
interested in these Shares in its capacity as trustee (other than
a bare trustee) and Stable Profit was deemed to be interested
in these Shares by virtue of the interest of its controlled
corporation (being Stable Gain). The respective interests
of Stable Gain, Stable Profit and HSBC Trustee were thus
duplicated.
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1. Succex Limited (Z A Rl & % £ 42 5 &
& HH) 1 H33,000,0008 815 o Fit
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER FTERRREMATARORAEBRR
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS meEERKXE(E)

IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

(CONTINUED)

(1)

Interests and short positions of other persons n HtATARORHEBEROZER
in the Shares and underlying Shares kR#KE

Long positions in Shares

KRz E

Number of Shares and nature of interests

RO#ERERER
Approximate
percentage
of the issued
Share
Name of Personal Spouse Other capital of the
Shareholders Note interests Interests interests Total Company
HEARRT
BRTRE
LELY ! it AR ERER Eft s i Rl
Ms. Lee Wing Kam Rowena 1 6,985,000 - 55,000,000 61,985,000 8.78%
Jackie (“Ms. Lee”)
FRELL([ZR1])
Ms. Cheung Man Ching Teresa 2 - 2,585,000 55,000,000 57,585,000 8.15%
(“Ms. Cheung”)
KXELL([REL])
Ms. Lee, Mr. Li and Ms. Cheung 3 - - 55,000,000 55,000,000 7.79%
as trustees of the Charitable
Foundation
2ot FAGRERRLL
BEREEEEZXTA
Ophorst Van Marwijk Kooy 4 35,454,000 - - 35,454,000 5.02%
Vermogensbeheer N.V.
("OVMK")
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
(CONTINUED)

(I1) Interests and short positions of other persons
in the Shares and underlying Shares
(Continued)

Long positions in Shares (Continueqd)

Notes:

1. Ms. Lee was interested in an aggregate of 61,985,000 Shares
(comprising 6,985,000 Shares personally held as beneficial
owner and 55,000,000 Shares jointly held by her, Mr. Li
and Ms. Cheung as trustees of the Charitable Foundation),
representing approximately 8.78% of the issued share capital of
the Company.

2. Ms. Cheung was interested in an aggregate of 57,585,000
Shares (comprising 2,585,000 Shares held by her spouse as
beneficial owner and 55,000,000 Shares jointly held by her,
Ms. Lee and Mr. Li as trustees of the Charitable Foundation),
representing approximately 8.15% of the issued share capital of
the Company.

3. Ms. Lee, Mr. Li and Ms. Cheung jointly held 55,000,000
Shares as trustees of the Charitable Foundation, representing
approximately 7.79% of the issued share capital of the
Company. Therefore, all of them were deemed to be interested
in these Shares which were duplicated amongst their respective
interests.

4, OVMK holds 35,454,000 Shares, representing approximately
5.02% of the issued share capital of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 28 February 2022, the
Company had not been notified of any other persons
(other than the Directors or chief executive of the
Company) or corporation who had interests directly
or indirectly and/or short positions in the Shares and
underlying Shares of the Company which would be
required to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock
Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section
336 of the SFO.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

At the special general meeting of the Company held on 22
July 2002, the Shareholders approved the adoption of a
share option scheme (the “Scheme”) pursuant to Chapter
17 of the Listing Rules.

The purpose of the Scheme was to enable the Board
to grant options to selected eligible persons (as defined
under the Scheme) as incentives or rewards for their
contribution or potential contribution to the Group. The
total number of the Shares available for issue upon
exercise of all options granted under the Scheme must
not exceed 1,072,500 Shares, representing approximately
0.15% of the total number of issued Shares of the
Company as at the date of this report. The aggregate
number of the Shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company must not exceed 30% of the Shares in issue
from time to time.

The maximum number of the Shares issued and to
be issued upon exercise of options granted under the
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company to each eligible person (including cancelled,
exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month
period must not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue. Any
further grant of options in excess of such limit must
be separately approved by the Shareholders with such
eligible person and his associates abstaining from voting.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms
of the Scheme at any time during a period commencing
on such date on or after the date on which the option
is granted as the Board may determine in granting the
option and expiring at the close of business on such date
as the Board may determine in granting the option but
in any event shall not exceed 10 years from the date of
grant (which is the date of offer of grant if the offer for the
grant of the option is accepted). The minimum period for
which an option must be held before it can be exercised
is determined by the Board upon the grant of an option.

The amount payable on acceptance of an option is
HK$1.00. The full amount of the exercise price for the
subscription of the Shares must be paid upon exercise of
an option.

The price per Share payable on the exercise of an option
is to be determined by the Board provided always that it
shall be at least the higher of: (i) the closing price of the
Shares as stated in the daily quotations sheet issued by
the Stock Exchange on the date of offer of grant (which
is deemed to be the date of grant if the offer for the grant
of an option is accepted by the eligible person), which
must be a business day; (i) the average closing price
of the Shares as stated in the daily quotations sheets
issued by the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of offer of grant; and (jii)
the nominal value of a Share.

The Scheme expired on 21 July 2012.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

Pursuant to the Scheme, the Company granted
14,100,000 and 17,440,000 share options to certain
Directors and employees of the Company to subscribe
for up to a total of 31,540,000 Shares on 27 June 2011
and 10 July 2012 respectively. Particulars of such share
options and their movement during the year ended 28
February 2022 were as follows:
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BEZTE AR R_T——F
NAZTEEERZZE——FEtA+H M
KAFIHTESKEESR T14,100,000%
17,440,000 BE R 1 - AR B & Z & 5
31,540,000 @K - BHE-_T-_—_F—
A+ \HIFER LEBERENFS
MEBMT :

Adjusted number of share options (Note 4)

LRERRERA(WHY)

Outstanding Adjusted

Balance as Granted Exercised  Cancelled Lapsed as at exercise
Name or Category Date of share atiMarch  duringthe  duringthe  duringthe  duringthe 28 February price per
of Participant options granted 2021 year year year year 2022 Share  Exercise period
Notes 142) (Note §) MNote 4)
R-8=-% R-B-Zf )
=f-A ZAZtIA faRgy
BEARZDEN RhEREZAN 2ER REARE  RERGE  REREE  REAKN HAfiE  SRARE EAE
W1k (H#3) (h#y
HKS
AT
Directors (Nofe 5/ 27 June 2011 - - - - - - 4300 27 June 2014-26 June 2021
g2 011E6A27R 2014565278 22021567 26H
27 June 2011 - - - - - - 4300 27 June 2015-26 June 2021
011F6A27H 015E6A27B 22021564267
27 June 2011 - - - - - - 4300 27 June 2016-26 June 2021
011E6A27H 201656A27A 22021564267
10 July 2012 110,000 - - - - 110,000 2185 10 July 2014-9 July 2022
012578108 014E7A10RZ202457/9A
10 July 2012 110,000 - - - - 110,000 2185 10 July 2015-9 July 2022
2012578108 N15ETR10BZ20267A79A
10 July 2012 294,800 - - - - 294,800 2185 10 July 2016-9 July 2022
2012%78108 01657108 Z20224 79
Suo-totel 514,800 - - - - 514,800
It
Employees 27 June 2011 - - - - - - 4300 27 June 2014-26 June 2021
E& 011E6A27R 2014F65278 22021567 26H
27 June 2011 - - - - - - 4300 27 June 2015-26 June 2021
01156277 01556A27R 22021564267
27 June 2011 - - - - - - 4300 27 June 2016-26 June 2021
01156A27H 201656A27A 22021564267
10 July 2012 1,100 - - - (1,100) - 2185 10 July 2014-9 July 2022
012678108 14ETA10RZ202457A9A
10 July 2012 334,400 - - - (256,300) 78,100 2185 10 July 2015-9 July 2022
2012578108 0155 TA10BE2022%779A
10 July 2012 774,400 - - - 294,800) 479,600 2185 10 July 2016-9 July 2022
2012% 78108 201657108 220224 7A9H
Suo-totel 1,109,900 - - - (662,200) 557,700
It
Total 1,624,700 - - - (552,200) 1,072,500
@it
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

Notes:

1. The respective vesting periods of the above share options are from
their respective dates of the grant until the commencement of their
respective exercise periods.

2. The closing prices of the Shares immediately before 27 June 2011
and 10 July 2012 on which the share options were granted were
HK$4.65 and HK$2.41 per Share respectively.

3. Upon the grant of 17,440,000 share options to eligible persons by the
Company on 10 July 2012, there were 1,960 share options available
for grant under the Scheme. The Scheme expired on 21 July 2012.

4. On 13 July 2015, an ordinary resolution was duly passed by the
Shareholders at the annual general meeting of the Company to
approve the Bonus Issue. As a result of the Bonus Issue, adjustments
were made to the exercise price and the number of Shares to be
allotted and issued upon full exercise of subscription rights attached
to the outstanding share options with effect from 30 July 2015. The
exercise price per Share indicated in the above table is the exercise
price per Share after the said adjustments were made on 30 July
2015. Prior to the adjustments, the exercise price per Share in relation
to share options granted on 27 June 2011 was HK$4.730 while that in
relation to share options granted on 10 July 2012 was HK$2.404. For
details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 29
July 2015.

5. For a detailed breakdown of the Directors’ interest in share options,
please refer to pages 116 to 117 of this report.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related party transactions disclosed in note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements do not constitute
connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions (as defined in the Listing Rules). The
Company confirmed that it has complied with the
requirements in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities during the year ended 28 February 2022.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

The Articles of Association of the Company provides that
the Directors shall be indemnified and secured harmless
out of the assets and profits of the Company against all
actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses
which they or any of them shall or may incur in or about
the execution of their duty or supposed duty, in their
respective offices or trusts, provided that the indemnity
shall not extend to any matter in respect of fraud or
dishonesty which may attach to any of the Directors.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts (other than service contracts with
Directors as disclosed) concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, sales to the Group’s five largest
customers accounted for approximately 1.3% of the
total revenue from sales of goods for the year and sales
to the largest customer included therein amounted to
approximately 0.5% of the total revenue from sales of
goods for the year. Purchases from the Group’s five
largest suppliers accounted for approximately 62.1% of
the total purchases for the year and purchases from the
largest supplier amounted to approximately 15.6%.

None of the Directors or any of their respective close
associates or any Shareholders (which to the best
knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the
Shares) had any interest in the Group’s five largest
customers and/or five largest suppliers.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

A corporate governance report is set out on pages 37 to
65 of this report.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE

The ESG Report of the Group is set out on pages 66 to
104 of this report.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, as
at the date of this report, there is sufficient public float
of more than 25% of the Company’s issued shares as
required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 28 February 2022 have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the
re-appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as the auditor
of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming
AGM.

By Order of the Board

James Ngai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 May 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

_

pwec

To the Shareholders of Le Saunda Holdings Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Le Saunda
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”), which are set out on pages 140 to 249,
comprise:

° the consolidated balance sheet as at 28 February
2022;

° the consolidated income statement for the year then
ended;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for
the year then ended;

° the consolidated cash flow statement for the year
then ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements,
which include significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 28 February 2022, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’'s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised
as follows:

° Provision for impairment of inventories; and

° Impairment of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets of retail stores.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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BEREESTEEE

Provision for impairment of inventories
Nature of the key audit matter

Refer to Notes 2.10, 4(d), 7 and 20 to the
consolidated financial statements.

At 28 February 2022, the Group’s gross
inventories and provision for impairment of
inventories amounted to RMB228,272,000 and
RMB41,960,000, respectively.

As described in the accounting policies in Note
2.10 to the consolidated financial statements,
inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

The Group is engaged in the retail and distribution
of footwear and accessories, and is subject to
changing consumer demands and fashion trends.
Management’s judgement is required for assessing
the appropriate level of inventory provision in light
of the current challenging retail environment.

Management determines the appropriate provisions
for obsolete or slow-moving inventories based
on a detailed ageing analysis of inventories and
the Group’s estimates of projected sales of aged
inventories in consideration of various factors,
such as the marketability of aged products and the
market conditions.

We focused on this area due to the significant
value of inventories and the critical estimates made
by management on the provision for obsolete or
slow-moving inventories.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

EEESTEEE

Provision for impairment of inventories
(Continued)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Our procedures for assessing the appropriateness
of management’s judgements applied in assessing
the provision for impairment of inventories included:

e  Obtained an understanding of the management’s
internal control and assessment processes,
assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree
of estimation uncertainty and level of other
inherent risk factors, such as subjectivity of
assumptions and susceptibility to management
bias or fraud.

o Evaluated management’s estimations made
in prior years by reference to the level of
inventories write-off during the year in relation
to stock loss.

° Evaluated analysis and assessment made by
management with respect to slow-moving
inventories.

e Performed audit analytics on stock holding
and movement data during the year and after
year end to identify products with indications
of obsolescence.

° Compared the net realisable value of
inventories sold subsequent to the year end to
the cost of inventories.

° Evaluated the future estimated sales through
of aged inventories with reference to historical
sales performance of similar products through
different sales channels, management
assessment of the relevant external market
information and the Group’s business
strategies identified through enquiries with
management.

e Tested the mathematical accuracy of
management’s year end calculation of
provision for impairment of inventories.

Based on the above audit procedures performed,
we found that management’s assessments were
supported by the evidence that we obtained.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
36 ST A% B e 7

BEREESTEEE

Impairment of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets of retail stores

Nature of the key audit matter

Refer to Notes 2.6, 2.7, 2.18, 4(b), 7, 16 and 17 to
the consolidated financial statements.

The Group had recorded impairment loss of
RMB4,109,000 and RMBS3,305,000 in respect of
its leasehold improvement in property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets respectively for
the year ended 28 February 2022.

The market capitalisation value is lower than the
net asset value of the Group as at 28 February
2022 and Group’s certain retail stores with
operations were loss making during the year.
Management determines each individual retail store
as a separately identifiable cash-generating unit
and carried out impairment assessment for the
retail store assets. The recoverable amount of the
assets of the retail stores is determined by higher
of fair value less costs of disposal or value-in-use
using discounted cash flow projections based on
the forecast prepared by management with major
assumptions such as gross profit and revenue
growth rate.

We focused on this area because significant
estimation and judgement were involved in
determining the recoverable amounts of the
relevant assets subject to impairment assessment.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
M S A% B e

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

EEESTEEE

Impairment of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets of retail stores
(Continued)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

We evaluated and tested the impairment
assessment of the property plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets of the retail stores by
performing the following procedures:

e Obtained an understanding of the
management’s internal control and
assessment processes, assessed the inherent
risk of material misstatement by considering
the degree of estimation uncertainty and
level of other inherent risk factors, such as
complexity, subjectivity of assumptions and
susceptibility to management bias or fraud;

e Enquire management on their basis of
identifying impairment indicators and
challenging the judgements made in the
identification of impairment indicators;

° Compared the forecasted sales performance
and estimated running costs of the retail
stores used in the value in use calculation to
their historical records;

° Enquired management in relation to key
assumptions in their value in use calculations
and evaluated the key assumptions (such
as gross profit, sales growth rate) applied
by comparing them to our understanding of
latest market information and conditions and
historical information, where applicable;

° Recomputed the impairment loss calculation;

° Evaluated the sensitivity analysis to ascertain
the extent of change in the key assumptions
that would result in the retail store assets
being impaired and also considered the
likelihood of such a change in the key
assumptions arising.

Based on our work performed, we found the
impairment of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets made by management to be
supported by available evidence.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Financial Highlights, Corporate
Information, Shareholder Information, Key Milestones,
Chairman’s Statement, Management’s Discussion and
Analysis, Board of Directors and Senior Management,
Corporate Governance Report, Report of the Directors,
Five-Year Financial Summary and Investment Properties
(but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon), which we
obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, and the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report, which is
expected to be made available to us after that date.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not and will not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other
information that we obtained prior to the date of this
auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

When we read the Environmental, Social and Governance
Report, if we conclude that there is a material
misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the
matter to Audit Committee and take appropriate action
considering our legal rights and obligations.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
M S A% B e

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,

among other matters, the planned scope and timing of

the audit and significant audit findings, including any

significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or
safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit
Committee, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Mr. Wilson Chan.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 30 May 2022
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

Ar i R AR

For the year ended 28 February 2022

BEE-__F-_A-+N\BILERE

Year ended Year ended
28 February 28 February
2022 2021
BZE H=
- —E
—BE=+NB —A=-+N\H
ILEE IEFEE
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR TR AR®TR
Revenue W 2= 5 569,034 594,217
Cost of sales 8 & B AR 7 (211,182) (238,894)
Gross profit EH 357,852 355,323
Other income H b A 6 4,631 8,833
Other gains, net Hip s FE8 6 8,465 184,779
(Impairment losses)/write-back B 5 EWRIE
of impairment on trade OREEE),/ RE
receivables, net BE  FE 7 (1,060) 1,220
Selling and distribution expenses  $5%& & 7 $4 i &2 7 (259,195) (239,785)
General and administrative — R EITEAX
expenses 7 (93,342) (147,264)
Operating profit 1 7 17,351 163,106
Finance income, net WA - FEE 8 6,197 4,967
Profit before income tax B BT 15 5% B0 & 23,548 168,073
Income tax expense Fr 1S % 2 12 (20,907) (61,922)
Profit for the year F N A 2,641 106,151
Profit/(loss) for the year AR FREF
attributable to: (E518) -
— owners of the Company — RARAIEEFAEA 2,980 106,154
— non-controlling interest — JEIE AR AE (339) (3)
2,641 106,151
Earnings per share attributable RARERFAA
to the owners of the Company &G = A% S A
(express in RMB cents) (ANEEBSD)
— Basic — EK 13 0.42 15.04
— Diluted — #E 13 0.42 15.04

The notes on pages 147 to 249 are an integral part of
these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
An o AT AR

For the year ended 28 February 2022
BE_Z-_F_A-+N\BILFE

Year ended Year ended
28 February 28 February

2022 2021

BZE HZE

—E== —E-—F
—A=+NB Z—A=+/\H
IEFE IEFEE

Note RMB’000 RMB’000

i AR®TT ARETE

Profit for the year F N5 A 2,641 106,151
Other comprehensive (loss)/income F AR i 18 2 H b
for the year, net of tax 2HE(EE) A
ltem that will not be reclassifiedto HET@EFHHEA
consolidated income statement mEBmK AR
— Actuarial (losses)/gains on — BERBEMNEEZREE
retirement benefit obligation (EB18), & 7 28 (127) 44
ltem that will be reclassified to HEgnEmoBAREE
consolidated income statement BEmkHEE
— Currency translation — ERERE
differences (12,400) (28,750)

Total comprehensive (loss)/income FR2E (EE), WA
for the year 1= (9,886) 77,445

Total comprehensive (loss)/income [E{RF AN M (EE),/

for the year, attributable to: LN R
— owners of the Company — ARAEEFRBA (9,547) 77,448
— non-controlling interest — FEERRE (339) (3)

(9,886) 77,445

The notes on pages 147 to 249 are an integral part of 14722498 v i ¥ B AR EHRER T o
these consolidated financial statements. B2 ED °
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
maEERAER

As at 28 February 2022

RZFEZZ§-A=+N\H

As at As at

28 February 28 February

2022 2021

—EgE=-= —E—F
—A=+NB ZA=+ANH

Note RMB’000 RMB’000

fEE AR®TT ARETTT

Assets BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment properties "EME 15 66,999 2,360
Property, plant and equipment Y B LRE 16 18,508 81,420
Right-of-use assets ERAEEE 17 52,761 34,439
Long-term deposits and KBRS RFENFKIE
prepayments 21 2,624 1,485
Deferred income tax assets BIEMSREEE 19 32,150 29,619
___ 173042 149,323
Current assets REBEE
Inventories rE 20 186,312 152,596
Trade and other receivables B EWERITE K A
JE U5 BR 18 21 48,206 57,329
Deposits and prepayments e RFENFIE 21 37,237 40,287
Pledged bank deposit EEBRITEFER 22 647 661
Cash and bank balances Re RRITER 22 442,642 754,882
___ 715044 1005755
Total assets wEE 888,086 1,155,078
Equity s
Capital and reserves attributable to N2 &) # 2515 B A FE 1L
the owners of the Company P& 2 K {5 1
Share capital & < 26 59,979 59,979
Reserves {5 1
Proposed dividends BERE 29 - 294,589
Others H1th 29 636,032 643,109
696,011 997,677
Non-controlling interest FIERER 9,328 10,270
Total equity Pl ] 705,339 1,007,947

The notes on pages 147 to 249 are an integral part of F1472 2498 Z it AR SRR T o
these consolidated financial statements. B2 E#D o
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

An B BURR

As at 28 February 2022
i Wil il == e ] W b

As at As at
28 February 28 February
2022 2021
IS IS
—EgE=-= B
—_A=-t+tN\H —A=-+N\H
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5% ARBTT ARE®EFT
Liabilities =R
Non-current liabilities kRBERB
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFMSHIBEAEE 19 28,800 24,197
Lease liabilities HEBE 17 24,927 10,723
____5s721 34920
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables, other payables EZENMNERE - HAi
and contract liabilities ENERIERENEE 24 83,466 95,543
Lease liabilities HEaFE 17 22,387 16,184
Current income tax liabilities EHMEHAas 2,967 484
Short-term bank loan RHRITER 25 20,200 -
___ 120020 112211
Total liabilities mERE 182,747 147,131
Total equity and liabilities BEEzhEEH8E 888,086 1,155,078

The consolidated financial statements on pages 140 to
249 were approved by the Board of Directors on 30 May
2022 and were signed on its behalf.

James Ngai
17 &
Chairman
FE

The notes on pages 147 to 249 are an integral part of
these consolidated financial statements.

FUOEUIA Z AV B RRERE
T —HFRAA-tHEESeHE IHT
MALTREREE -

Chui Kwan Ho, Jacky
Director

EBEFE

F4TE2498 2 W RAFEHRER A5
Bz®n -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

A e g A B R

For the year ended 28 February 2022
BHE_ZE-_F-_A-+N\BILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company
KARAERHEBAEL
Non-
Share controlling
capital Reserves Sub-total interest Total equity
B R By FERER BER
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETR AR®Tn AR®Tn AR¥Tn AR¥Tx
Balance at 1 March 2020 RZZ-TF=F—-A
288 W LSl 1023 S
Comprehensive income/(loss) 2EMA/(EB)
Profit/{loss) for the year Engafl/(B8) - 106,154 106,154 () 106,151
Other comprehensive income/(loss)  EM2ERA /(B #)
Currency translation differences ERER - (28,750) (28,750) - (28,750)
Actuarial gains on retirement RINEFERL
benefit obligation EEEF - 44 44 - 44
Total comprehensive income/loss) ~ FRZEKRA /(B E)
for the year e s R B 77445
Transactions with owners RERBEAIRS
Dividends Re - pe) el - P
Balance at 28 February 2021 RZE--4#-A-+/\A
284 59079 937698 99T6T7 10270 1,007,047
Comprehensive income/{loss) 2ERA/(EB)
Profit/(loss) for the year Enafl/(B8) - 2,980 2,980 (339) 2,641
Other comprehensive loss EtZEEE
Currency translation differences EHER - (12,400) (12,400) - (12,400)
Actuarial losses on retirement BRENEREL
benefit obligation REBR - (127) (127) - (127)
Total comprehensive loss FERNZEERAE
fortheyear ... - (9,5_47_) o (2,5_47l o _(3_39_) o (9,8_86_)
Transactions with owners BREBBEAIRS
Dividends ke - (19 (2219 (603 (202,722)
Balance at 28 February 2022 RZE-_—_#-A-+/\A
L& 59,979 636,032 696,011 9,328 705,339

The notes on pages 147 to 249 are an integral part of

these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

mablaimaR
For the year ended 28 February 2022
BE_ZT__F_A_t+N\BILEE

Year ended Year ended
28 February 28 February
2022 2021
BZE HE
—_E-= B —F
—HA=Z+NB Z—A=+/\H
IEFE IEFE
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
s AR TR AR®Tx
Operating activities REEKRTE
Net cash generated from REXBEE R FHE
operations 23(a) 14,046 133,632
Taxation paid BAT A (16,364) (38,296)
Interest paid =ENFADSS (1,933) (1,291)
Net cash (used in)/generated from (&£ E8 (FEH),/
operating activities EXcBReHF® (4,251) 94,045
Investing activities REEH
Interest income on bank deposits R 1717 7 2 F B UL A 8,130 6,258
Purchases of property, plantand B E¥ % - # BN R E
equipment 16 (21,401) (6,800)
(Increase)/decrease in bank HBE=-EAZEHER
deposits with initial term (g m),/m
over three months (7,800) 23,200
Proceeds from disposal of LEMERFTREEE
property and right-of-use assets 23(b) - 212,091
Proceeds from disposal of plant HEMEE R R
and equipment 23(c) - 6,051
Decrease in pledged deposit BEEBF R 14 58
Net cash (used in)/generated from &% & EE (FER) E4
investing activities 2B e FE (21,057) 240,858

The notes on pages 147 to 249 are an integral part of
these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
HeBlaiaR

For the year ended 28 February 2022
BHE_ZE-_F-_A-+N\BILFE

Year ended Year ended
28 February 28 February

2022 2021

BZE HZE

—_E-= B —F
—B=+N\B —BA=—+NH
IEFE HFE

Note RMB’000 RMB’000

ffeE AR®TRT AR®TT

Financing activities il & E B
Proceeds from short-term BAEHRITER

bank loan 40,400 -
Repayment of short-term HHRTERERK

bank loan (20,200) -
Principal element of lease MENRKZzEAEEH S

payments (21,749) (22,356)
Dividends paid B E (292,005) (31,211)
Dividends paid to non-controlling &1 FE 4% f% #& 25 I%

interest (603) -
Net cash used in financing BMEEBREAZ

activities REFHE ___(294,157)  (63,567)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash RekERIRLIEAE

and cash equivalents CR ),/ % & (319,465) 281,336
Effect of foreign exchange rate T RBEHTE  FHE

changes, net (575) (11,809)
Cash and cash equivalents at FUzZHEEAEFERRS

beginning of year HH 742,382 472,855
Cash and cash equivalents at FRRENERAS®

end of year THH 22 422,342 742,382

The notes on pages 147 to 249 are an integral part of F1472 2498 Z it AR SRR T o
these consolidated financial statements. | 2 7o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL INFORMATION

Le Saunda Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are principally
engaged in trading and sales of footwear and
accessories. The Group mainly operates in Mainland
China, Hong Kong and Macau.

The Company is a limited liability company
incorporated in Bermuda. The address of its
registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

The Company is listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

These consolidated financial statements are
presented in Renminbi (“RMB”), unless otherwise
stated.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in
the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the
Group have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance Cap. 622. The
consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention,
as modified by the revaluation of investment
properties, which are carried at fair value.

Fo o B 5 R T i

—RER
RBHAERARABDTARRD R
EfE AR (GEIAEEDITERSE
REREHcESREE A& E
TEATEAE  FEEMBRMALE
EZ A

AR BRRABREFMRIZER
N\ H 5 = BE & Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HM 11, Bermuda °

ARARBEBBEXHHERAT
(B2 F7 )£ 4R 77 -

BRRBEAEIN  HREMBHRRIA
ARBZ7 -

TESHREBE

WENLSFGAVBRRRANER
SEERRFENR T - R ARAIN
HEBRERMEEZRFREEHE
m o

21 FEEE
REBZEAUBHRRTIZR
EAQFRMAGRMm AR
REBUBHRELENTEBEH
BREER D FFBCRREDY
FORENHEBRERRR - 54
MHBRRIEBELR N ERE
WHEHREMEELFHE
Wi R FEHEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o o B 5 i W

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of consolidated financial
statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires
the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
[t also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity,
or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial
statements, are disclosed in Note 4.

(a) Amendments to standards adopted by
the Group

The Group has applied the following
amendments to standards for the first
time for their annual reporting period
commencing 1 March 2021:

HKFRS 16 (Amendments)
H 7B I KRS LRI F165% (BRI A°)

HKAS 39, HKFRS 4, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 16 (Amendments)
BB GFTAEREIN - BEAEMBRE
AR EA5E - BT - FI K FE165%
CEHIR,

The amendments listed above did not have
any impact on the amounts recognised
in prior periods and are not expected to
significantly affect the current or future
periods.
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AV BHRRAERETH
REsthst EEETARE
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(a) FAEBERNZETZER

AEEER_ZTE-_—F=A
—BRB2FEREHH
BHXERATIHER] 2 2R

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
FEREREMABEESRE

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2

MERERBE — FE R

ESCRR A Z BRI E R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e A 25 i B
2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESTHEMEGE
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 REEE(E)

(b) New standard, amendments to (b) [HARERBZ FER -~ AEET
standards, accounting guideline and ZXER - BiIESIRFEFE
interpretation not yet adopted
The following new standard, amendments AEBIWLSEREHEND
to standards, accounting guideline and BHER-_BE-_—F=A—
interpretation have been issued but are HREGB S BHEEARE
not effective for the accounting period B2 AT &R BRI 2
beginning on 1 March 2021 and have not AR - FETIESI MR E:

been early adopted by the Group:

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

Rias c BEMZ

EREilE

HKFRS 16 (Amendments) COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions 1 April 2021
beyond 30 June 2021

BEMBE RS LR E165 —EC-FRAZTHENERSER —T-—F
CCHEN) HEHEERE mA—H

Annual improvements project Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 1 March 2022
(Amendments) Standards 2018-2020

FREIGEER (BRI A) —E-N\FE_T_TFRHERY —T_C

% s AR FE =A—H

HKFRS 3, HKAS 16 and HKAS 37 Narrow-scope Amendments 1 March 2022
(Amendments)

BERUBRELEREIN NEBEEET el
BB G ERFE6H X =A—H
F375% (|BFT &)

Hong Kong Accounting Guideline 5 Merger Accounting for Common Control 1 March 2022
(Revised) Combinations

BB G155 F5% HEEGEHzZEHEE —T_C
(L) =HA—H

HKAS 1 (Amendments) Classification of Liabilities as Current or 1 March 2023

Non-current

BB ENFE IR REBESERRBIFERD —E-=F

(BRI A) =A—H
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
it B B 5 A I

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEETHERBEGE)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 HEEE(E)
(b) New standard, amendments to (b) [EFRERMZ FER - 55T
standards, accounting guideline and 2R - EiIE5IRFFE
interpretation not yet adopted (#&)

(Continued)

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

B2 RERZ
ERER
HKAS 1 (Revised) (Amendments)  Disclosure of Accounting Policies March 2023
BEGTESZR(KELE) B RERE —T-ZF
CHES) =A—H
HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements March 2023
(Amendment)
EAMBRELENEBAEE2H stEEMKFELHE —TZ=
(BFTA) =A—H
HKAS 8 (Amendments) Accounting Policies, Change in March 2023
Accounting Estimates and Errors
BB QT ERE85% BEIBE G EERER —TC-ZF
(BETA) =A—H
HKAS 12 (Amendments) Deferred Tax related to Assets and March 2023
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction
BB QT ERF125% BE-QHEL7EERBERBZ —T-=F
CHEN BT R =A—H
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contract 1 March 2023
BARMBWESERETH REE —T-=
= H—H
K (IFRIC)-Int 5 Presentation of Financial Statements 1 March 2023
— Classification by the Borrower
of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause
EEERMBERERREEY) Z2INBERE - BERAEMETREKX —E-ZF
-2 EF5%R BRGEROTHERNS B =HA—H
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
(b) New standard, amendments to
standards, accounting guideline and

interpretation not yet adopted
(Continued)

A o A 25 e Mk

TEETHREHREE)

21 RREE(E)
(b) RN FER - 1E5ET
ZER - EFtIESI R i
()

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
Bz RERZ
ERElR

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

Sale or Contribution of Assets between To be determined

(Amendment) an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture
BEMB RS EEI05 K REFEEAE AEAEREZH 4 A H
BB G ERIF285% MEEHESNITE ) R ORE

(f3T%)

These new standard, amendments to
standards, accounting guideline and
interpretation are not expected to have
a material impact on the Group in the
current or future reporting periods and on
foreseeable future transactions.

L EFER - AEET 2 R
gitEsI kBRI e
BAREEEE M H KRR
THRE RABERRRR
DENERTE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
it B B 5 A I

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Subsidiaries
2.2.1 Consolidation

%%-I-E& mg(nﬁ

2.2 fEAQHE
221 "EHRHA

Subsidiaries are all entities (including
structured entities) over which the Group
has control. The Group controls an
entity where the Group is exposed to,
or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its
power to direct the activities of the entity.
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are deconsolidated from the
date that control ceases.

Intercompany transactions, balances
and unrealised gains on transactions
between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the transferred asset.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and
equity of subsidiaries are shown separately
in the consolidated income statement,
statement of comprehensive income,
statement of changes in equity and balance
sheet respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(@)

Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting
is used to account for all business
combinations, regardless of whether
equity instruments or other assets
are acquired. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary comprises the:

° fair values of the assets
transferred;

o liabilities incurred to the former
owners of the acquired business;

° equity interests issued by the
Group;

° fair value of any asset or liability
resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement; and

° fair value of any pre-existing
equity interest in the subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination
are, with limited exceptions,
measured initially at their fair values
at the acquisition date. The Group
recognises any non-controlling
interests in the acquired entity on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis either
at fair value or at the non-controlling
interest’s proportionate share of
the acquired entity’s net identifiable
assets. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred.

for B 5 A ik

2 FEENBRBMEWE

2.2 MEAE

(%)

221 H&E KA ()

(@)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
it B B 5 A I

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(@)

Business combinations (Continued)
The excess of the:

° consideration transferred;

e amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquired entity;
and

e acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the
acquired entity.

over the fair value of the net identifiable
assets acquired is recorded as
goodwill. If those amounts are less
than the fair value of the net identifiable
assets of the business acquired, the
difference is recognised directly in
profit or loss as a bargain purchase.

Where settlement of any part of cash
consideration is deferred, the amounts
payable in the future are discounted
to their present value as at the date
of exchange. The discount rate used
is the entity’s incremental borrowing
rate, being the rate at which a similar
borrowing could be obtained from
an independent financier under
comparable terms and conditions.
Contingent consideration is classified
either as equity or a financial liability.
Amounts classified as a financial
liability are subsequently remeasured
to fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(o)

Changes in ownership interests in
subsidiaries without change of control

The Group treats transactions with
non-controlling interests that do
not result in a loss of control as
transactions with equity owners of the
Group. A change in ownership interest
results in an adjustment between the
carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests to reflect
their relative interests in the subsidiary.
Any difference between the amount
of the adjustment to non-controlling
interests and any consideration paid
or received is recognised in a separate
reserve within equity attributable to
owners of the Company.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have
control, any retained interest in the
entity is re-measured to its fair value
at the date when control is lost,
with the change in carrying amount
recognised in the consolidated income
statement. The fair value is the initial
carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the
retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In
addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities. It means the amounts
previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified
to the profit or loss or transferred
to another category of equity as
specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSs.

for B 5 A ik
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
it B B 5 A I

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.2 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.2.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted
for at cost less impairment. Cost includes
direct attributable costs of investment. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving
a dividend from these investments if the
dividend exceeds the total comprehensive
income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying
amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.

2.3 Segment reporting

2.4

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief
operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance
of the operating segments, has been identified
as the executive directors that makes strategic
decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements
of each of the Group’s entities are
measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are
presented in RMB, which is the Group’s
presentation currency and the Company’s
functional and presentation currency.
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2

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(b) Transactions and balances

()

Foreign currency transactions are
translated into the functional currency using
the exchange rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions or valuation where items
are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation
at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are generally recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

Non-monetary items that are measured
at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was determined.
Translation differences on assets and
liabilities carried at fair value are reported
as part of the fair value gain or loss.
For example, translation differences on
non-monetary assets and liabilities such as
equities held at fair value through the profit
or loss are recognised in the consolidated
income statement as part of the fair value
gain or loss and translation differences
on non-monetary assets such as equities
classified as fair value through other
comprehensive income are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all
the group entities that have a functional
currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

() assets and liabilities for each balance
sheet presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet;

2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
it B B 5 A I

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

E\Eggﬁﬁk mg(nﬁ

Z4%m#(ﬁ)

(¢) Group companies (Continued)

(i) income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are
translated at the rate on the dates of
the transactions); and

(i) all resulting currency translation
differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

On consolidated, exchange differences
arising from the translation of the net
investment in foreign operations are taken
to other comprehensive income. When a
foreign operation is partially disposed of
or sold, exchange differences that were
recorded in equity are recognised in the
consolidated income statement as part of
the gain or loss on sale.

2.5 Investment properties

Investment properties, principally comprising
leasehold land and buildings, are held for
long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation
or both, and that are not occupied by the
Group.

Land held under operating leases are accounted
for as investment properties when the rest of
the definition of an investment property is met.
In such cases, the operating leases concerned
are accounted for as if they were finance leases.

Investment properties are initially measured at
cost, including related transaction costs and
where applicable borrowing costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B B 755 AR B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.5 Investment properties (Continued)

TESHREREE)

2.5 REWZE(H|)

After initial recognition, investment properties
are carried at fair value, representing open
market value determined at each financial year
end by external valuers. Fair value is based on
active market prices, adjusted, if necessary,
for any difference in the nature, location or
condition of the specific asset. If the information
is not available, the Group uses alternative
valuation methods such as recent prices on
less active markets or discounted cash flow
projections.

Changes in fair values are recorded in the
consolidated income statement as part of a
valuation gain or loss in “other gains, net”.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined
by comparing the proceeds with the carrying
amount and are recognised within “other gains,
net” in the consolidated income statement.

If a property occupied by the Group as
an owner-occupied property becomes an
investment property, the Group accounts for
such property in accordance with note 2.6 up to
the date of change in use, and any difference at
the date between the carrying amount and the
fair value of the property is accounted for as a
revaluation and recognised in asset revaluation
reserve within equity until the retirement or
disposal of the property (when it is released
directly to retained profits). Any resulting
decrease in the carrying amount of the property
is recognised in profit or loss. However, to the
extent that an amount is included in revaluation
surplus for that property, the decrease is
recognised in other comprehensive income and
reduces the revaluation surplus within equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
it B B 5 A I

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FESHHEEHMEE)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.6 Property, plant and equipment 26 M¥ - HKBERFXE

Property, plant and equipment are stated at
historical cost less depreciation and impairment
losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that
is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised
when replaced. All other repair and maintenance
costs are charged to the consolidated income
statement during the financial period in which
they are incurred.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate cost to their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, at the following annual
rates:

Buildings 2-4%
B 2-4%
Leasehold improvements
HEEE

Plant and machinery 10%
2 MR 10%
Furniture and fixtures 20%-33.3%
M EEE 20%-33.3%
Motor vehicles 20%
E 20%

Freehold land with unlimited useful life is not
amortised.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end
of each reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.6

2.7

Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.7).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined
by comparing the proceeds with the carrying
amounts and are recognised in the consolidated
income statement.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that are subject to amortisation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
of disposal to sell and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets that
suffered impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at the end of each
reporting period.

2

for B 5 A ik

TESHREREE)

2.6

2.7

MK HBEREEGE)

WEEREESNEGEHATK
O & %8 - H BR M & 75 B0 B R
ZHOWE € EE (K F2.7) -

HEZREDRBBLBAER
HEFREEETE XRKEE
mRAER -

FUBEERE
AEEEEEREESMHARB
PR B R UK BR T (E AT BE DR K
[B] B 3 1T R E R T - R E & 1B
REEZFEEEBLDEATRE
THRERER RO EHE
REERFEMBRRHMKAR
ERE_EFTNERRE - RF
B ER - & E &5 AR5
AengBeELEM 2R
BERMAG - EMBEELR
MER $REHRESHRES
R (B % [0 2 AT REE -

annual report 2022 %% 2022 161



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
it B B 5 A I

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.8 Financial assets

@

(b)

)

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in
the category of those to be measured at
amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Group’s
business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual terms of the
cash flows.

The Group reclassified debt investments
when and only when its business model for
managing those assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of
financial assets are recognised on
trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets are derecognised when
the rights to receive cash flows from the
financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures
a financial asset at its fair value plus
transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt
instruments depends on the Group’s
business model for managing the asset and
the cash flow characteristics of the asset.
The Group classified its debt instruments
as financial assets at amortised cost.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.8 Financial assets (Continued)

()

@)

Measurement (Continued)
Debt instruments (Continued)

Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash
flows represent solely payments of principal
and interest are measured at amortised
cost. Interest income from these financial
assets is included in finance income using
the effective interest rate method. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition is
recognised directly in the profit or loss and
presented in “other gains, net” together
with foreign exchange gains and losses.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses on a forward
looking basis the expected credit loss
(“ECL”) associated with its assets carried
at amortised cost. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether
there has been a significant increase in
credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies
the simplified approach permitted by
HKFRS 9, which requires expected
lifetime losses to be recognised from initial
recognition of the receivables.

Impairment on other receivables is
measured as either 12-month ECL or
lifetime ECL, depending on whether there
has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition. If a significant
increase in credit risk of a receivable has
occurred since initial recognition, then
impairment is measured as lifetime ECL.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
it B B 5 A I

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.9

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the
net amount reported in the consolidated balance
sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset the recognised amounts, and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The
legally enforceable right must not be contingent
on future events and must be enforceable in the
normal course of business and in the event of
default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Group
of the counterparty.

2.10 Inventories

211

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined using
the first-in, first-out (“FIFO”) method. The cost of
finished goods excludes borrowing costs. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less applicable
variable selling expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from
customers for goods sold in the ordinary course
of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or
in the normal operating cycle of the business if
longer), they are classified as current assets. If
not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less allowance for impairment.
See Note 2.8 for further information about
the Group’s accounting for trade and other
receivables for a description of the Group’s
impairment policies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.12 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in
hand, deposits held at call with banks and other
short-term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less.

2.13 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the
issue of new shares or options are shown in
equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

2.14 Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods
or services that have been acquired in the
ordinary course of business from suppliers.
Trade and other payables are classified as
current liabilities if payment is due within one
year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of
the business if longer). If not, they are presented
as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially
at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

2.15 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense for the year
comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax is recognised in the consolidated income
statement, except to the extent that it relates
to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In this case, the
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
it B B 5 A I

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.15 Current and deferred income tax

TESHTREREE)

2.15 E 8 ) I % Fr 15 Bt (&)

(Continued)

The current income tax charge is calculated
on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date in the countries where the Company,
its subsidiaries and joint venture operate
and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected
to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, the deferred
income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable consolidated income
statement. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance
sheet date and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised or
the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax liabilities in relation to investment
properties that are measured at fair value are
determined assuming the properties will be
recovered entirely through sale.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised
only to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B B 755 AR B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.15 Current and deferred income tax

TESHREREE)

2.15 E 8 ) I % Fr 15 Bt (&)

(Continued)

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except for deferred income tax
liability where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group
and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
offset when there is a legally enforceable right
to offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred income tax
assets and liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either
the taxable entity or different taxable entities
where there is an intention to settle the balances
on a net basis.

2.16 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has
a present legal or constructive obligation as
a result of past events; it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required
in settlement is determined by considering the
class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow
with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
it B B 5 A I

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.16 Provisions (Continued)

E\Eggﬁﬁk mg(nﬁ

2.16 & & (&)

Provisions are measured at the present value of
management’s best estimate of the expenditures
required to settle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period. The discount rate
used to determine the present value is a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific
to the obligation. The increase in the provision
due to passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.

2.17 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the sale
of goods in the ordinary course of the Group’s
activities. Revenue is shown net of value-added
tax, returns, rebates and discounts and after
eliminating sales within the Group.

Sales of goods are recognised at a point in time
when a group entity has delivered products
to the customer; the customer has accepted
the products and collectability of the related
receivables is reasonably assured.

(a) Sales of goods — retail and
concessionaire sales

Revenue from sales of goods including
retail and concessionaire sales is
recognised when control of the products
has transferred, which generally coincides
with the time when the goods are delivered
to customers and title has passed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.17 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(b) Sales of goods — internet sales

Revenue from the sale of goods on the
internet is recognised at the point that
the control of the inventory have passed
to the customer, which is the point of
dispatch. Transactions are settled by credit
or payment card. Provisions are made for
internet credit notes based on the expected
level of returns, which in turn is based upon
the historical rate of returns.

2.18 Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset
and a corresponding liability at the date at
which the leased asset is available for use by
the Group.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are
initially measured on a present value basis.
Lease liabilities include the net present value of
the following lease payments:

fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments), less any lease incentives
receivable;

variable lease payment that are based on
an index or a rate, initially measured using
the index or rate as at the commencement
date;

amounts expected to be payable by the
Group under residual value guarantees;

the exercise price of a purchase option if
the Group is reasonably certain to exercise
that option; and

payments of penalties for terminating the
lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising that option.

2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
it B B 5 A I

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.18 Leases (Continued)

TESHTREREE)

218 HE (#&)

The lease payments are discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate
cannot be readily determined, the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate is used, being the
rate that the individual lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an
asset of similar value to the right-of-use asset
in a similar economic environment with similar
terms, security and conditions.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost
comprising the amount of the initial measurement
of lease liability, any lease payments made at or
before the commencement date and restoration
costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated
over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the
lease term on a straight-line basis. If the Group
is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase
option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated over
the underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases
of store premises and all leases of low-value
assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as
an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases
are leases with a lease term of 12 months or
less. Low-value assets comprise point of sale
machines.

Lease income from operating leases where the
Group is a lessor is recognised in income on
a straight-line basis over the lease term. The
respective leased assets are included in the
balance sheet based on their nature.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.19 Interest income

Interest income on financial assets at amortised
cost calculated using the effective interest
method is recognised in the consolidated
income statement.

Interest income is presented as finance income
where it is earned from financial assets that are
held for cash management purposes, see Note
8 below. Any other interest income is included in
other income.

2.20Employee benefits

@

(b)

Employee benefit entitlements

Salaries, bonuses, annual leave and the
cost of other benefits to the Group are
accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by the employees of
the Group.

Pension obligations

The Group contributes to a mandatory
provident fund scheme which is a defined
contribution retirement scheme and
available to all Hong Kong employees. Both
the Company and the staff are required to
contribute 5% of the employees’ relevant
income with a ceiling of HK$1,500 per
month to the MPF scheme. Staff may
elect to contribute more than the minimum
as a voluntary contribution. The Group’s
contributions to this mandatory provident
fund scheme are expensed as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
it B B 5 A I

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.20Employee benefits (Continued)

TESHTREREE)

220 BE R (&)
(b) Pension obligations (Continued) (b) EUkZEHF (&)

The Group also contributes to pension
schemes established by municipal
governments in respect of certain
subsidiaries in Mainland China. The
municipal governments undertake to
assume the retirement benefit obligations of
all existing and future retired employees of
the Group. Contributions to these schemes
are charged to the consolidated income
statement as incurred.

The liability or asset recognised in the
balance sheet in respect of defined benefit
pension plans is the present value of the
defined benefit obligation at the end of
the reporting period less the fair value of
plan assets. The defined benefit obligation
is calculated annually by independent
actuaries using the projected unit credit
method.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising
from experience adjustments and changes
in actuarial assumptions are recognised
in the period in which they occur, directly
in other comprehensive income. They
are included in retained earnings in the
statement of changes in equity and in the
balance sheet.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B B 755 AR B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.21 Share-based payments

%%-I-E& mg(nﬁ

221 R BER 2K

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

The Group operates a number of equity-settled,
share-based compensation plans, under which
the entity receives services from employees as
consideration for equity instruments (options)
of the Group. The fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant of
the options is recognised as an expense. The
total amount to be expensed is determined by
reference to the fair value of the options granted:

° including any market performance
conditions (for example, an entity’s share
price);

o excluding the impact of any service and
non-market performance vesting conditions
(for example, profitability, sales growth
targets and remaining employee of the
entity over a specified time period); and

° including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions (for example, the requirement for
employees to save).

At the end of each reporting period, the
Group revises its estimates of the number
of options that are expected to vest based
on the non-marketing performance and
service conditions. It recognises the impact
of the revision to original estimates, if any, in
the consolidated income statement, with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.

In addition, in some circumstances employees
may provide services in advance of the grant
date and therefore the grant date fair value is
estimated for the purposes of recognising the
expense during the period between service
commencement period and grant date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.21Share-based payments (Continued)

TESHTREREE)

221 R/ E# 2K (E)

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions (Continued)

When the options are exercised, the Company
issues new shares. The proceeds received net
of any directly attributable transaction costs are
credited to share capital and share premium.

If the vested equity instruments are later lapsed
and are not exercised, the corresponding
amount recognised for services received from
an employee is transferred from employees’
share-based compensation reserve to retained
earnings.

2.22Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s
shareholders is recognised as a liability in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements and
the Company’s financial statements in the
period in which the dividends are approved by
the Company’s shareholders or directors, and
no longer of the discretion of the Company,
where appropriate.

2.23Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised
at their fair value where there is a reasonable
assurance that the grants will be received
and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred
and recognised in the income statement over
the period necessary to match them with the
costs that they are intended to compensate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (included foreign
exchange risk and interest rate risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk.

The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of
the financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance.

Risk management is carried out under policies
approved by the directors of the Company.
The directors provide principles for an overall
risk management, as well as policies covering
specific areas.

(a) Market risk
()  Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong
Kong and Mainland China with most
of the transactions settled in HK$,
US$ and RMB. The Group is exposed
to foreign exchange risk arising mainly
from the exposure of HK$ and US$
against RMB as the majority of the
Group’s financial assets and liabilities
including deposits in banks, trade
receivables, trade payables and
short-term bank loan are denominated
in HK$ and US$.

The Group manages its foreign
exchange risk by performing regular
reviews of the Group’s net foreign
exchange exposures and it has not
hedged its foreign exchange rate risk.

3

o B s R B R
BB b B
31 BI¥EREZE

AEBENEGE Y 2R M B R
@ T I5 E B (B 48 SN E &L R &
MERR) - EERRBRERBE
T AR -

AEBEMNEREREEZREIRN
Mz AN EERAME - TR
Xﬁ%$¢l%%%ﬁmm
TR E

ARAREBEEFIHLFHRRK
EmRRER BFRMHESR
B\ E R 2 R IR K&
EFENRE

(a) T5EE
(i)  HNEE R P2

REBTERBAER
S NEI N R A
REBDRXZHAE T
ETRAREHEE -
Z’»‘%.Iﬁﬁﬂ/aﬁ
KNETHAREBRE
TP EE R HY N LB
HRAEENMBE
E;NVBEERER
TER - E5EKE
H - ENESZERER
RHERITE REAE
TRETIIE -

AEEE BT Hm
AEBMINEFRE
BEIMNER K ML
Y R L SMNE R B e

annual report 2022 £ 2022 175



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
it B B 5 A I

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued)

(1)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

At 28 February 2022, if HK$ had
strengthened/weakened by 3%
against the RMB with all other
variables held constant, profit for the
year would have been approximately
RMB131,000 higher/lower (2021:
RMB255,000) mainly as a result of
foreign exchange gains/losses on
translation of HK$ denominated
deposits in banks, trade receivables,
trade payables and short-term bank
loan.

At 28 February 2022, if US$ had
strengthened/weakened by 3%
against the RMB with all other
variables held constant, profit for the
year would have been approximately
RMB38,000 higher/lower (2021:
RMB4,178,000) mainly as a result
of foreign exchange gains/losses
on translation of US$ denominated
deposits in banks and trade payables.

The foreign exchange risk arising
from the exposure of other foreign
currencies is considered to be
minimal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued)

(if)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s main interest rate risk
arises from short-term loan which
expose the Group to cash flow and
fair value interest rate risks.

The Group’s short-term bank loan,
payables and receivables are carried
at amortised cost. The short-term
bank loan is periodically contractually
repriced and to that extent are also
exposed to the risk of future changes
in market interest rates.

For the details of analysis by
maturities, please refer to note 3.1(c).

As at 28 February 2022, if the interest
rates on bank balances and short-term
bank loan had been 25 basis points
higher/lower with all other variables
held constant, profit for the year would
have been approximately RMB809,000
higher/lower (2021: RMB1,470,000)
mainly as a result of higher/lower net
interest income on bank balances and
short-term bank loan.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
it B B 5 A I

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 MBEREEGE
(CONTINUED)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 BKEBRAZE(E)
(b) Credit risk (b) EFEEE

The carrying amounts of the trade and
other receivables (Note 21), pledged bank
deposits and cash and bank balances
(Note 22) included in the consolidated
balance sheet represent the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation
to its financial assets.

Sales to retail customers are made in
cash or via major credit cards. The Group
has policies in place to ensure that sales
of products on credit terms are made
to customers with an appropriate credit
history and the Group performs periodic
credit evaluations of its customers. The
Group’s concessionaire sales through
department stores are generally collectible
within 30 to 60 days from the invoice date
while credit sales are generally on credit
terms within 90 days. Normally the Group
does not require collaterals from trade
debtors. The Group’s historical experience
in collection of trade and other receivables
falls within the recorded allowances and the
directors are of the opinion that adequate
provision for uncollectible receivables has
been made.

Substantially all the deposits with banks
are held in international financial institutions
located in Hong Kong and Mainland China,
which management believes are of high
credit quality. The Group has a policy to
limit the amount of credit exposure to
any financial institution and management
does not expect any losses arising from
non-performance by these counterparties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B B 755 AR B

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HMERBREREGE)
(CONTINUED)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 BKEBRAZE(E)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EEREEE)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measure expected credit
losses which uses a lifetime expected loss
allowance for all trade receivable.

To measure the expected credit losses,
trade receivables has been grouped based
on the ageing and shared credit risk
characteristics.

The expected loss rates are based on the
payment profiles of sales over a period of
36 months before 28 February 2022 and
28 February 2021, and the corresponding
historical credit losses experienced within
this period. The historical loss rates are
adjusted to reflect current and forward
looking information on macroeconomic
factors affecting the ability of the customers
on an individual or collective basis, to settle
the receivables.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
it B B 5 A I

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 B¥ERREREGE
(CONTINUED)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 BKEBRAZE(E)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EEREEE)

TREEREGE)

FUHER L R_T-—
F_AZTNRER =T ——
F_A-+N\B BE5EK
FRERERER I EBRE

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

On that basis, the loss allowance on
collective basis as at 28 February 2022
and 28 February 2021 were determined as
follows for trade receivables:

WEEWT:
Over
1-30days  31-60 days  61-90 days 90 days
Current past due past due past due past due Total
Ik 1230k 31260  61290K  90RML @it
e Jm: RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
As at 28 February 2022 ZAZtNA AE¥Tn AR¥Trn AE¥Trn AE¥Tr AR¥Tr ARET:x
Expected loss rate BHEEX 0.6% 3.0% 17.6% 10.8% o1.7%
Gross carrying amount BERAE
— trade receivables - BHENER 36,389 6,867 534 677 6,711 51,678
Loss allowance BlRER 203 205 9% 73 6,155 6,750
QOver
1-30days  31-60 days  61-90 days 90 days
Current past due past due past due past due Total
HE 1E0K  ME60R  61ENE  0RME it
i RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
As at 28 February 2021 “A-thR ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
Expected loss rate EEERX 05% 0.9% 15% 47% 92.8%
Gross carrying amount BEEE
— trade receivables - BHENEE 48,468 4911 994 491 6,013 60877
Loss allowance BRER 261 £ 15 2 5,589 5,924
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B B 755 AR B

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3
(CONTINUED)

o 75 R By B (D

For other financial assets at amortised
cost, management considers that its credit
risk has not increased significantly since
initial recognition with reference to the
counterparty historical default rate and
current financial position. The impairment
provision is determined based on the
12-month expected credit losses which is
immaterial.

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 M¥EMEZEE)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EEREEE)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) TREEREE)
The loss allowances for trade receivables R-ZE-__F-_A=+)\H
as at 28 February 2022 and 28 February r=ZZT-—F=-_A=+N\H
2021 reconcile to the opening loss 2 5 FE W BRI B 18 45 R
allowances as follows: BB EEFEEROT
2022 2021
—E== —E - —F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR¥BTRT ARBFTIT
At beginning of year F 1] 5,924 7,709
Write-off as uncollectable  #ifl $4 “~ 7] Y [a] & %8 (234) (565)
Write-back on recovery U [B] 2 BR £ [0
of bad debts 7 (10) (1,281)
Increase in loss allowance FRELHLFAEF X
recognised in the A R B 1B
consolidated income A 5 12 11
statement during the year 7 1,070 11
At end of year F 6,750 5,924

MEERANEMSRE
EME BEBEELERYH
BFNELBOELER
BRI BT HERIEK
RARHEEERRY KRERE
ZEM - BEREDRE
REARREEBEEETE
ZEREEBEBLIEKX -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
it B B 5 A I

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HMERBEREGE)
(CONTINUED)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 BEEKREEE)
(c) Liquidity risk (c) HEEZEE
Prudent liquidity risk management includes FENRDESRRKREE
maintaining sufficient cash, which is \L%Z’Eﬁ%ﬁfﬁi(ixm

mainly generated from the operating cash
flow, and the availability of funding from
an adequate amount of committed credit
facilities. The Group aims to maintain
flexibility in funding by keeping committed
credit lines available.

RERSRES) URB
BREMMCEREESEERE
DEFTHBBES - A&
SEBRNEFTHIANE
EEGERE KEER
A BCEE -

The table below analyses the Group’s TERBAEEBNEHKBEE
financial liabilities into relevant maturity HHEEBRBEAY T EHE
groupings based on the remaining period AT B o4 & HE R
at the balance sheet date to the contractual HAAR - RNFTIHES S
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in BAEHAWRRLRK - A
the table are the contractual undiscounted RITRFEDTK K12
cash flows. Balances due within 12 months AAREBOERBENRHE
equal their carrying balances as the impact AR 4585 o
of discounting is not significant.
Less than Between Between Over
1year 1and2years 2and>5 years 5 years Total
-£Z MEE
—-E0R mEZE ikl BBLE azt
R-B-Z% RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
As at 28 February 2022  ZA=t/\H AE®TR  AR%Fr AR%Tr  AR¥ETr  ARETx
Trade and other payables ~ BEZEFEER
EERER 63,259 - - - 63,259
Lease liabilties BE&E 22,556 14,261 13,423 - 50,240
Short-term bank loan BEROER 20,280 - - - 20,280
106,095 14,261 13,428 - 133,779
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B B 755 AR B

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HXEREREGE)
(CONTINUED)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 BKEBRAZE(E)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

(c) HEEZEE(E)

The Group’s objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group manages the capital structure and
make adjustments to it in the light of changes
in economic conditions. In order to maintain
or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payments to shareholders,
obtain new bank borrowings, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing
ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided
by total equity. Net debt is calculated as total
borrowings (including “current and non-current
borrowings” as shown in the consolidated
balance sheet) less cash and cash equivalents.

Less than Between Between Over

Tyear 1and2years 2and 5 years 5 years Total
-5 MER
—FJR MELH ikl BALE B
i — RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
As at 28 February 2021 “B-f)\H ARETT  ARETR  AR%ETR  ARETR  ARETR
Trade and other payables ~ ZZEREER
EERNEE 71,898 - - - 71,898
Lease liabilties HERR 17,061 6,613 4,638 63 28,375
88,959 6,613 4,638 63 100,273
3.2 Capital risk management 3.2 EXEKRER

AEBEEREER URER
SEHERENFERLE  RRR
R B 5 10 & 1R AR [ 3% S B 2
R HERFREEAGRARK

AEBEREEAERE  LRE
RERREPFELHAE - B
FRABABEANGRE AEEN
EHBRKTHRROKRESE
MEMB|ITENR SERXRE
PR BEITHA

HEANEMARMEE B K
SENEELXIEREEZEER
B EE - E B RIRFERR
N BBEtE - FEHKRE
RRBREBERGREERBRM
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o B 5 R I
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 MBEREEGE
(CONTINUED)
3.2 Capital risk management (Continued) 3.2 EXxEkEE(H)
The gearing ratios as at 28 February 2022 and RZE__F-_A-+N\BRERZ
28 February 2021 were as follows: T-_—F-_A=-+N\H EEH
ES
2022 2021
—ZE_-= —E
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TRT AR®TRT

Total borrowing (Note 25) BB (K it2s) 20,200 -
Less: Cash and cash equivalents /& : R4 KERIRESIEHE

(Note 22) (Bt &t22) (443,289) (755,543)
Net cash FIRE (423,089) (755,543)
Total equity B 705,339 1,007,947
Gearing ratio BE X N/A N/A

E A TEA

As at 28 February 2022, the Group maintained RZEBE-_—_F_A=_+NH"
a net cash position of RMB423,089,000 (2021: AEBH#FIFRE2ARE
RMB755,543,000). 423,089,000t (ZEZ—F: A

R #755,543,0007T) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events
that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions
that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or
liabilities within the next financial year are discussed
below.

(@) Useful lives of property, plant and

equipment

The Group’s management determines the
estimated useful lives of its property, plant
and equipment. This estimate is based on the
historical experience of the actual useful lives of
property, plant and equipment of similar nature
and functions. Management will increase the
depreciation charge where useful lives are less
than previously estimated, and will write-off or
write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
it B B 5 A I

4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

Impairment of non-financial assets

The impairment loss for non-financial assets,
comprising property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets, is recognised as the
amount by which the carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount in accordance with the
accounting policy stated in Notes 2.6, 2.7 and
2.18. The recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value
in use, which are based on the best information
available to reflect the amount obtainable at
each balance sheet date, from the disposal of
the asset in an arm’s length transaction between
knowledgeable, willing parties, after deducting
the costs to disposal.

Taxes

The Group is subject to various taxes in Hong
Kong, Macau and Mainland China. Significant
judgement is required in determining the
provision for these taxes. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during
the ordinary course of business. Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the tax provisions in the
period in which such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences or tax losses can
be utilised. Where the expectation is different
from the original estimate, such differences will
impact the recognition of deferred tax assets
and taxation in the periods in which such
estimate is changed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(d) Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less estimated costs of completion
and selling expenses. These estimates are
based on current market conditions and the
historical experience of manufacturing and
selling products of similar nature. Management
reassesses the estimation at each balance sheet
date.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management has determined the operating segments
based on the reports reviewed by the executive
directors that are used to make strategic decisions.

The executive directors review the Group’s financial
information mainly from a retail perspective and
assess the performance of operations on a
geographical basis (Mainland China, Hong Kong and
Macau respectively). The reportable segments are
classified in a manner consistent with the information
reviewed by the executive directors.

The executive directors assess the performance
of the operating segments based on a measure of
reportable segment profit/(loss). This measurement
basis excludes other income (excluding government
incentives), other gains, net (excluding gain on early
termination of leases), finance income, net and
unallocated items.

Segment assets mainly exclude deferred income
tax assets and other assets that are managed on a
central basis.

Segment liabilities mainly exclude current income tax
liabilities, deferred income tax liabilities and other
liabilities that are managed on a central basis.
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